AGENDA

KENT AND MEDWAY JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Thursday, 16th September, 2021, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone 03000 416287
Maidstone (Please enter the building via the

entrance in the Courtyard which will bring you to

reception)

Membership

Mrs C Bell (Chairman), Cllr David Brake (Vice-Chairman), Dr J Allingham, Ms L Ashley,
Mr P Bentley, Dr B Bowes, Ms J Brown, Sir Paul Carter, CBE, Mrs S Chandler, Clir H Doe,
Dr A Duggal, Mr M Dunkley CBE, Dr L Farach, Dr J Findlay, Mr R W Gough, P Graham,
Mr P Gulvin, Clir Mrs A Harrison, Cllr Mrs J Hollingsbee, CliIr A Jarrett, Ms R Jones,

Dr N Kumta, Clir M Potter, Mr M Riley, Mr Rivers, Mr M Scott, Mr M Scott, Ms C Selkirk,
Mr R Smith, Mr J Williams and Mr W Williams

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Election of Chair
2. Election of Vice-Chair

3. Apologies and Substitutes

4. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in items on the agenda for the
meeting

5. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021 (Pages 1 - 6)
6. COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan (Pages 7 - 16)

7. Feedback from Health Inequalities Workshop on 10 June 2021 and Next Steps
(Pages 17 - 24)



8. Update on the establishment of a Kent and Medway Integrated Care System -
August 2021 (Pages 25 - 68)

9. The Appointment of a representative to attend meetings of the Kent and Medway
Primary Care Commissioning Group (Pages 69 - 100)

10. Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board - Co-option of Members
(Pages 101 - 102)

11. Kent and Medway Prehabilitation Programme (Pages 103 - 108)

12. Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25 Strategy (Pages 109 - 212)

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Wednesday, 8 September 2021



Agenda Item 5

Medway Council

Virtual Meeting of Kent and Medway Joint Health and

Wellbeing Board

Wednesday, 10 March 2021

3.04pm to 4.00pm

Record of the meeting

Subject to approval as an accurate record at the next meeting of this committee

Present:

Substitutes:

Mrs Clair Bell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public
Health, Kent County Council (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor David Brake, Portfolio Holder for Adults' Services,
Medway Council (Chairman)

Jackie Brown, Assistant Director Adults' Social Care, Medway
Council

Sir Paul Carter, CBE, Kent County Council

Mrs Sue Chandler, Cabinet Member for Integrated Children's
Services, Kent County Council

Councillor Howard Doe, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Community Services, Medway Council

Mr Roger Gough, Leader, Kent County Council

Penny Graham, Heathwatch Kent

Pat Gulvin, Healthwatch Medway

Councillor Angela Harrison, Cabinet Member for Health and
Wellbeing, Swale Borough Council

Councillor Mrs Jenny Hollingsbee, Deputy Leader and Cabinet
Member for Communities, Folkestone and Hythe District Council
Councillor Alan Jarrett, Leader, Medway Council

Councillor Martin Potter, Portfolio Holder for Education and
Schools, Medway Council

Councillor John Rivers, President, Kent Association of Local
Councils

Andrew Scott-Clark, Director of Public Health, Kent County
Council

Dr Robert Stewart, Clinical Designer, Design and Learning
Centre for Clinical and Social Innovation

lan Sutherland, Director of People - Children and Adults
Services, Medway Council

James Williams, Director of Public Health, Medway Council

Dr Bob Bowes, Governing Body Member, NHS Kent and
Medway CCG (Substitute for Navin Kumta)

Stephen Fenlon, Medical Director, NHS Dartford and
Gravesham NHS Trust (Substitute for Louise Ashley)

Dr Amanijit Jhund, Programme Director for West Kent ICP
(Substitute for Miles Scott)

Chris McKenzie, Director of Adult Social Care and Health West

Page 1



Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 10 March 2021

Kent, Kent County Council (Substitute for Richard Smith)
Caroline Selkirk, Executive Director of Health Improvement/
Chief Operating Officer, NHS Kent and Medway CCG
(Substitute for Wilf Williams)

Mark Walker, Director for Special Educational Needs, Disabled
Children and Young People, Interim, Kent County Council
(Substitute for Matt Dunkley, CBE)

In Attendance: Donna Carr, Senior Programme Manager, Population Health,

788

789

NHS Kent and Medway CCG

Karen Cook, Policy and Relationships Adviser (Health), Kent
County Council

Jade Hannah, Democratic Services Officer, Medway Council
Dr Logan Manikam, Interim Public Health Consultant, Medway
Council

Jacqueline Shicluna, Lawyer (Adults), Medway Council

Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Dr John Allingham (Kent Local
Medical Committee), Louise Ashley (Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley ICP
Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) Representative), Matt Dunkley CBE
(Corporate Director, Children, Young People and Education, Kent County
Council), Navin Kumta (Clinical Chair, NHS Kent and Medway CCG), Rachel
Jones (Executive Director of Strategy and Population Health, NHS Kent and
Medway CCG), Matthew Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Miles
Scott (West Kent ICP SRO Representative), Richard Smith (Corporate Director
Adult Social Care and Health, Interim, Kent County Council) and Wilf Williams
(Accountable Officer, NHS Kent and Medway CCG).

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman informed the Joint Board that lan Sutherland, Medway’s Director
of People - Children and Adults Services would shortly be leaving Medway
Council. Mr Sutherland would be retiring after 38 years in public service; he
joined Medway in 2014 as Deputy Director of Children and Adults and he was
appointed as Director in 2017. The Chairman expressed that Mr Sutherland
had worked tirelessly to improve services in both Children and Adults and had
been invaluable to the Joint Board. On behalf of the Joint Board, he thanked
him for his contribution to the Joint Board and wished him a very happy
retirement.

The Chairman also announced that Dr Lee-Anne Farach, Medway’s current
Assistant Director, Children’s Services had been appointed as Medway’s new
Director of People and would formally be taking up her new role at the
beginning of April when Mr Sutherland retired. He looked forward to welcoming
Dr Farach to the Joint Board in due course.

This record is available on ofagetisite — www.medway.gov.uk



http://www.medway.gov.uk/

790

791

792

793

Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 10 March 2021

Record of Meeting

The record of the meeting held on 8 December 2020 was agreed and signed by
the Chairman as correct.

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other interests

Dr Bob Bowes, Governing Body Member, NHS Kent and Medway CCG advised
the Joint Board that as a GP he was a member of a Primary Care Network and
had received income as a result of the vaccination programme.

Urgent matters by reason of special circumstances
There were none.

COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan
Discussion:

The Director of Public Health, Medway Council introduced this report which
provided an update on action undertaken to mitigate rising cases of COVID-19
across both Kent and Medway as it related to the Local Outbreak Control Plan
(LOCP). It also included a summary of LOCP-related questions received from
members of the public and answers provided by Public Health Officers as set
out in Appendix 1 to the report.

A detailed presentation was given by the Directors of Public Health, Medway
Council and Kent County Council, which provided an epidemiological
assessment of COVID-19 prevalence across Kent, Medway, and comparison
districts. Overall, COVID-19 rates had fallen steadily in all districts since the
latest lockdown began. An update was provided on asymptomatic testing as
well as testing to understand the prevalence of novel strains within the
community, particularly the recent targeted surge testing conducted in the
ME15 postcode area. Finally, the presentation provided an update on the
vaccination programme across Kent and Medway and the Government’s
‘roadmap’ for leaving lockdown. The Joint Board was reassured about the
additional measures put in place to enable the safe return to schools.

The Joint Board was advised that the LOCP was required to be updated and
resubmitted to the National Contain Team by the 31 March 2021. A cautious
approach to moving forward with the ‘roadmap’ was being undertaken in
conjunction with the local resilience forum. There would be ongoing publicity to
support the community to keep themselves safe as the locality moved through
the phases of the ‘roadmap’ whilst the vaccination programme continued to be
rolled out.

With respect to communication, the importance of continuing to communicate a
strong message to the public was emphasised. A long period of difficulty was
nearing an end and with vigilance and hard work, restrictions would ease later
in the year but now was not the time to relax.

This record is available on Bag&8bsite — www.medway.gov.uk



http://www.medway.gov.uk/

794

Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 10 March 2021

Asked whether data was collected on hard-to-reach cohorts and how these
groups were supported to receive vaccinations, the Joint Board was assured
that data was collected and monitored and that rates of vaccination uptake
across Kent and Medway were very good. The importance of ensuring equity of
vaccine access was acknowledged to control COVID-19. The more people
vaccinated, the better.

With reference to an example of how homeless individuals had been supported
to receive vaccinations, it was explained that there was a multi-agency
‘vaccination board’ which looked at issues of equity and a public health
consultant was tasked to lead on this area of work. The Communications team
at the NHS Kent and Medway CCG were also working extensively in this
regard.

It was recognised that more support was required to reach some individuals
within priority group 6, such as unpaid carers. It was important that these
individuals were registered with the appropriate organisations for them to be
called forward centrally, by the system, to receive their vaccinations.

Decision:
The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board:

a) noted the update report and the questions submitted by members of the
public on the Local Outbreak Control Plan together with the responses
provided by stakeholders from both Kent and Medway Council
(Appendix 1).

b) agreed that the questions submitted by members of the public on the
Local Outbreak Control Plan together with the responses set out at
Appendix 1 to the report are published on each Council’s website in
accordance with the agreed engagement strategy.

Strategic Plan to Mitigate the Impacts of COVID-19 on Health Inequalities:
Progress Update

Discussion:

The Joint Board considered a progress update on the Strategic Plan to mitigate
the impacts of Covid-19 on health inequalities, which was introduced by the
Senior Programme Manager, Population Health, NHS Kent and Medway CCG.

A project plan had been drafted, with initial work to bring together existing data
and intelligence underway. Although some data was already available, it was
acknowledged that the COVID-19 pandemic was not over, and more and
updated data would become available in the future. The mapping of existing
activity to reduce widening inequalities was also underway in order to avoid
duplication and enable initiatives and resources to be aligned where
appropriate.

This record is available on ofagebsite — www.medway.gov.uk



http://www.medway.gov.uk/

795

Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 10 March 2021

A small interim task and finish group had been established to provide direction
and oversight. This group had met to agree the approach to and scope of the
work. A second meeting of the group was planned for 8 April 2021, where an
initial review of existing data would be undertaken and a plan for the proposed
Joint Board development session on 10 June 2021 would also be discussed. It
was noted that the development session had been expanded to include
members of the Integrated Care System/STP Partnership Board.

It was recognised that the COVID-19 pandemic had focused attention on the
need to address health inequalities. Indeed, a view was expressed that it was
critical to address widening inequalities to ensure a sustainable health system
going forward. It was added that much learning could be taken from the
implementation of the COVID-19 vaccination programme which arguably was
one of the first, big population health management programmes which had
demonstrated that a lot could be achieved in a short timescale if the system
worked together.

Acknowledging the range of organisations which were involved across health,
social care, public health, and those dealing with wider determinants of health,
the challenge of taking this work forward as a Joint Board and as individual
organisations to give this important issue traction was highlighted. It was an
area that the Joint Board could advance joint working.

Decision:
The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board:

a) noted the initial progress made on the development of the joint strategic
plan to mitigate the impacts of COVID19 on health inequalities.

b) agreed to hold a development session in private on 10 June 2021 to be
informed about the emerging impact of COVID-19, understand the wider
health inequalities found in Kent and Medway and recommend the
priority areas for focus.

Work Programme

Discussion:

The Democratic Services Officer advised the Joint Board that an agenda
setting meeting had taken place on 3 February 2021. Proposed amendments to
the work programme were set out in section 2 of the report and reflected in the
work programme attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

Decision:

The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board agreed the work
programme set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

This record is available on Bag@&bsite — www.medway.gov.uk



http://www.medway.gov.uk/

Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 10 March 2021

Chairman

Date:
Jade Hannah, Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 01634 332008
Email: jade.hannah@medway.gov.uk

This record is available on ofagel&site — www.medway.gov.uk



http://www.medway.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 6

KENT AND MEDWAY
JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

16 SEPTEMBER 2021
COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN

Report from: Allison Duggal, Director of Public Health for Kent

Author:

County Council

James Williams, Director of Public Health for Medway
Council

Logan Manikam, Interim Public Health Consultant

Summary

This report provides an update on steps taken to mitigate rising cases of COVID-19
across both Kent and Medway as it relates to the Local Outbreak Management Plan
(LOMP). It also includes a summary of LOMP-related questions received from
members of the public and answers provided by Public Health Officers (located in

Appendix 1).

1. Budget and Policy Framework

1.1. As part of the Department of Health and Social Care’s COVID-19 response
and recovery strategy, Upper Tier and Unitary Local Authorities in England
were mandated to develop a COVID-19 Local Outbreak Management Plan
(LOMP)- formerly known as the COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan-to
reduce the spread of the virus within the community.

1.2. On 28 February 2021, Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC)

requested that the LOMP be updated to reflect the changed landscape of the
pandemic and to consolidate best practice that has emerged locally in its first
year through the creation of a Best Practice Document. The objectives of
these updates are outlined below:

e to ensure that updated fit for purpose local outbreak management
plans are in place across England;

¢ to identify any additional support Local Authorities may need from
national or regional teams, particularly in relation to surge activity to
detect new variants:

¢ to identify good practice at local and regional levels— most particularly
in respect to Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions (NPIs) that can be
used to reduce/prevent transmission of the virus and use this learning
to inform regional and national policies;

e to ensure there is effective governance and clarity on
roles/responsibilities at all levels of response; and

Page 7



121

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.3.

e to ensure LOMP reflect cross-cutting considerations, such as
inequalities;

e to provide ongoing assurance and justification of the need for financial
support from the COVID Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) and
self-isolation fund.

On 22 February 2021, the Government announced the National Spring 2021
Roadmap out of Lockdown. This is a 4-step data-driven approach to enable
the relaxation of restrictions. Before proceeding through each stage of the
roadmap, the Government committed to examining the most current data and
evidence to determine whether it was feasible to progress to the next phase of
opening. The four tests that inform the progression through each phase are:

¢ Rollout of the national vaccine programme continues successfully

e Evidence showing vaccines are sufficiently effective in reducing
hospitalisations and deaths in those vaccinated.

¢ Infection rates do not risk a surge in hospitalisations and therefore do
not put unsustainable pressure on the NHS; and

e Assessments of the risks is not changed fundamentally by new
Variants of Concern (VOCSs).

On 5 July the Government published guidance that would inform its decision
(Moving to Step 4 of the Roadmap) to move to Step 4 on the 19" of July
2021. This is the current stage that England is at. The move to Step 4, shifts
the national emphasis on managing the risk of disease transmission, away
from regulation and blanket legal restrictions, to one of targeted local action
and collaborative population engagement. This Step has seen the end of all
legal limits on social contact, the reopening of nightclubs, large events, and
performance venues. Directors of Public Health and other public health
agency do still possess powers to take action to address outbreaks. Central
government has also tried to mitigate the impact of opening up society by:

¢ Aiming to achieve ‘herd immunity’ by increasing uptake in areas where
vaccine coverage is low and providing additional booster jabs for
specific groups

e Retaining proportionate test, trace, and isolate plans

e Managing risks at the UK border and supporting a global response to
reduce the risk of variants emerging globally and entering the UK

e Retaining contingency measures to respond to unexpected events

There is now a recognition that COVID-19 is endemic. Action to respond and
manage this disease will be shaped into business-as-usual planning and
preparation. Local Outbreak Management Plans will be critical to this
endeavour.

Central government has provided funding to facilitate the delivery of LOMP
to enable local authorities and their partners to put in place local measures
to prevent, identify, and contain COVID-19 outbreaks. The Kent and Medway
LOMP was published online on 30 June 2020; its most recent iteration was
published on the 16 April 2021. Revisions and updates to the LOMP are

Page 8



2.1

2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

2.2.

2.2.1.

2.2.2.

currently underway and are being informed by the COVID-19 Contain
Framework, recently updated on 30 July 2021. The contain framework will
be subject to revision in line with organisational transformation associated
with the creation of the UK Health Security Agency.

Background

Responding to the Rise in Cases Nationally & Locally

Transmission rates of COVID-19 in Kent and Medway have reduced
considerably over the course of the months that followed the last convening
of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board. This reduction was attributed to the
success of the vaccination programme and asymptomatic testing at scale.
However, in recent weeks there has been an increase in transmission
nationally and locally. This increase has been associated with the
emergence of new variants of concern (VOC). These VOC can be more
transmissible and, in some cases, potentially more deadly. The most recent
increase in infection rates across the UK and Kent and Medway is
associated with a VOC of concern first identified in India (B.1.617.2-Delta).
This variant is now the dominate circulating strain in the UK. No surge
testing for new variants has been required or undertaken in Medway.

Surge testing was recently launched in the ME14 area of Kent (Canterbury,
Dartford and Sevenoaks area) in response to the initial increase of the most
recent VOC (B.1.617.2-Delta) to better understand the prevalence of the
novel strain within the community.

While there used to be a need to undertake population surge testing to
identify new variants, changes to the way in which UK laboratories work,
mean there is now more capacity to routinely sequence all positive samples
from PCR tests submitted for analysis. It is therefore easier to identify VOC
as they emerge without the need for mass population testing. More stringent
restrictions have been put in place on the public to contain these novel
variants and protect NHS capacity. These include; travel restrictions,
guarantine, and COVID-test requirements on travellers into the country.
Detailed information on new variants can be found on the website for the
Centres for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

Updates to Local Testing and Tracing Capabilities

Changes to Testing and Tracing protocols in Kent and Medway have been
made to meet the constant changing nature in demand seen over the last
few months. The roll-out of rapid symptom free testing and local tracing
partnerships managed by local authorities, have successfully built on local
knowledge and infrastructure to reduce community transmission levels.
Locality based door-to-door testing has also contributed to national
surveillance for novel variants.

Since the last JHWB meeting convened, Medway Council and Kent County
Council have adopted new innovative ways to offer symptom free testing to

Page 9


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/science/science-briefs/scientific-brief-emerging-variants.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fmore%2Fscience-and-research%2Fscientific-brief-emerging-variants.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/science/science-briefs/scientific-brief-emerging-variants.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fmore%2Fscience-and-research%2Fscientific-brief-emerging-variants.html

2.2.3.

2.2.4.

2.3.

2.3.1.

the local community. This has meant a move away from solely using fixed
permanent test sites. Testing is now more flexible and dynamic, comprising
a hybrid model of outreach, home direct online testing, and community
pharmacy access. These alternative, more holistic models, have enabled
both authorities to better serve the needs of their communities. This has also
led to greater efficiencies within the testing programme, facilitating a
reduction of fixed sites from 5 in Medway and 24 in Kent to 1 and 2
respectively. Residents are able to access testing in more convenient ways,
including online home test kits, workplace testing, and pharmacy collect
options. Multiple pop-up sites are also available to meet local surge
requirements.

Both programmes have been developed in partnership with the Department
of Health and Social Care (DHSC) using local data on disease transmission
and prevalence.

In partnership with NHS Test and Trace, both Kent and Medway have also
launched their own Local Tracing Partnerships. These services verify the
contact details of those whom national handlers are unable to trace using
local data sources. These individuals are then followed by local test and
trace staff to ensure they comply with necessary self-isolation or testing
measures.

The Vaccine Programme

The management and roll-out of the vaccination programme is the
responsibility of the DHSC. Both Medway and Kent County Council are
working closely with stakeholders from the DHSC to support them in meeting
their vaccination targets for the local area. At the time of report compilation
over 47 million people in the UK had been fully vaccinated in-line with the
Medicines and Healthcare Regulatory Authority Guidance. Over 1 million
and 180,000 Kent and Medway residents respectively had been vaccinated.
Vaccination has been undertaken within the prioritisation framework set out
by the Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI):

e all residents in a care home for older adults and their carers;

e all those 80 years of age and over and frontline health and social care

workers;
e all those 75 years of age and over;
e all those 70 years of age and over and clinically extremely vulnerable
individuals;

e all those 65 years of age and over;
all individuals aged 16 years to 64 years with underlying health
conditions which put them at higher risk of serious disease and
mortality;
all those 60 years of age and over
all those 55 years of age and over;
all those 50 years of age and over;
all those aged 18 and over*

Page 10



2.3.2. Vaccines are currently delivered by two types of vaccination sites:

2.3.3.

2.3.4.

2.3.5.

1. Vaccination centres — using large-scale venues such as football
stadiums; accessed via a national booking service

2. Local vaccination services — made up of sites led by general practice
teams collaborating via pre-established primary care networks and
pharmacy teams through community pharmacies

From 4 August 2021, all 16- and 17-year-olds are also advised to receive
their first dose of the Pfizer-BioNTech vaccine. Work is currently underway
to ensure all those aged 16/17 are offered and take up vaccination, before
returning to an educational setting following the summer break. Children
aged 12 to 15 with specific underlying health conditions that put them at
risk of severe COVID-19 are advised to receive two doses of Pfizer-
BioNTech vaccination with an interval of 8 weeks between doses. All
conditions are currently listed in the Green Book. Anyone who, for whatever
reason, was missed in priority groups 1-9 (section 2.3.1) is also being
offered the vaccine.

On 30 June 2021 the JCVI was asked to consider the option for a potential
COVID-19 booster programme for 2021 to 2022 by reviewing the emerging
evidence on the need for and timing of an additional vaccine dose. The
JCVI's interim advice is that any potential COVID-19 booster programme
should be offered in 2 stages from September, starting with those most at
risk from serious disease. This includes care home residents, people aged
over 70, frontline health and social care workers, clinically extremely
vulnerable adults and those who are immunosuppressed. In stage 2,
groups to be offered a booster dose include all adults aged 50 years and
over, all adults aged 16 to 39 years who are in an influenza or COVID-19
at-risk group and adult household contacts of immunosuppressed
individuals. This is in order to maximise individual protection and safeguard
the NHS ahead of winter. All groups would also be eligible for the annual flu
vaccine and are strongly advised to have the flu vaccine.

From 16 August 2021 as part of Step 4 of the Government’s COVID-19
roadmap, individuals who are identified as a contact of a confirmed case of
COVID-19 in England, will be exempt from the legal duty to self-isolate if
they meet one of four exemption criteria:

¢ Individuals who have been vaccinated in line with an MHRA vaccine
and recommended schedule at least 14 days prior to contact with a
positive case

e Children and young people under the age of 18 years and 6 months

e Clinical trial participants: those who have taken part in- or are
currently taking part in- an MHRA approved COVID-19 vaccine
clinical trial

¢ Medical exemptions: those who can evidence that they cannot be
vaccinated for medical reasons

Page 11


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1007737/Greenbook_chapter_14a_30July2021.pdf

2.4.

2.4.1.

2.4.2.

3.1.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

Local Outbreak Engagement Board (LOEB) Public Engagement
Strategy

In accordance with the recommendations made by the Joint Board at its
meeting on 17 September 2020, a form for residents to engage with the Joint
Board regarding the LOMP will be made available online prior to each Joint
Board meeting. For this meeting, the form was hosted online on the Medway
Council website between 13 August 2021 and 27 August 2021; Kent
residents were signposted to the link via the Kent County Council’s COVID
web pages.

Appendix 1 to the report sets out the questions falling within the agreed
criteria that emerged during this process and have been answered by
stakeholders from both Kent and Medway Council. The Joint Board are
invited to discuss the key themes and public concerns in the upcoming
meeting.

Risk Management

By running stress test exercises on a variety of scenarios related to the
LOMP, as outlined in Section 2.6, we aim to minimise the risks associated
with similar events occurring by: (i) identifying any gaps within the LOMP; (ii)
creating awareness of the communication channels that exist between the
agencies; (iii) creating awareness of the roles of different agencies; (iv)
clarifying the escalation triggers and process; (v) identifying areas where
additional support may be required; (vi) identifying any potential challenges
and their solutions; and (vii) identifying actions that need to be taken and
when.

Financial Implications

As a result of recent changes made to the Contain Outbreak Management
Fund, additional resources are now available for eligible councils who need
support in enforcing Local COVID Alert Levels in their communities.

Initial funding was provided through the Test, Track & Trace Support Grant
using 2020/21 Public Health allocations as a basis for distribution. Additional
funding of £8 per head of population for those Local Authorities in the
highest tier of national restrictions was in place up to 2 December 2020.
Since then, Funding allocations to local authorities is currently being
managed through a variety of mechanisms. Resources for testing are being
provided on a quarterly basis, based on a business case submitted by each
local authority. Resources to support the activities of the Local Outbreak
Management Plan are provided through arrangements with DHSC and
MHCLG.

Monitoring and oversight of expenditure is managed via the Contain
Programme Regional Convenor for the South East. There is a detailed
framework that sets out the key areas that can be funded; these will evolve
over time and are tailored to local need.

Page 12


https://www.medway.gov.uk/info/200376/coronavirus_covid-19_medway_support/1244/ask_a_question_about_the_coronavirus_covid-19_local_outbreak_control_pla

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

1.1.

Legal Implications

Kent County Council (KCC) and Medway Council, under the leadership of
the Directors of Public Health, have a statutory duty to protect the
population’s health by responding to and managing communicable disease
outbreaks which requires urgent investigation and presents a public health
risk.

The legal context for the councils’ response to COVID-19 sits within the
following Acts:

e The Coronavirus Act 2020

e Health and Social Care Act 2012

e Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984

The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board has been
established as an advisory joint sub-committee of the Kent Health and
Wellbeing Board and the Medway Health and Wellbeing Board under
Section 198(c) of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 for a time limited
period of four years from 1 April 2020.

The Joint Board seeks to encourage persons who arrange for the provision
of any health or social care services in the area to work in an integrated
manner and ensure collective leadership to improve health and well-being
outcomes across both local authority areas.

The Joint Board is advisory and may make recommendations to the
respective Kent and Medway Health and Wellbeing Boards.

As part of the Department of Health and Social Care’s COVID-19 response
and recovery strategy, Upper Tier and Unitary Local Authorities in England
were mandated to develop a COVID-19 Local Outbreak Management Plan
to reduce the viruses’ spread.

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restriction) (Steps) (England) (No.364)
Regulations 2021 came into force as legislation on 29 March 2021, setting
out the National Spring Roadmap and giving DsPH authority to apply step-
by-step restrictions, close individual premises and public outdoor places as
well as restrict events with immediate effect if they conclude it is necessary
and proportionate to do so without making representations to a magistrate.
DsPH are required to notify the Secretary of State as soon as reasonably
practicable after the direction is given and review to ensure that the basis for
the direction continues to be met, at least once every 7 days.

The Government made the decision to move to Step 4 of the National Spring
Roadmap on 19 July 2021, removing many of the restrictions previously in
force.

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No.3)
Requlations 2020 which came into force on 18 July 2020 will continue to
apply until the end of 27 September 2021. These regulations grant powers to
local authorities to make directions which respond to a serious and imminent

Page 13


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/750/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/750/contents

threat to public health. Any direction must be necessary and proportionate in
order to manage the transmission of coronavirus in the local authority’s area.
The regulations contain powers for local authorities to give directions which:

e restrict access to, or close, individual premises

e prohibit or restrict certain events (or types of events)

e restrict access to, or close, public outdoor places (or types of outdoor
public places) following procedural requirements set out in the
regulations.

The powers may be used up to the date of expiry, 27 September 2021. A
local authority must review a direction it has issued under the regulations at
least once every 7 days and determine whether the legal conditions
stipulated in the regulations for making the direction continue to be met.

6 Recommendation

6.1 The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to
consider and note this update report and the questions submitted by
members of the public on the LOMP together with the responses provided by
stakeholders from both Kent and Medway councils (Appendix 1).

6.2 The Kent and Medway and Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to
agree that the questions submitted by members of the public on the LOMP
Plan together with the responses set out at Appendix 1 to the report are
published on each council’'s website in accordance with the agreed
engagement strategy.

Lead Officer Contact
Dr Logan Manikam, Interim Public Health Consultant
E: logan.manikam@medway.gov.uk

Appendices
None

Background papers
None

Page 14


mailto:logan.manikam@medway.gov.uk

Appendix 1 — Public questions on the Local Outbreak Control
Plan and Answers

PLACEHOLDER — QUESTIONS ARE CURRENTLY BEING VETTED AND
ANSWERED FOR PUBLICATION ON 1ST SEPTEMBER 2021.

NONE

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

KENT AND MEDWAY
JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

16 SEPTEMBER 2021

Feedback from the Health Inequalities Workshop held on June 10
2021 and Next Steps

Report from: Rachel Jones, Executive Director of Strategy and Population Health,
Kent and Medway CCG

Author: Karen Cook, Policy and Relationships Adviser KCC
Sharease Gibson Deputy Director Strategy and Population Health
Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group

Summary

This report sets out the key findings from the Health Inequalities workshop held on
the 10 June 2021 and proposes the next steps in the development of a Health
Inequalities Action Plan for Kent and Medway Integrated Care System for approval
by the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board.

1. Introduction

11 On 17" September 2020 the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing
Board (The Joint Board) agreed to hold a development session about the
emerging impact of Covid 19 and the wider health inequalities found in Kent
and Medway. The development session took place on June 10", 2021 and
included the members of The Joint Board and the members of the Integrated
Care System Partnership Board, bringing together the widest leadership of the
Kent and Medway Integrated Care System for the first time.

12 The session was used as an introduction to the issues facing Kent and
Medway and looked at how other areas in the Country had responded to
health inequalities through a system wide approach. It was agreed that the
System would develop agreed priorities out of the learning from that day and
with further analysis and consideration.

13 This paper sets out next steps to consider our priorities. A Kent and Medway
health inequalities action plan will then be developed to reflect areas of focus
agreed by the Board and the wider system.

2. Background

21  As was set out in the paper on 17™ September 2020 Covid 19 has impacted
on our citizens and our workforce in ways that are becoming clearer. Certain
populations have been affected more than others, such as people from black
and minority ethnic backgrounds. Other issues are also known to have a

Page 17



22

23

24

25

bearing on health inequalities. These include gender and age. People with
underlying health conditions, for example diabetes, asthma and
cardiovascular disease are known to have experienced worse physical and
emotional outcomes during the pandemic. What is clear is that the wider
determinates, poverty, housing conditions, job insecurity and worklessness,
have played a pivotal role in terms of increasing inequalities during the
pandemic. Some people are facing job loss, debt and homelessness, whilst
others are facing new or more serious mental health illness. Our workforce
has been tremendous in responding to the demands of the pandemic, but has
faced traumatic and challenging events, particularly our front line health and
social care staff. So, whilst there have always been health inequalities in Kent
and Medway, the effect of Covid-19 will be to exacerbate and increase the
inequalities experienced by our population.

Covid 19 response measures have also led to some services being stepped
down. We know that latent demand has developed in the population. This
could lead to poorer health outcomes as a result of delayed cancer screening,
loss of herd immunity and an increase in vaccine preventable diseases arising
from a reduction in population coverage of routine child and adult vaccination
programmes. There will likely be an effect associated with the postponement
of elective care procedures, or through people not accessing routine primary
care for fear of visiting their GP during the pandemic.

Health inequalities are caused by much more than an individual’s actions or
access to traditional health care. Green spaces; social activities; education
and employment opportunities; healthy food; good housing and transport
services all play a hugely important role, and all have been disrupted by the
pandemic.

The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board remains in the
unique position of having a wide partnership membership. Its purpose
includes promoting health integration and supporting partners to address
health inequalities.

In light of this the Joint Board agreed to take the broadest view of its purpose
and to place an unrelenting focus on health inequalities. This includes more
focus on children and young people, those with a learning disability, autism or
mental health problems and those environmental and lifestyle factors (the
wider determinants of health- such as housing, employment and education)
that have the greatest impact on health outcomes.

On 17 September 2020 the Joint Board agreed to:

I. develop a plan to publicly set out its vision, strategic aims and ambitions
regarding how the partnership could work together to tackle those areas of
health inequalities identified as priorities for the system.

i. hold a development session to better understand the emerging impact of

Covid-19 and the wider health inequalities found in Kent and Medway to
inform the plan. This took place on June 10" 2021.

Page 18



31

3.2

b)

i. the Executive Director of Strategy and Population Health for Kent and
Medway CCG being the lead officer for this work on behalf of the Joint
Board, informed by the Public Health Directors of both Medway and Kent.

Outcomes of the Workshop: Key Findings

The content of the workshop set out the current headlines about Health
Inequalities in Kent and Medway. Health inequalities are caused by many
factors, most of which are beyond the gift of the individual to change.

COVID has shone a light on health inequalities and made them worse, but
health inequalities will not simply disappear once COVID is over. Potentially,
inequality gaps will widen as we emerge from the epidemic, with
disadvantaged communities having disproportionately suffered from its
impact.

In summary the workshop highlighted that:

Living in a deprived area negatively affects your health and wellbeing:

e If you live in the most deprived ward in Kent you are likely to die before
someone who lives in the least deprived. In the most extreme case, there
is a 25-year age gap between the average age of death for the least
deprived and most deprived in our area.

e You are more likely to go into hospital as an emergency case if you live in
a poorer ward. For example, there are more emergency admissions for
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and stroke for people in more
deprived areas.

e You are more likely to have more than one thing wrong with you i.e.
Diabetes AND high blood pressure if you live in a more deprived area.

e As deprivation increases school examination attainment decreases.
Children from poorer areas receive far lower grades than those in less
deprived areas.

e If you live in a deprived area, you were more likely than those living in
more affluent areas to die from Covid

However not all inequality is related to poverty:

e If you have a mental ililness, you are more likely than the general
population to have a physical illness and to die younger.

e |If you grow up and have experienced more than 4 adverse childhood
events- such as parental separation, any kind of mental or physical abuse
or experienced mental health problems - you are more likely as an adult to
go on to use drugs, become involved in violence or go to jail than a child
who has had no or fewer adverse experiences.

e The increase in mortality compared to before COVID was greater in
people who were from Black and Asian minority ethnic backgrounds.

Page 19



3.3

34

e If you eat a poor diet, smoke or drink too much alcohol or take drugs you
are more likely to develop a preventable illness and your long-term health
and wellbeing will be severely affected.

The workshop emphasised that life chances of individuals are severely
impacted by the inequalities they face in their lives. Tackling the root causes
of inequality is the right thing to do for any public sector organisation involved
in serving, supporting and championing their communities. However, it will
also provide wider benefits not just to the individuals affected but to wider
society as there is an economic burden to be borne, not only in the costs of
health and social care but also in years of working life lost to ill health and
disability.

It must be recognised that not all the solutions to tackling inequalities are in
the hands of local public sector organisations. National approaches are also
needed to deal with income and benefits, planning and infrastructure, air
qguality and emissions, food quality and sugar content etc. But there is no
doubt that there are opportunities through the power of our wider partnership
to do more together and to focus unrelentingly on the things we can change to
tackle d disadvantage in our community.

3.5 Reflections from system leaders on the event

a)

b)

Leadership
Leadership is vital, however it has to be system wide and all recognised as
equal partners to ensure this works well in order to ensure the best outcomes

We need a sustained commitment to this and we must use our span of
influence

Deciding where to put resource is key. We need to be clear and confident in
what we want to achieve.

We need to challenge ingrained adverse culture and understand the
importance of place-based context and know and act on how people could be
empowered.

Involving the local community is a key part of a number of the key points we
have raised today.

Find one small thing that we can do together (with thought and based on data)
and DO IT!

Focus on staff inequalities as much as community inequalities.

Areas of Priority for system working

Collectively driving cultural change and holding each other to account.

Page 20



Using and understanding our own data and developing it to give us better
access across the whole system.

Focus on mental health and multi-morbidity

We know the interventions that work, we need to do them at scale. The
selection of interventions and how they are implemented needs to be worked
out within the community.

Our leadership needs to be aligned across all levels — we need to commit to
that alignment and hold each other to account.

We need to both enable local pilots with multiple partners including voluntary
sector, while building in the right enablers to scale things across the whole
system — can’t do one without the other.

Get together as leaders around the shared purpose more often and trigger the
conversations in our own organisations.

We need to build health inequalities into our agenda and take a more
integrated, proactive approach to our business to incorporate action to
address health inequalities.

Next steps

a)

b)

To capitalise on the energy and motivation expressed by those senior leaders
who attended the workshop.

To feed the outputs and views from the health inequalities workshop into the
population health management (PHM) programme to develop a system wide
understanding of the leadership required to make the best of this learning and
development programme opportunity.

To support the new programme of work that launched on 22 July 2021 looking
at PHM and how, as a system we understand and plan health and care
services for our communities. This is a 22 week externally supported
programme which works with each tier of the system to link local data, build
analytical skills to find at risk cohorts and design and deliver new models of
care. The aim of the programme is to accelerate changes to care delivery to
achieve better outcomes and experiences for selected populations and secure
the skills to spread the approach to other cohorts. Please see Appendix 1 for
the structure of the PHM programme and the priority cohorts identified.

This is a whole system programme, and the Directors of Public Health from
Kent and Medway are joint chairs of the Kent and Medway Population Health
and Prevention Group. The programme is being managed by the Strategy and
Population Health Team in the CCG and local authority officers as well as
Members are engaged in the programme.

Page 21



d) It is important that the learning from this programme influences the priority
setting for the Health Inequalities Action Plan and the two link together to
provide a coherent strategic approach for joint planning and working going
forward.

5. Recommendations

The Joint Board is asked to agree to receiving a discussion paper at the December
meeting of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board that sets out the learning from the
PHM programme and the proposed priority areas for the health inequalities action
plan to focus on

Author contact:

Karen Cook, Policy and Relationships Adviser (Health), Kent County Council
Tel: 07540672904

Mobile: karen.cook@kent.gov.uk

Appendices
Appendix 1 — PHM 22 week programme structure & priority cohorts

Page 22


mailto:karen.cook@kent.gov.uk

Appendix 1 — PHM 22 week programme structure & priority cohorts

Appendix 1 — PHM 22 week programme structure & priority cohorts

Kent and Medway is participating in the Wave 3 population health management
development programme run by NHS England and NHS Improvement. There are two
Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs), and five Primary Care Networks (PCNs) each with
a buddy PCN participating in the progamme.

There are 4 levels of Action Learning Sets (ALS) delivered as part of the 22 week
programme; System, ICP (including finance & contracting) — labeled as Place below,
PCN and analytics. The cadence of each of these action learning sets is shown in the
diagram below.

[ Weeks ]

DD DD DDINDIDIDDIDINIDIDIDIND
Fomscuc) @ ® ® ® ®
@3 sec e o ® ® ® ®

Supported Place

prestissii B R LR R R RN ERENERENEREERERRRERNERERERERELERN 3

Analytical ALS
(1-2 hrs each)

PCN ALS
(2-2.5 hrs each)

Education

e 1

Design

Scale and

Spread

Key . nEn
Action Learning Sets NHSE/l PHM Academy will be made Place Infrastructure entails the creation and

available forall Programme stakeholders operation ofa Place Leadership Group and
throughout. Addttionally, a series of Task & Finish Group(s). The cadence of the

national actuarial webinars wilbe offered.  group teuchpoints will depend on local need

A PHM roadmap for Kent and Medway will be developed throughout the 22 weeks and is
a key deliverable at the end of the programme. This enables systems to think about their
own approach to spread the learning and build on PHM capabilities within and across
partner organisations.

The programme is currently in week 7 (as at 06/09/21); ICPs and PCNs teams
participating in the programme have all completed two action learning sets and have
identified priority cohorts using their data and will start to focus on designing
opportunities for intervention. The priority cohort for each ICP and PCN is detailed below
along with the cqhort size.

. Cohort
ICP /PCN Cohort details size
Children between the age of 5-19 years, who have obesity
:\gepdway & Swale with either asthma or diabetes from the 2 highest deprivation 1,250
deciles
Diabetics in the chronic segment* with depression, live in
East Kent ICP highly deprived areas, and have an additional 3 or more co- 727
morbidities
ABC PCN Aged 10-59 years, obese with depression and live in highly 107
(West Kent) deprived areas
Aged 40-69 years, who are obese, hypertensive with
Dover Town PCN depression; with mid-level complexity across all deprivation 131
(East Kent) scales
Garden City PCN | Aged 40-60 years, obese with anxiety and smokers across 137
(DGS) all deprivation levels
ll;/lgtrjqway Central Aged 20-39 years, obese and hypertensive across all 166
(Medway & Swals) deprivation levels. Targeting those at risk of diabetes.
Ramsgate PCN All age-groups, with diabetes and housebound; all levels of 118
(East Kent) complexity and deprivation

*Chronic —those with at least 1 chronic condition but are not included the complex or end-of-life segments |

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Transforming

(e . Med Kent P28

(‘\_ ') health and social care LT o m
S in Kent and Medway Serving You [t

From: Wilf Williams, Senior Responsible Officer, Kent and Medway ICS

Lisa Keslake, Executive Director of System Development and Assurance, NHS
Kent and Medway

To: Kent and Medway Joint Health and Well-Being Board

Subject: Update on the establishment of a Kent and Medway Integrated Care
System — August 2021

Summary:

Major changes are taking place in the way health and care is organised in England as the
emphasis of national policy continues to shift towards promoting collaboration within local health
and care systems. Integrated care systems (ICSs), of which Kent and Medway is one, are being
established in all areas of the country to drive change intended to lead to better, more joined-up
care for patients and improvements in population health. In November 2020 NHS England
published Integrating care: Next steps to building strong and effective integrated care systems
across England. It described the core purpose of an ICS being to:

* improve outcomes in population health and healthcare

» tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience and access

» enhance productivity and value for money

* help the NHS support broader social and economic development.

It emphasised that the next phase of ICS development should be rooted in underlying principles
of subsidiarity and collaboration. It also described common features that every system is
expected to have and develop, as the foundations for integrating care, with local flexibility in how
best to design these to achieve consistent national standards and reduce inequalities.

This was further defined in February of this year, when the Department of Health and Social Care
published its legislative proposals in the White Paper: Integration and Innovation: working
together to improve health and social care for all. The White Paper promotes service integration
with each area being led through new statutory ICS bodies, bringing together health and local
government to plan and coordinate care and well-being. Subject to legislation being passed later
this year — note the Bill has gone through its first and second stage reading in Parliament - the
plan is to implement these proposals from April 2022, placing ICSs on a statutory footing.
However, April 2022 is not end-state, but simply a major milestone in the evolution and
development of collaborative partnership working.

This paper provides a summary of latest national guidance relating to ICS establishment, along
with details of the evolving Kent and Medway plans and operating model. It should be noted that
national guidance is being published on a weekly basis from mid-August through to mid-
September so further verbal updates on any new material information will be provided at the
meeting.

This paper is for INFORMATION

Page 25



The National ICS Design Framework

In June 2021 NHS England (NHSE) published the much awaited design framework to guide
next steps in developing ICS’s in line with the White Paper. (The NHS Confederation have
published a helpful summary of the whole framework - www.nhsconfed.org/publications/ics-
design-framework). It should be noted that until this is taken through the Parliamentary
process the move to create new statutory bodies remains a proposal. The following narrative
provides the key headlines.

The ICS Design Framework sets out expectations for the next stage of system development.
It sets out the core features of every ICS, while emphasising the need for local flexibility and
determination. It also outlines the expectations NHSE has in terms of

e ICS roles and accountabilities

e governance and management arrangements

e financial allocations

e models for clinical and professional leadership and
e working with people and communities

Further national guidance is being published during late August / early September and should
include:

e detailed governance arrangements of the new NHS Body — see below - as defined in
a model constitution

e the national people (workforce) framework

¢ management of conflicts of interest guidance

e NHS provider governance and collaborative arrangements

Integrated care systems will include two core elements, alongside existing partnerships and
statutory organisational arrangements:

e AnICS Partnership as the collective of all local partners including NHS organisations,
local authorities and other key stakeholders.

e A statutory NHS organisation to be known as an Integrated Care Board (ICB) that
will take on the responsibilities of Clinical Commissioning Groups, which will be
dissolved on 1 April 2022, and any further responsibilities delegated by NHSE, for
example the commissioning of dentistry and pharmacy services.

The ICS Partnership

Each ICS will have a Partnership Committee, responsible for agreeing an integrated care
strategy for improving health and well-being across the totality of the population it serves,
using the best insights from data available, built bottom-up up from local assessments of

Page 26


http://www.nhsconfed.org/publications/ics-design-framework
http://www.nhsconfed.org/publications/ics-design-framework

needs and assets identified at place level, and focusing on reducing inequalities and
addressing the consequences of the pandemic for communities.

The ICS Partnership will be a Joint Committee established by the relevant local authorities
and the ICB, evolving from existing arrangements and with mutual agreement on its terms of
reference, membership, appointment of Chair, ways of operating and administration.

The Partnership will act as a forum rather than a statutory board or committee. Its terms of
reference will be determined locally and any decision making responsibilities (if any) outside
of developing the integrated care strategy will be delegated by partner organisations.

Membership will include local authority and ICB representation plus representatives, yet to be
agreed, from health and wellbeing boards; other statutory organisations; voluntary,
community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector partners; social care providers; and
organisations with a relevant wider interest such as employers, housing and education
providers. The membership may change as the priorities of the Partnership evolve.

The Integrated Care Board (ICB)

The ICB will be a statutory NHS Body established from 1 April 2022. As a minimum, all CCG
functions and duties will transfer along with all CCG assets and liabilities, including
commissioning responsibilities and contracts. NHSE may also delegate functions and
responsibilities currently undertaken by them. The ICB will be responsible for:

o Establishing joint working arrangements with partners that embed collaboration as
the basis for delivery of joint priorities. The ICB may choose to commission jointly with
local authorities across the whole system; at place where that is the relevant local
authority footprint.

o Developing a plan to meet the health needs of the population within their area, having
regard to the partnership’s strategy and the local health and wellbeing strategy.

e Arranging for the provision of health services in line with the allocated resources
across the ICS footprint through a range of collaborative leadership activities,
including: putting contracts and agreements in place to secure delivery of its plan by
providers; convening and supporting providers to lead major service transformation
programmes; and putting in place personalised care.

o Allocating resources to deliver the plan by deciding how its national allocation will be
spent across the system.

o Leading system implementation of the People Plan by aligning partners across each
ICS to develop and support the ‘one workforce’.

o Leading system-wide action on digital and data to drive system working and
improved outcomes. This includes using joined-up data and digital capabilities

Page 27



to understand local priorities, track delivery of plans, monitor and address variation
and drive continuous improvement in performance and outcomes.

e Working alongside councils to invest in local community organisations and
infrastructure and, through joint working between health, social care and other
partners including police, education, housing, safeguarding partnerships, employment
and welfare services, ensuring that the NHS plays a full part in social and economic
development and environmental sustainability.

o Driving joint work on estates, procurement, supply chain and commercial
strategies to maximise value for money across the system and support these wider
goals of development and sustainability.

o Establishing governance arrangements to support collective accountability between
partner organisations for whole-system delivery and performance, underpinned by the
statutory and contractual accountabilities of individual organisations, to ensure the
plan is implemented effectively within a ‘system financial envelope’ set by NHSE.

The ICB will have a unitary board providing strategic leadership. All members of the Board
will have collective and corporate accountability for delivery of the functions and duties of the
ICS and the performance of the organisation. The statutory minimum membership of the
ICB Board will be confirmed in legislation, but is expected to include:

e Anindependent Chair plus a minimum of two other independent non-executive
directors. (These individuals will normally not hold positions or offices in other
health and care organisations within the ICS footprint.)

e One member drawn from NHS trusts who provide services within the ICS area
e One member drawn from general practice from within the area

e« One member drawn from the local authority or authorities, with statutory social care
responsibility within the area

o Four executive directors: Chief Executive, Director of Finance, Director of Nursing
and a Medical Director

Beyond these positions, the ICB may establish other specific executive or non-executive
members to ensure that the Board is well governed, can meet its statutory duties and
objectives, and can effectively manage conflicts of interest. Importantly, these members,
along with members of the ICS Partnership and other ICS bodies or groups as outlined
below, will be able to include individuals from respective partner organisations to act in both
decision making and advisory capacities.

Page 28



Other local partnerships/organisations

Place-based partnerships, historically known as local ‘Integrated Care Partnerships’,
are collaborative arrangements between health and care partner organisations, that
provide local services across a defined geography (usually between 250,000 and
750,000 people). In K&M we have four place based partnerships that have been
evolving over the past couple of years. These are the engine room for local planning
and delivery of services. Once fully developed, decisions will be increasingly made at
place (rather than system) level to enhance integration, improve local outcomes and
focus on pathways redesign so that individuals get the best care from the most
appropriate local services.

Primary Care Networks (PCNs) play a fundamental role in improving health
outcomes and joining up services within small neighbourhoods (circa 30,000 people).
Led by groups of local GP practices with community, social and voluntary care
involvement, they have a close link to local communities, enabling them to identify
priorities and address health inequalities. There are currently 42 PCNs covering the
whole population of our 198 practices.

‘Provider Collaborative’ describes partnerships involving two or more NHS trusts
working across multiple places at an appropriate scale to realise mutual benefits
and/or benefits for the wider system. It will be up to providers, working with partners,
to decide on the specific model and best governance arrangements for their
collaboratives. Whilst we do not currently have any formal collaboratives in place in
Kent and Medway, it is expected that by the end of this financial year every acute
provider and mental trust in the country will be part of at least one collaborative.

Individual providers of care are of course the foundation of our local health and
care system. They include, NHS Trusts and FTs, independent sector community and
voluntary care providers, GP practices, social care providers, and other primary care
services such as pharmacies, dentists and optometrists. Whilst they are key partners
across the Kent and Medway system, each remains directly accountable for the
services they deliver, in terms of both regulatory and contractual accountability. Their
internal governance arrangements are not affected by the NHS Bill.

People and culture

From April 2022, ICSs will be expected to shape the approach to growing, developing,
retaining and supporting the people employed by the ICS and its constituent organisations,
ensuring the delivery of high-quality services and care for the population. The ICB will be
expected to adopt a ‘one workforce’ approach and develop shared principles and ambitions
for people and culture with local authorities, the VCSE sector and other partners.

Page 29



Employment commitment

Whilst the national HR framework is awaited, NHSE has published guidance on the
‘employment commitment’ made by the Government in the White paper. This is intended to
provide people in organisations directly affected by the proposed legislative changes with
employment stability throughout the transition period while minimising uncertainty as much as
reasonably possible. The employment commitment asks all organisations not to carry out
significant internal organisational change or to displace people during the transition period. It
also states that NHS people (below board level) affected directly by these legislative
changes, will receive continuity of terms and conditions (even if not required by law) to enable
all affected colleagues to be treated in a similar way despite any variation in current
contractual relationships. It is designed to provide stability and remove uncertainty during
transition.

Quality governance

The ICB will be required to resource quality governance arrangements appropriately,
including leading system quality groups and ensuring that clinical and care professional leads
have capacity to participate in quality oversight and improvement.

Operational support will be provided through NHSE regional and national teams in line with
National Quality Board guidance, namely the refreshed Shared Commitment to Quality and
the Position Statement. This sets out the core principles and consistent operational
requirements for quality oversight that ICSs are expected to embed during the transition
period (2021/22) and beyond.

Voluntary, community and social enterprise partners

The framework stipulates that VCSE partnership should be involved in governance structures
and system workforce, population health management and service redesign work, leadership
and organisational development plans. By April 2022, ICSs will be required to have
developed a formal agreement for engaging and embedding the VCSE sector in system level
governance and decision-making arrangements.

Clinical and professional leadership

All ICSs should develop a model of distributed clinical and care professional leadership, and
a culture which actively encourages and supports such leadership to thrive. Specific models
for clinical and care professional leadership will be for ICSs to determine locally, but the
emphasis is on care professional from across the health and wider care sector being actively
involved, rather than historic arrangements which have largely focused on clinical and
medical leadership.

Page 30



Working with people and communities

ICSs will need to build a range of engagement approaches into their activities at every level
and to prioritise engaging with groups affected by inequalities. It is expected this will be
supported by a legal duty for ICBs to make arrangements to involve patients, unpaid carers
and the public in planning and commissioning arrangements.

Working with a range of partners such as Healthwatch, the VCSE sector and experts by
experience, the ICB should assess and where necessary strengthen public, patients’ and
carers’ voice at place and system levels. Arrangements in a system or place should not just
provide commentary on services, but should be a source of genuine co-production and a key
tool for supporting accountability and transparency of the system.

NHSE has set out seven principles for how ICSs should work with people and communities.
These principles should be used as a basis for developing a system-wide strategy for
engaging and involving people and their communities. As part of this the ICB will be required
to work with partners to develop arrangements for:

o Ensuring the ICS partnership, and place-based partnerships have representation from
local people and communities in priority setting and decision-making forums; and

o Gathering intelligence about the experience and aspirations of people who use care
and support, using these insights to inform decision-making and quality governance.

Primary care in integrated care systems

The framework emphasises the role of primary care in decision-making at all levels of the
ICS, including strategic decision-making forums at place and system level. In particular, ICSs
should ensure primary care professionals are involved in the development of shared plans at
place and system, ensuring they represent the needs of their local populations at the
neighbourhood level of the ICS, including with regards to health inequalities and inequality in
access to services.

ICSs and place-based partnerships should also consider the support that PCN clinical
directors, as well as the wider primary care profession, may need to develop primary care

and play their role in transforming community-based services.

Accountability and oversight

Building on the relationships and ways of working that have developed to date, system
partners (including local government) will need to maintain a working principle of mutual
accountability, where, irrespective of their formal accountability, all partners consider
themselves collectively accountable to the communities they serve, and to each other for
their contribution to the ICS’s objectives.

Page 31



Financial allocations and funding flows

NHS funding allocations will be made via the ICB for the delivery of functions across the
whole system. This will include the budgets for acute, community, mental health and primary
care services and the running costs of the NHS Body. It will be for the ICB to agree with
partners the allocation of this funding across the system. Increasingly, funding will be
expected to link to population need with allocations based on longstanding principles of
supporting equal opportunity of access for equal needs and contributing to the reduction of
health inequalities.

The Kent and Medway Integrated Care System Development Plan

System partners have already demonstrated their commitment to work together to improve
the quality of our services, the care people receive and the experience of our combined
workforce. Indeed, over the past eighteen months in particular, have evidenced both the
benefits and our willingness to collaborate and integrate services more than ever before. We
will do this as part of our commitment to delivering the NHS triple aim:

e Dbetter health for everyone
e better care for all
« efficient use of NHS resources

The Kent and Medway System Development Plan and draft Operating Model maps our
programme of work over the next year and beyond towards achieving our ambition. The
current document, which has recently been approved by the current Partnership Board and
reviewed by NHSE, is attached at Appendix A.

It should be noted that this is a dynamic and evolving set of plans, given the considerable
pace that we are having to work to, alongside delivering current operational priorities, and
moreover, the fact that much of the national guidance is yet to be published: whilst it will be
for systems to determine many of the local arrangements put in place, we will need to
constantly revise our plans as further guidance is published.

The proposals outlined in our Operating Model are founded first and foremost on the need to
tackle health inequality and improve health and well-being across the whole of our
population. The Operating Model, governance framework and architecture will be developed
and refined based on this core principle, ensuring the way we go about our work will be
inclusive, fair, consistent, transparent and efficient.

The merger of the eight Kent and Medway CCGs in 2020 and the subsequent restructuring of
the single organisation puts us in a good position in terms of ICS transition, whilst recognising
that the ICS will be different from the existing CCG. The future architecture will build on
existing arrangements in place across the system where they are working well and be further
informed by:

. The ICB model constitution

Page 32



. Local functional design work, taking place from July through to October and
. Completion of the local system governance review which is currently underway

Our plans will continue to be refined over the summer and autumn months, building on the
key national guidance, including the ICS Design Framework and model ICB Constitution. This
is in the context that the accountability for delivering services within available resources
remains with individual partner organisations of the ICS. Thus we need to align system and
place responsibilities with the continued responsibilities of those organisations.

The expectation is that during from January 2022 we will move to shadow running the new
ICS framework and associated arrangements alongside the existing statutory bodies until
planned go-live in April 2022.

Recommendations:

The Joint Health and Well-Being Board is asked to NOTE this update for information

Authors:

Lisa Keslake, Executive Director of System Development and Assurance, NHS Kent and
Medway

Mike Gilbert, Executive Director of Corporate Affairs, NHS Kent and Medway

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Kent and Medway, Integrated Care System Development Plan, 30 June 2021

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



) Transforming
\-.J health and social care

I in Kent and Medway

Kent and Medway
Integrated Care System
Development Plan

30 June 2021

Incorporating:

Our Draft Operating Model and Next Steps

Page 35




Transforming

(@ health and social care

’ in Kent and Medway

Contents

1
2
3
4
5
6

(Tg]ugeTo (8 o ilo] g = Ta e I eTo] o] (=) (APPSR
The proposed Kent and Medway System arChiteCture.............coovviieiiiiiee e

Stakeholder engagement - defining the end State..............uuvviieiiiiiiiiiiiii.

DeSIgN PrINCIPIES ..o
System DeVveloOpPMENT PIAN .........oooi i

The Draft Operating MOUEI ...........ooo e

6.1 The Kent and Medway ICS Governance MOEel ............ccooiiiiiiiieiiiiiiec e
6.2  The ICS ParnNershipP........coo oo e e e e e e s s e rr e e e e e e e e e e nnanreees
6.3 TNE ICS NHS BOOY .....eeiiiiiiiiieiiiiiii ettt ettt e et e e s st e e s s b e e e e s nnbneeeeanes

10

The transition from CCG t0 ICS NHS BOAY ....cocuviiiiiiiiieiiiiiee e
Communications and ENQagemMENT ...........ueeiiiiioiiiiiiiiiiie e st e e e e e seeeee e e e e e e e e neeeeeeas

Risks and the risk management approach.............cccceeeei i

CONCIUSION AN NEXE STEPS ...uvvveieeiitiie ettt et et e e s b e e e st e e e e s anbne e e e annnneee s

Appendices

okhowpbE

Glo

Stakeholder engagement: Key Issues relating to the establishment of an ICS
The K&M System and ICS Body Transition and Development Plan

Our draft ICS NHS Body functional model

ICS development excerpt from our nine system priorities - Plans on a Page
Additional documents and products development plan

ssary

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group

H&WBB Health and Well-Being Board

ICP Integrated Care Partnership

ICS Integrated Care System

KM Kent and Medway

NHSEI NHS England and Improvement

oD Organisational Development

PCN Primary Care Network

PHM Population Health Management

Ql Quiality Improvement

SOF System Oversight Framework

SQG System Quiality Group

Page 36

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021



@

Transforming
health and social care

I in Kent and Medway

1 Introduction and context

[

\_

Our Vision:

We will work together to make health and wellbeing

better than any partner can do alone
By doing this, we will:

Give children the best start in life and work to make sure they
are not disadvantaged by where they live or their background, and
are free from fear or discrimination.

Help the most vulnerable and disadvantaged in society

to improve their physical and mental health; with a focus on the
social determinants of health and preventing people becoming ill
in the first place.

Help people to manage their own health and wellbeing and be
proactive partners in their care so they can live happy, independent
and fulfilling lives; adding years to life and life to years.

Support people with multiple health conditions to be part of a
team with health and care professionals working compassionately
to improve their health and wellbeing.

Ensure that when people need hospital services, most are
available from people’s nearest hospital; whilst providing centres
of excellence for specialist care where that improves quality, safety
and sustainability.

Make Kent and Medway a great place for our colleagues to live,
work and learn.

\

J

As we progress our plans to be a thriving Integrated Care System, our vision and ambition will
drive everything we do. All system partners will work together to improve the quality of our

services, the care people receive and the experience of our combined workforce. We will do
this as part of our commitment to delivering the triple aim:

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021

better health for everyone
better care for all
efficient use of NHS resources.

Page 37

=



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

The Kent and Medway System Development Plan and Operating Model map our programme of
work over the next year towards achieving this ambition. This plan is not a stand-alone
document and is aligned to the following:

e K&M System Priorities

e The Kent and Medway Operating Plan

e NHS Long Term Plan (2021)

e ICS Accreditation Submission

e The Kent and Medway CCG merger application

To support our journey to becoming a thriving system, we have an agreed a set of principles
which describe how we will work together including, making decisions as close to communities
as possible, listening and acting on the views of our staff and developing our digital capabilities
to provide one version of the truth.

Alongside existing challenges and health inequalities, we recognise the impact that the COVID-
19 pandemic has had on our population and workforce. We are therefore currently focussing
on priority areas that both support our individual organisations and provide system leadership in
key areas where working together will get better results.

This document outlines our proposals for the development of the Kent and Medway Integrated
Care System and in particular our plans relating to the ICS Operating Model and the transition to
an ICSNHS Body in April 2022 (subject to parliamentary approval of the NHS Bill).

The draft proposals outlined for the ICS Operating Model are founded first and foremost on the
need to tackle health inequality and improve health and well-being across the whole of our
population. The Operating Model, governance framework and architecture will be developed and
refined based on this core principle, ensuring the way we go about our work will be inclusive, fair,
consistent, transparent and efficient.

Our plans will continue to be refined over the summer and autumn months, building on the key
national guidance, including the ICS Design Framework and model NHS Body Constitution. This
is in the context that the accountability for delivering services within available resources remains
with individual partner organisations of the ICS. Thus we need to align system and place
responsibilities with the continued responsibilities of those organisations.

The Kent and Medway context

The Kent and Medway System has much to be proud of and the vast majority of our population
receives good care and treatment. There are many services that provide high quality care day
after day and will continue to do so. Indeed, since the establishment of CCGs in 2013 and the
sustainability and transformation partnership in 2016 the NHS and social care in Kent and
Medway have had a number of successes improving local services and improving patient
outcomes. Many of our providers within community, mental health and primary care services
are now rated good or outstanding and we have seen sustained improvement in cancer
pathways, the delivery of diagnostic and elective activity and, of course, the monumental effort
of all of our staff pulling together during the COVID-19 pandemic, vaccination and recovery

=

Page 38 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



@

Transforming
health and social care

’ in Kent and Medway

programmes. This has already brought real benefits to the way we plan and deliver services at
a system, place and neighbourhood level; and, we are working closer than we have ever done
before.

We recognise that whilst we have many achievements to be proud of, there are fundamental
challenges that we have not yet been able to fully tackle and which have impacted negatively
on individual patient experience, care and well-being. Not least that we need to focus more on
working together to support people so they don’t get il in the first place.

Indicators of the challenges we must address together

Only 2% of health and social care funding is spent on public health interventions to reduce
the risk of avoidable disease and disability.

Around 1,600 early deaths each year could have been avoided with the right early help
and support.

There are stark health inequalities across Kent and Medway. This is a particular issue for
people who live in deprived areas and those with severe mental illness more likely to be
affected.

e There is wide variation in life expectancy across Kent and Medway, for example life
expectancy for women in Weald East ward is 35% higher than for men in Margate
Central ward, a 25 year difference.

e Emergency admissions for COPD are higher in people from the most deprived 10%
of our population compared to the least deprived 10% in almost all districts.

e Emergency admission rates for stroke and TIA are 43% higher in the most
deprived 10% of the population compared to the least deprived 10%.

e People in the most deprived 10% of the population have multiple morbidities
equivalent to people 10 years older in the least deprived 10%.

There are significant workforce issues across a range of health and care roles. Coastal
areas in particular, have additional recruitment and retention challenges. Whilst workforce
challenges are seen across the country, Kent and Medway is behind the national average.

To respond to these challenges, and deliver our vision, we have identified nine improvement
and development priorities for 2021/22 which map directly back to our purpose and principles.

These priorities formed a key part of our ICS accreditation process in February 2021. Each of
the priorities has an assigned system Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) and lead Director,
working together to ensure progress, alignment and oversight.

Page 39 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 Py

pryf



) Transforming
(- } health and social care
I in Kent and Medway

The nine Kent and Medway system improvement and development priorities

1. Covid
pandemic
response
including
restart &

9. Refreshing
the system
digital and

analytics

strategy recovery

2. K&M
Improvement
and Recovery
Plan

3. Increasing
7. Provider diagnostic
Collaboratives and elective

capacity

6. Working to 4. Implementing
strag;i?:rszsange ‘ICS end state’
initiatives — EK 8-Fopuiation

and Stroke Lcaith

Management

We are committed to tackling health inequalities and improving health and well-being across the
totality of our population. We will do this through:

e Greater collaboration and integration of our partners across various levels of the
system: this will lead directly to better quality of care and better outcomes for local
people. Whilst a primary design principle is one of subsidiarity and local autonomy, we
also recognise that together, the system can be more than the sum of the parts and we
will maximise the potential for improved health and well-being outcomes through
integrated delivery.

e Clinical and professional system leadership: Strategic, tactical and operational
initiatives should be led by clinical and professional experts from across health and care,
based on shared learning and improvement founded in a desire to eliminate unwarranted
variation and maximise quality, safety and patient experience.

e A principle focus on population health and being data and quality driven.

e Engaging and meaningfully supporting the wider voluntary and community sector,
which plays a vital role in care delivery and is a critical link to local communities.

e Greater meaningful involvement of local people, local government and other
stakeholders in the development and delivery of strategies and plans that improve the
quality of life, reduce health inequalities and deliver the best outcomes.

The system wide plans we are developing, as outlined in this plan
and supporting documents, will secure the next stage of our
transformation programme.

Page 40 M
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O



) Transforming
(- health and social care

in Kent and Medway

2 The proposed Kent and Medway system architecture

The Kent and Medway System is responsible for leading, improving and transforming
population health and well-being and for delivering high quality, accessible health and care
services that meet the needs of local people. As well as reducing health inequalities, improving
productivity and contributing to the broader economic and social development of Kent and
Medway.

The system that is expected to be formally in place from April 2022 will be made up of the two
upper tier councils’ Health and Wellbeing Boards, an ICS Partnership, an ICS NHS Body, our
four Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs), our 42 Primary Care Networks (PCNSs), provider
collaboratives (yet to be defined) and our individual NHS and independent provider
organisations. Stakeholder representation across the system will come from all of our health
and care organisations, upper and lower tier local government, the voluntary and community
sector, health and care regulators, other public services and of course our local people.

Likely high level K&M system architecture from April 2022

- Partnership E

Kent and ICS Partnership - Provider
Medway ICS commissioners, Clln_lcal o arrangements b=
NHS Bod . Professional Forum elected members of local g’_‘
vering th 3;1 | government, voluntary clinical and managerial authorities through Health )
co«e??{g f “’l; s ] ﬁor‘nrﬁll:niw t;-ectolr steer from constituent and Wellbeing Boards =
OH ? an -;nd other stakeholders organisations and Health Overview and o
vedway - S Scrutiny Committees x

4 x Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs)
Four ICPs covering defined geographies within the overarching system, incorporating
local commissioners, providers ofhealth and social care, district councils and other partners;
to develop and deliver services. Ambition is for health, social care,
voluntary sectorand other providers to work in a seamless way.

o
. <]
42 x Primary Care Networks (PCNSs) )
Provide community, social care and primary care services. Based around groups of ‘§
neighbouring GP practices and will have an individual clinical directorwhose role will =
be to ensure that local needs, knowledge and challenges are reflectedin wider planning =
and delivery of health and care services. ;

Individual health and care providers, including NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts (our anchor

organisations), primary care, social care, and the wider voluntary and community sector

The ICS Partnership will succeed the current ICS Partnership Board. It will have a wider remit
and membership. Its primary responsibility will be to develop and oversee achievement of an
integrated care strategy, alongside developing health and well-being outcomes for the whole
population. It will be established jointly by our two upper tier local authorities, the ICS NHS
Body, and partner organisations. It will likely operate through a Joint Committee arrangement.
The ICS Partnership will include a broad range of partners from the wider care and well-being
system. The relationship between the ICS Partnership and two Kent and Medway Local
Authority Health and Well-being Boards (H&WBBSs) will be further defined over the summer.

Page 41

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021



@ Transforming
(- ) health and social care
’ in Kent and Medway

The ICS NHS Body is the statutory NHS organisation that will succeed Kent and Medway
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). It will have the statutory responsibility for planning and
securing services. However, it is not simply a replacement of the CCG: it will be a new
organisation that brings together all health partners working alongside social care and other
partners.

Subject to local agreement, we expect the current functions of KM CCG to transfer to the new
body in April 2022, alongside some functions that may be delegated or assigned from NHS
England. At a later date functions may then be delegated to ICPs or provider collaboratives.

A Kent and Medway Clinical and Professional forum or senate will be established over the
course of summer 2021. It will replace the Clinical and Professional Board which was
suspended at the start of the pandemic to enable clinicians to focus on the pandemic response.
The forum is likely to have responsibility for overseeing clinical and professional input in the
development of system strategies and outcome measures; providing objective clinical
leadership and whole-system scrutiny to major strategic change and care pathway
transformation; and reviewing delivery strategies, to ensure they are effectively addressing
system and place based priorities.

Place-based partnerships, or Integrated Care Partnerships are collaborative arrangements
agreed between the ICS NHS Body, Local Authorities and organisations that provide local
health and care services across a defined geography.

In Kent and Medway we have four ICPs”.

Medway

Membership varies based on the o e
local context, but typically incorporates Sowaniey
representation of local people, service
users, social care providers and
commissioners, public health, local West Kent East Kent
government functions, voluntary sector,
general practice (represented by the LMC
and primary care networks) and providers
of community, mental health and acute

healthcare.

Provider Collaboratives describes

partnerships involving two or more NHS trusts working across multiple places at an appropriate
scale to realise mutual benefits and/or benefits for the wider system. Collaboratives are
expected to contribute to the strategic planning of the system and may cover one or more
place-based partnership. Our approach to provider collaboratives is in development and will be
agreed and shared by the end of September 2021. This will confirm our arrangements for
collaboration across acute, community and mental health providers.

! Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley ICP; East Kent ICP; Medway and Swale ICP; and West Kent ICP

Page 42

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021




@ Transforming
:J health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

Primary Care Networks (PCNs) play a fundamental role in improving health outcomes and
joining up services. They operate at the level of local communities, enabling them to identify
and address local health priorities and address health inequalities and are developing
integrated multi-disciplinary teams that include staff from community services and other NHS
providers, local authorities and the voluntary sector to support effective care delivery. There
are currently 42 PCNs covering the whole population of our 198 practices.

Individual providers of care are of course the foundation of our local health and care system.
They include, NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts, independent sector community and voluntary
care providers, GP practices, social care providers, and other primary care services such as
pharmacies, dentists and optometrists. Whilst they will be key partners across various levels of
the Kent and Medway system, they will each remain directly accountable for the services they
deliver, in terms of both regulatory and contractual accountability.

At all levels of our system, partnership working
will shape better planning and improved services
for the residents of Kent and Medway.

3 Stakeholder engagement - defining the end state

Whilst recognising our considerable achievements in developing an ICS across Kent and
Medway, including the merger and subsequent restructure of the CCG, there remain some
outstanding important issues that need to be agreed as part of our critical path to achieving the
April 2022 milestone and then moving beyond to a thriving system. This is an evolutionary
journey that all of our partners are involved with and have a clear ‘line of sight’ on
developments.

Through April and May 2021 we began an extensive engagement programme across a wide
range of stakeholders to develop our design principles, the system operating model and the
governance framework and architecture. Further engagement will continue throughout the
summer and autumn months focusing more on the detail of key ‘knotty issues’.

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 Py



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

Appendix 1 outlines the results from the engagement discussions along with a number of
proposed recommendations that have since been agreed. The following provides a headline
summary and highlights the strong commitment from all partners to drive greater collaboration
and integration to deliver our collective vision:

1. A cultural shift of hearts and minds is needed, away from traditional relationships and
ways of working, to stronger partnership working and a real move towards improving
population health and well-being outcomes is critical. This ‘shift’ in culture should not be
under-estimated in terms of the organisational development required across the system.

2. We need to up the pace on tackling health inequalities and reducing unwarranted
variation in quality as well as developing PCNs, ICPs and provider collaboratives, noting
that all three of these ‘layers’ will determine how care and well-being services are to be
effectively delivered to local people. Furthermore, system wide ‘Organisational
Development’ is needed to support all partners with the shift of responsibilities,
relationships and culture.

3.  All elements of our system should be inclusive, with appropriate engagement with
local people and our staff as well wider sector stakeholder involvement in design and
decision making.

4. ICP frameworks should be permissive and not prescriptive with a mixed economy of
approaches and pace determined locally. There needs to be broader collaboration than
just health that captures the culture within the local area and addresses the need for
greater partnership engagement.

5. The four ICPs have differing approaches on future levels of ambition and future
accountability. This is understandable and will be a conscious decision of partners with
no model being seen as superior over the other. Regardless of approach, there is a
broadly supported view that the ambition should be for subsidiarity, local autonomy and
self-management.

6. Thereis aunanimous view that primary care core GMS commissioning and
contracting should remain at an ICS level, whether or not legislation allows for
delegation.

7.  Thereis an absolute willingness from both Kent County Council (KCC) and
Medway Councils to be full partners in the ICS and at a place level.

8. Thereis consensus that partnerships at system, place and neighbourhood level
need to include a ‘broader church’ of partners from the wider well-being and care
system, potentially including welfare, housing, leisure, education; alongside population
health, professional and local people representation.

9. Thereis unanimous praise for the clinical and professional response to the recent
pandemic and a view that many of the achievements over the past fifteen months should
be ‘locked in’ going forward.

Page 44 ‘]l!i“ E'
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



@ Transforming
y health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

10. There is a consistent view that future strategies and outcomes need to focus more
on addressing the wider determinants of well-being and good health and less (albeit
important) through a clinical lens.

11. Thereis a strong consensus on the importance of effective involvement of local
people in order to influence discussion and decision making at all levels. An ICS
engagement framework is being developed later this year. There was clear articulation
that non-executive directors, lay and independent members and other patient and public
representatives are a valuable resource that could be better utilised to champion
collaborative working and break down barriers.

Recognising the evolutionary nature of the system’s development, the feedback also
highlighted a strong sense of needing to map out the functional design of the system to
determine which functions are likely to remain at a system level and which might be assigned or
delegated to a place or collaborative, from April 2022 and the future. Initial work on this is
detailed in a later section and will be completed by September 2021 alongside a detailed review
of the existing and future governance framework and architecture.

Further detailed actions plans relating
to the specific recommendations from
the engagement are now being
finalised and implemented.

4 Design Principles

The ICS Partnership is where the leadership from partner organisations come together to:

e understand problems and create the solutions to address them

e set the vision and long-term objectives for the system as a whole

e develop governance and accountability arrangements which support effective delivery of
strategy at system, place and neighbourhood; and

e assure and self-manage achievement of improved outcomes for the population.

On this basis, the following agreed design principles will inform the operating model, functional
design and governance framework that will enable planned shadow-running of the system from
January 2022 and go-live on 1 April 2022. This recognises that much of what is currently in
place, particularly in relation to service improvement and delivery frameworks, will require
refinement rather than starting from scratch:

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

Improving the health and well-being of local people, addressing health inequalities and
reducing unwarranted variation in the most effective and efficient way will be at the heart
of every decision we make: our operating model, functional design and governance
framework should honour this commitment.

The strategy of the system and the setting of outcomes and priorities will be co- designed
with care and well-being professionals and informed by the experiences of local people in
concert with robust population health information.

The establishment of the ICS will represent a fundamental move away from historic
commissioner provider relationships with a move to more integrated and collaborative
working across system partners and stakeholders.

The system needs to be data and quality improvement driven. This will be at the heart of
all strategies and priorities. We will also ensure that we better join up digital and data
priorities with the clinical strategy and with initiatives in general practice and social care.

The principle of subsidiarity will apply to decision making with the following four tests (as
included in our ICS accreditation process) applied to assist in deciding when we need to
work together as a system on a particular challenge / area of opportunity:

a. Are we likely to need a critical mass of scale or expertise beyond the place level
to deliver the safe and sustainable services which achieve the best outcomes?

b. Is this a programme or responsibility where all places or more than one place or
provider, are experiencing similar challenges (potentially to different degrees)
which may benefit from collective problem solving?

c. Do we believe that working together on a particular issue will create greater
power / influence / impact than working alone?

d. Is this a problem not amenable to local solution?

Place and collaboratives are the engine rooms of our system — they are responsible for
delivering improved outcomes and driving continuous improvement. They are founded
from our individual NHS trusts and foundation trusts (our anchor organisations), primary
care, social care, and the wider voluntary and community sector.

Neighbourhoods play the most crucial role in improving health and care outcomes within
individual communities. Outcomes will only improve if the priorities for and delivery within
our neighbourhoods align with our ambitions at place and system level.

The system is where our strategic direction of travel and our ambitions around
transformation and improvement will be set. Our architecture will reflect this.

Page 46

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021



@

Transforming
health and social care

’ in Kent and Medway

10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 47 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 Py

Trust and mutual respect are at the heart of effective system, place, collaborative and
neighbourhood level working. Whilst recognising our ICPs and collaboratives are in a
developmental phase, especially in 2021/22 and into 22/23 with a key focus on delivering
local priorities and strengthening the relationships, they will nonetheless hold all partners
to account for collective delivery of agreed priorities with formal oversight and assurance
being carried out by the ICS NHS Body.

The ICS NHS Body will proactively support ICPs and provider collaboratives to deliver
their priorities and develop their infrastructure including taking further steps to align
resources and increase the amount of resource working to and with the ICPs. Existing ICP
facing teams within the CCG and new ICS NHS Body will need to maintain an appropriate
balance between supporting the pathway and performance improvement work on the
ground while also holding other commissioning and oversight functions. This particularly
applies to health improvement, quality, safety, safeguarding and finance.

The ICS Partnership will develop wider health and well-being strategies and outcomes. It
will include a broad range of partners from the wider care and well-being system.
Partnerships will need good mechanisms for ensuring strategies are developed with
people and communities, drawing on best engagement practice.

We will not seek to pre-empt the outcome of the learning from the Wave 3 population
health management (PHM) programme. However, a key working assumption is that the
ICS NHS Body will develop the strategy and the key frameworks and tools for PHM.

Membership of, and involvement in, system and place-based fora should depend on the
local context, but we expect they will typically incorporate representation of local people
and service users; social care providers local and district authority commissioners; public
health leaders; primary care, community, mental health and acute providers; and the
voluntary and community care sector.




) Transforming
(- } health and social care
I in Kent and Medway

5 System Development Plan

Our system development plan is detailed in Appendix 2 with core work streams identified and
deliverable and milestones for each set out. The plan supports a number of our nine
improvement and development priorities and spans critical areas such as population health
management, development of ICPs, PCNs and collaboratives, system organisational
development, digital and analytics, and confirmation of our functional models.

The System Development Plan pulls all of these programmes together under one umbrella,
where they relate to system development, to enable a coordinated and consistent approach in
respect of delivering agreed critical activities during the course of this year and beyond. The
system priority programmes that relate to system development are:

Development Programme System SRO / System Chair

SRO — James Williams / Alison Duggal (Public Health Dirs)

PHM and strategic commissioning Chair — Joanne Palmer (Chair MET)

SRO - Paul Bentley (CEO KCHFT)
Chair — David Highton (Chair MTW)

SRO - Susan Acott (CEO EKHUFT)
Chair — David Highton (Chair MTW)

Provider collaboratives

Digital and analytics transformation

Quality and Service Improvement SRO — Wilf Williams (AO KMCCG /ICS SRO)
Strategy and Leadership Chair — Navin Kumta (Clinical Chair KMCCG)

Implementing the Integrated Care SRO — Wilf Williams (AO KMCCG /ICS SRO)
System ICP development Chair — John Goulston (Chair KM ICS / KCHFT)

We have detailed plans and headline ‘plans on a page’ for each of the nine system priorities,
including for each of the above programmes. The relevant plans on a page are included at
Appendix 4 for information. They set out our ambition to become a thriving ICS with each plan
providing:

¢ a high level overview of work under each theme,
e critical deliverables and
e expected outcomes to be achieved.

Each of these programmes has its own Senior Responsible Officer and Chair from across the
system, as well as an Executive Lead.

6 The Draft Operating Model

6.1 The Kent and Medway ICS Governance Model

The ICS governance model is driven by the challenges we face and enables the solutions we
need to succeed. The merger of the eight Kent and Medway CCGs in 2020 and the

subsequent restructuring of the single organisation has been helpful for ICS transition and will
support the requirement in the employment commitment for minimum restructuring. However,

Page 48 M
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O



in Kent and Medway

) Transforming
(- health and social care
J

the ICS is and will be different from the CCG. The future ICS governance framework and
architecture will build on existing arrangements in place across the system where they are
working well and be further informed by:

e National ICS Design Framework

e The ICS NHS Body Model Constitution requirements

e The KM functional model work, taking place locally from June to September

e Completion of the system governance review and redesign work currently underway

The expectation is that during Q3 and the beginning of Q4 we will move to shadow running the
new ICS framework and associated arrangements.

Kent and Medway ICS - simplified transitional system governance plan

Sept 2021 Jan 2022 April 2022

Planning Transition Shadow Go-live

Kentand MedwayICS
Partnership Group

Kentand MedwayICS

Partnership Group

Collaboration between health,
care and wider partners,
responsible for developing

strategic plan

NHS Kentand Medway

NHS Kentand Medway
CCG

cce (ICS NHS Body)
Statutory body for commissioning

(ICS NHS Body) provision for K&M population

CCG retains statutory duties
L ICS NHS Body shadow running

4 Integrated Care 4 Integrated Care 4 Integrated Care
Partnerships Partnerships Partnerships
42 Primary Care 42 Primary Care 42 Primary Care
Networks Networks Networks
Further development of ICPs and

PCNs and establishment of
collaboratives

I
I
|
NHS Kentand Medway [ and securing health care
|
I
1

and FTs (our anchor NHS Tri NHS Trusts and FTs (our anchor
primary care, / N /
socia L and the wider

voluntary and community sector

Page 49 “ !i; “
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O



) Transforming
\-.J health and social care

’ in Kent and Medway

Critical path actions

The functional model work will determine which functions are expected to remain at a system
level and which might be assigned to a place or collaborative from April 2022: recognising the
evolutionary nature of ICP and provider collaborative development, it is likely that significant
functions and responsibilities will remain at an ICS level in the first instance, with a longer term
plan to delegate or assign responsibilities over the following 12 to 24 month period as
partnerships mature. The initial functional model work is planned to be completed by the end of
September 2021.

A comprehensive review of system governance and architecture has already commenced
and a detailed timetable and programme plan for this work is being finalised. More detail on
this plan is set out within Appendix 2 - The K&M System and ICS Body Transition and
Development Plan.

The review will consider the totality of the existing architecture and governance framework;
refine this to meet the requirements for the new landscape; and ensure robust arrangements
are in place for the smooth transition to April 2022. Again, the review will be completed by
September 2021. Some elements of the architecture do not need to wait until the outcome of
the review, such as the establishment of the clinical and professional forum, however, the main
transition to the new ICS bodies will commence from October with full-shadow-running planned
from January 2022.

The outcomes from our recent engagement exercise, alongside the design principles, will be
effectively played in to the future governance framework, with a particular focus on: clear
articulation of remit, roles and responsibilities; inclusive, equitable stakeholder involvement; and
an architecture that is fit for purpose for the medium term and consistently defined.

Kent and Medway ICS
system architecture
(post April 2022)

Scrutiny committees Regulatory bodies
* Scrutiny
* Needs analysis
- Sosiem) feiin Local authority Health and Kent and Medway
* OQutcome Well-being Boards -
S ICS Partnership

NHS England
(Specialised Commissioning}

Involvement at different levels
depending on topic:

Clinical and Professional
Forum/Senate
Citizen engagement forums

Strategic Change

* System Quality

* Performance
Improvement

* Assurance

Programmes

Kent County Council & NHS Kent and Medway
Medway Council ‘(NHS ICS Body} + EastKenttransformation
= Vascular
* Medwayand North West Kent review

. et

Service Delivery /

Enabling Groups

B B * MentalHealth
4 x Integrated Provider 42 Primary Care + Learning Diszbilities & Autism
. - - Cancer
Care Partnerships Collaboratives Networks + Childrenand Young Peopie

* Placeand
neighbourhood
priority setting

* Operational
delivery

* Place based

+ Digital

* Prevention
Individual providers: - etc

Health and social care including: primary care; FTs and NHS

Trusts; voluntary and community services; independent sector - oo 2

¥ P
Page 50 v M
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O

assurance




@ Transforming
:J health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

In parallel, a review of ICP governance frameworks will also be completed, to ensure similar
arrangements are in place and, where appropriate, consistently applied. Notwithstanding the
governance review to be completed, the diagram above shows a potential high level
governance framework that could be adopted based on refining the current operating model.

There is an absolute willingness from both Kent County Council (KCC) and Medway Council to
be full partners in the ICS both at system and place level. In addition there is a willingness of
our district councils to be integral to the work on the wider determinants of health. As previously
noted, discussion with both local authorities are already underway to consider any new joint
commissioning/partnership arrangements and confirm future H&WBB and Partnership Group
relationships, which will then be played in to the governance design work.

Current working assumptions and principles

As we complete the next stages of ICS transition, the following working assumptions and
principles apply:

e Accountability and oversight: The system oversight approach for Kent and Medway in
2021/22 is aligned with the proposed NHSEI System Oversight Framework (SOF)
published in March 2021 and consists of four distinct strands:

(1) oversight through the ICS governance structure — mainly focused on delivery of
the system’s nine improvement and delivery priorities

(i) oversight through the CCG governance structure — noting the statutory role of the
Finance & Performance Committee, the Quality, Safety and Safeguarding
Committee, and the Primary Care Commissioning Committee

(i) oversight at ICP level — focused on oversight of delivery of local ICP priorities and
discussion of wider challenges/risks to the place

(iv)  oversight at provider level — noting that in 21/22 the primary accountability
relationship remains between NHSEI and providers.

Individual providers will have contractual accountability to the ICS NHS Body. NHS
Trusts and FTs will be accountable for the discharge of their statutory duties to NHSEI
with and through the ICS NHS Body. The ICS NHS Body will be accountable to NHSEI
and NHSEI will be accountable to the Department for Health and Social Care (DHSC).

NHSEI continue to lead on the intensive support process and accompanying oversight
process for challenged providers but with the joint chairing of meetings. In addition,
NHSEI and the ICS/CCG continue to jointly oversee the Recovery Support Programme
approach in East Kent and Medway and Swale. NHSEI have already delegated
responsibility for the Surveillance Quality Group (SQG) to the ICS/CCG meaning the
ICS/CCG holds providers to account for the quality of their services unless there is an
issue requiring escalation, whereby NHSEI are in the lead role.

Page 51 &gg
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 Py



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e Quality governance: We are building on existing quality governance principles and
mechanisms for delivery and will resource quality governance arrangements
appropriately; including ensuring that clinical and care professional leads and staff have
capacity to participate in quality oversight and improvement. In Kent and Medway the
guality governance framework is being developed with Chief Nurses, Medical Directors
and other clinical and professional colleagues and tested with the chairs of Quality
Committees in individual providers over the next twelve weeks. Responsibility for the
Quiality Surveillance Group will be handed over from NHSEI to the CCG, with its first
meeting taking place in July - membership going forward will include representation from
all main healthcare providers. Other parts of the governance framework will likely
include the requisite statutory groups for example system safeguarding; ICP quality
forums and Quality Committees of Kent and Medway NHS providers; the Local Medical
System Group; and potentially a quality and performance improvement committee. The
key will be not to duplicate quality assurance by being clear on the purpose, scope and
outputs of each assurance group.

e Financial allocations: The ICS NHS Body will agree how the allocation it receives will
be distributed to perform its functions, in line with locally determined health and care
priorities. Funding will flow from the ICS NHS Body to providers through contracts it
holds with them for services and outcomes. Within Kent and Medway we will need to
develop an agreed framework, building on the work of the existing System Finance
Group, for collectively managing and distributing resources so they can be used to
address the greatest need and tackle inequalities in line with the NHS system and health
and care partnership plans. NHS trusts and foundation trusts remain accountable to the
efficient and effective use of resources within the context of the need to meet overall
system control totals for capital and revenue.

e Services currently commissioned by NHS England: Legislation will enable the direct
commissioning functions of NHSEI to be jointly commissioned, delegated or transferred
to ICS NHS bodies or NHS providers at an appropriate time. It is the intention of NHSEI
to enable ICS NHS bodies to take on responsibility as soon as they are ready to do so
after the enactment of legislation. Kent and Medway will need to consider in discussion
with NHSEI both the opportunities and risks that this poses before taking on any
additional responsibilities.

e People function: The ICS NHS Body will have a specific responsibility for leading
system implementation of the NHS People Plan, by aligning partners across the system
to develop and support the ‘one workforce’ approach as set out in national guidance. As
part of this there will need to be clear arrangements in place between the work of the
ICS Body, all NHS trusts and other employers of our workforce. In Kent and Medway
there are a number of workforce challenges that we believe greater integrated working
as a system will help us to tackle. We already have a People Board and have developed
local plans setting out how we will deliver the ambition of having more people, working
differently, in a compassionate and inclusive culture. Over the next few months these will

=

Page 52 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

be aligned with the ICS Partnerships’ plan and then refreshed annually taking into
account national priorities.

e Digital and analytics function: a comprehensive review of data and analytics systems,
capabilities and operating models across the ICS has recently been completed, with
recommendations and next steps, which have now been signed off by the ICS Executive
Group. This work will focus on developing a core resource across Kent and Medway to
take forward the future strategic and operational priorities relating to both the analytical
and digital functions. The Kent and Medway Digital Board will take ownership of the
analytics strategy, reporting in to the NHS ICS Body. It will also ensure digital data and
technology allows information to flow throughout the system; facilitating collaboration
and enhancing population health focussed decision making. As an ICS we will build on
innovation and underpin integration to:

e Ensure adherence by partners to standard and processes to allow
interoperability.

o Cultivate a cross cutting system intelligence function.

e Agree a plan for embedded Population Health Management capabilities.

¢ Refresh the digital and data governance, to ensure better join up with the clinical
strategy, and with initiatives in general practice and social care.

e Implement clinically led programmes that support clinical transformation.

e Investin training and upskilling workforce.

e Population Health Management: Our work to develop PHM is progressing well, with
involvement in wave three of the NHSEI development programme starting in July. We
will build capacity and capability by working across all tiers of the system to transform
service delivery around key population groups:

e Supporting and sustaining changes to integrated care delivery - through PCNs,
community, acute and mental health providers, public health and social care
teams; to achieve demonstrably better outcomes and experience for selected
population cohorts and support knowledge transfer to spread the approach to
other cohorts.

e Advancing the system’s infrastructure and building sustainable capability across
all tiers of the system which supports a focus on proactive population health
management and tackling unwarranted risk and variation.

e Other assumptions:

e At system and place we will need to continually demonstrate effective clinical,
professional and public involvement in decision making within organisations and
partnerships. Work is underway to develop our models of clinical and public
engagement with plans to be agreed by September 2021 and implemented for
April 2022.

Page 53 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e National guidance is awaited on the relationship between the ICS NHS Body and
ICPs and provider collaboratives, including leadership roles and responsibilities.
However, based on published guidance, it is anticipated that this may include
provision for joint committees and/or committees of the ICS NHS Body where
appropriate. Subject to guidance we will be developing an ICP framework that
applies consistent core requirements across each of the four ICPs whilst enabling
local flexibility where this is more beneficial. Notwithstanding any delegation or
assignment of functions or responsibilities to ICPs or provider collaboratives, it is
expected that the ICS NHS Body will remain accountable.

As such, the governance and leadership arrangements will be designed to
support effective delivery of these functions and responsibilities with clear
arrangements in place for assurance.

6.2 The ICS Partnership

6.2.1 Responsibilities of the ICS Partnership

It is clear in the White Paper and NHSEI design framework that the ICS Partnership will have
wider responsibilities than our current ICS Partnership Board. Similar to existing arrangements
the new ICS Partnership will operate as a forum that brings partners together from across
system, but membership will need to be wider to take account of the new mandated
responsibilities:

e Agreement and oversight of delivery of an integrated care strategy for improving health
and wellbeing across Kent and Medway, built bottom-up from local assessments of need
and assets identified at place level, with a specific focus on reducing inequalities and
addressing the consequences and lessons from the recent pandemic.

e Aligning partner ambitions through convening and involving all stakeholders across
health, social care and more widely across sectors in developing strategy and action to
improve health and wellbeing and wider socio-economic conditions for our population.

6.2.2 Partnership principles

Our ICS Partnership will play a key role in nurturing the culture and behaviours of a system that
works together to improve health and care for local citizens. In line with current national
thinking, the ICS Partnership will give due consideration to the ten key partnership principles:

e Come together under a distributed leadership model and commit to working together
equally.

e Use a collective model of decision-making that seeks to find consensus between system
partners and make decisions based on unanimity as the norm, including working though
difficult issues where appropriate.

e Operate a collective model of accountability, where NHS and local government partners
hold each other mutually accountable for their respective contributions to shared
objectives.

==,

Page 54 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e Agree arrangements for transparency and local accountability, including for example
meeting in public with minutes and papers available online.

e Focus on improving outcomes for people, including improved health and wellbeing and
reduced health inequalities.

e Champion co-production and inclusiveness throughout the ICS.

e Support the triple aim, the legal duty on statutory bodies to collaborate and the principle
of subsidiarity (that decision-making should happen at the most local level that is
appropriate).

e Ensure place-based partnership arrangements are respected and supported, and have
appropriate resource, capacity and autonomy to address community priorities, in line
with the principle of subsidiarity.

e Draw on the experience and expertise of professional, clinical, political and community
leaders.

e Create a learning system, sharing improvements across the ICS geography and with
other parts of the country, crossing organisational and professional boundaries.

Importantly, the ICS Partnership will need to champion local engagement, inclusion,
transparency and tackling inequalities in ways which deliver our collective ambition.

6.2.3 Accountability and leadership

As a mutual forum that brings partners together, the ICS Partnership will be formally
accountable to member organisations, with decision making authority limited to that delegated
to each member by their respective organisation.

The ICS Partnership will be established by Kent County Council, Medway Council and the ICS
NHS Body, along with partner organisations. It will evolve from existing arrangements and with
mutual agreement on its terms of reference and ways of operating and administration. Based

on recently published guidance, this may be a Joint Committee of the three statutory bodies. A
formal decision will be confirmed by September 2021.

Discussion with both councils are continuing during the summer in terms of the relationship
between the ICS Partnership and the two existing Health and Well-being Boards, recognising
the commitment between all partners for closer collaboration and integration where this benefits
local people. This will also be dependent on further national guidance.

Early discussions have commenced about appointment of an ICS Partnership Chair. The local
authorities and NHS partners will work together to select a Partnership Chair and define their
role, term of office and accountabilities. To provide greater scope for democratic representation,
the ICS Partnership Chair may not be the Chair of the ICS NHS Body.

Page 55 m‘
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

In line with wider national expectation, membership of the Kent and Medway ICS Partnership is
expected to include local government, healthcare organisations, voluntary, community and
social enterprise sector partners; social care providers and organisations with a relevant wider
interest, for example housing, education and leisure. For clarity, this has yet to be agreed by
partners, as we are awaiting further national guidance. However, there is a commitment to
ensure the ICS Partnership is fully inclusive. In addition, as a key forum for setting strategy and
outcomes, the ICS Partnership will be transparent with formal sessions held in public.

Given the size and complexity of Kent and Medway, it is likely that the ICS Partnership will have
a large membership. Our governance review over the summer and autumn will confirm how
this can be most effectively established, possibly through the use of sub-groups and/or other
networks, to ensure effective discussion and decision making within the remit of the ICS
Partnership.

6.3 The ICS NHS Body

6.3.1 Responsibilities of the ICS NHS Body

The design of the ICS NHS Body functional model is being based on the key duties, functions
and responsibilities as outlined by national guidance.

The board of the ICS NHS Body will be responsible for ensuring that the organisation meets its
statutory duties, which will include supporting achievement of the triple aim, improving quality of
services, reducing inequalities, ensuring public involvement, obtaining clinical and public health
advice in strategic change and pathway developments, and promoting innovation and research.
More specifically, responsibilities will include:

e Developing a plan to meet the health needs of the population within their area, having
regard to the ICS Partnership’s strategy.

e Allocating resources to deliver the plan across the system.

e Establishing joint working arrangements with partners that embed collaboration as the basis
for delivery of joint priorities within the plan.

e Establishing governance arrangements to support collective accountability between partner
organisations for whole-system delivery and performance, underpinned by the statutory and
contractual accountabilities of individual organisations, to ensure the plan is implemented
effectively within a system financial envelope set by NHS England and NHS Improvement.

e Arranging for the provision of health services in line with the allocated resources across the
ICS through a range of activities including:

e Putting contracts and agreements in place to secure delivery of its plan by providers.

e Convening and supporting providers (working both at scale and at place) to lead
major service transformation programmes to achieve agreed outcomes.

e Working with local authority and VCSE partners to put in place personalised care for
people.

=

Page 56 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e Leading system implementation of the People Plan by aligning partners across the ICS to
develop and support a ‘one workforce’ approach, including through closer collaboration
across the health and care sector, and with local government, the voluntary and community
sector and volunteers.

e Leading system-wide action on data and digital: The ICS NHS Body will work with partners
across the NHS and with local authorities to put in place smart digital and data foundations
to connect health and care services and ultimately transform care to put people at the centre
of their care.

e Using joined-up data and digital capabilities to understand local priorities, track delivery of
plans, monitor and address variation and drive continuous improvement in performance and
outcomes.

e Working alongside councils to invest in local community organisations and infrastructure
and, through joint working between health, social care and other partners ensuring that the
NHS plays a full part in social and economic development and environmental sustainability.

e Driving joint work on estates, procurement, supply chain and commercial strategies to
maximise value for money across the system and support wider goals of development and
sustainability.

e Planning for, responding to and leading recovery from incidents (EPRR), to ensure NHS and
partner organisations are joined up at times of greatest need, including taking on incident
coordination responsibilities as delegated by NHS England and NHS Improvement.

e Functions NHS England and NHS Improvement will be delegating and transferring including
commissioning of primary care services and appropriate specialised services.

Relevant statutory duties of CCGs regarding safeguarding, children in care and special
educational needs and disabilities (SEND) will transfer to the ICS NHS Body. In addition, it is
expected that all current, still relevant, CCG functions and duties, assets and liabilities will
transfer to the ICS NHS Body.

Additionally, through the work we have done locally on system development, we have identified
the following important features of how the ICS NHS Body will exercise the above
responsibilities and add value (as detailed in our ICS accreditation submission):

e Defining population health priorities and outcomes for Kent and Medway and tackling health
inequalities, starting with analysed data to develop an understanding of population needs,
setting a strategy focused on those outcomes, working at a system level but recognising a
need for tailoring at place level.

e Ensuring involvement with local people to set the priorities for outcomes planning.

e Ensuring strong clinical and professional leadership working with our staff and local people
to improve services and outcome and reduce inequalities and unwarranted variations in
quality.

e Management of finances within a collective control total and oversight of spend to ensure
alignment to priorities (via Kent and Medway Finance Group).

=

Page 57 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e Working with NHSEI specialised commissioning teams to manage operating model and
assurance framework for populations accessing services from outside of Kent and Medway.

e Facilitating and leading on the development of a system approach to Quality Improvement.

In advance of further system discussions during the summer and autumn, a draft ICS Body
directorate functional model has been developed with an approach of mapping functions
against the purposes of an ICS, to begin to further outline the ICS NHS Body’s form. This is
detailed at Appendix 3.

6.3.2 Leadership and accountability

Formal accountability will be to NHS England for the delivery of the organisation’s duties and
functions as set out in its Constitution, Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegation and other
primary policies. Locally the ICS Partnership will hold the ICS Body and the ICPs, provider
collaboratives and individual health and care providers to account for the delivery of the
system’s integrated care strategy.

Based on national guidance, it is likely that the Board of the Kent and Medway ICS NHS Body
will be made up as a minimum of the following roles:

o Independent Chair
o Two Independent Non-Executive Directors
J Four members drawn from local partners:

e one member, ideally at CEO level, drawn from NHS trusts who provide services
within the ICS’s area;

e one member drawn from GP providers from within the area of the ICS NHS
Body;

e (two members) one drawn from each of KCC and Medway Council. This could
be the CEO, Director of Social Services or the Director of Public Health

o A Chief Executive Officer
o A Chief Finance Officer

o A Medical Director

o A Chief Nurse

The final number of roles on the Board will be agreed with ICS partners during the summer.

The appointment of the Chair and Chief Executive Officer will be subject to national guidance.
It is expected that both of these roles will be appointed to by October 2021. Other executive
and director leadership roles will be appointed based on national ICS guidance, stipulations in
the model Constitution and national and local HR frameworks.

Following ICS accreditation we have been developing a set of structured options for the new
role of Medical Director within the ICS Body with a defined set of directorate responsibilities.

Page 58 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

Stakeholders are currently being engaged on the appraisal of the options, with a view to
advertising this role in the autumn as part of the leadership appointment process.

Outside of the committee structures, the day to day operational model and directorate working
of the NHS Body will be for the Chief Executive to determine in consultation with members of
the Board and wider partners.

The merger of the previous CCGs and subsequent restructuring during 2020, which recognised
the direction of travel towards a single system with four ICPs, puts Kent and Medway in a
stronger position than many other areas. Therefore, notwithstanding the discussions that need
to take place over the summer regarding functional model in readiness for April 2022, current
planning assumptions are that any need for significant reorganisation within the NHS ICS Body
at this time will be minimal.

6.3.3 Committees and decision making

Membership of decision making and advisory groups within the NHS ICS Body and across the
wider system, will depend on the local context and requirements. Where appropriate they will
incorporate representation of clinical and professional leaders, local people and service users;
and provider representation from across health, social care and the voluntary and community
care sectors.

In particular, it is expected that legislation will allow ICS NHS bodies flexibility in how they
establish committees and in particular, that we are likely to be able to appoint individuals who
are not ICS Body Board members or staff of the organisation to be members of a committee.
This would enable, for example, other clinical and professional leaders, ICP and collaborative
directors, and local non-executive directors to become members of the ICP Body committees.
We are proactively looking at these opportunities to ensure appropriate partnership involvement
whilst maintaining effective and efficient governance.

The ICS NHS Body will maintain a ‘functions and decision making map’ articulating where
accountability and decision making sits/flows, including any new commissioning functions
delegated or transferred by NHS England. This may be required to form part of the
organisation’s Constitution which will be formally approved by NHSEI.

Alongside the statutory committees of the Board (Audit and Remuneration committees):

e other decision making committees with responsibility for quality, performance and
financial assurance will be established.

e advisory committees regarding the discharge of certain statutory duties, such as local
people involvement are likely to be established.

e other system forums that provide direct influence in decision making, such as the
clinical and professional forum, the People Board and system service improvement and
delivery groups, will also link in to the ICS Body and Partnership governance structure.

=

Page 59 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



@ Transforming
:J health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

e dependent upon the legislation and local discussions, ICPs may become committees of
the ICS NHS Body with decision making responsibilities delegated through the scheme

of delegation (see below).

e joint committees may also be established where joint decision making is required, for
example with NHS England for other delegated services such as pharmacy and
dentistry.

The governance review to be completed by the end of September will confirm these proposals.

As previously noted, the outcomes from the recent engagement exercise, alongside the design
principles, will be actively played in to the future governance framework and committee
structure, with a particular focus on clear articulation of remit, roles and responsibilities;
interdependencies; and importantly inclusive, equitable stakeholder involvement.

6.3.4 Relationship between ICS Body and ICPs

Following confirmation in the ICS design framework, the ICS NHS Body will agree with local
partners the membership and form of governance that ICPs adopt, building on existing local
configurations and arrangements. The NHS ICS Body will remain accountable for NHS
resources deployed at place-level and governance and leadership arrangements will need to
support safe and effective delivery of the Body’s functions and responsibilities. The possible
governance arrangements an ICS Body could establish for ICPs include:

e Consultative forum, informing decisions by the ICS NHS Body.
e A committee of the ICS NHS Body, with delegated authority.

e Joint committee of the ICS NHS Body and one or more statutory provider(s), where the
relevant statutory bodies delegate decision making to the joint committee.

e Individual directors of the ICS NHS Body having delegated authority (the director could
be a joint appointment with delegated authority from respective bodies).

e Lead provider arrangements.

0,

As we work through the functional design and
governance architecture during the summer, system
leaders will consider how best to approach and adopt
these arrangements, whilst maintaining the principle of
subsidiarity and local autonomy.

Page 60

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

7 The transition from CCG to ICS NHS Body

This section principally relates to the technical and administrative close down of the current
CCG and transfer of responsibilities to the NHS ICS Body. Elements of this will be undertaken
in partnership with stakeholders outside of the CCG, for example development of the
constitution, functional architecture and governance framework; whilst other elements relate to
critical internal operational and corporate deliverables, such as the transfer of staff and close
down of financial ledgers.

The merger of the eight Kent and Medway CCGs in 2020 and subsequent restructuring has
established a structure that includes system and place facing functions and directorates with
system development responsibilities beyond core CCG statutory responsibilities. This minimal
need to restructure and recent experience of closing down CCGs and transitioning staff to a
new organisation puts us in a strong position for managing the transition. Key areas have been
outlined and learning established from the merger, which will support the safe and successful
transfer.

A significant amount of ‘transactional’ planning and implementation is underway to deliver a
safe transition. This includes:

e Development of the ICS NHS Body Constitution, Standing Orders, Standing Financial
Instructions, Schemes of Delegation, and primary corporate policies.

e  Appointment to Board and leadership roles and review and alignment of directorate
responsibilities.

e  Establishment of the ICS NHS Body governance framework, including the Board,
committees, sub-committees and associated arrangements.

e Transfer of all assets and liabilities including: all information, IT, HR, contracts, estate,
litigations, etc.

e  Establishment of all corporate governance arrangements, including for example
indemnity, legal and constitutional, regulatory assurance, audit and risk and
compliance obligations.

e TUPE transfer of staff and associated HR arrangements including HMRC and pension
transfers.

e NHS Digital transfers, including transfer of arrangements for CCG and GP practice
information

e Financial close down of CCG ledgers and re-opening of new accounts, including
potential significant work with SBS, suppliers and contracts.

e Marketing, communications and engagement transfer, including website and intranet
arrangements, signage, branding, etc.

Page 61

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021



@ Transforming
y health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

We will manage this in the same way as our successful merger of the eight CCGs in April 2020.
A working group has already been established with senior managers and subject matter experts
from across all CCG directorates and a line-by-line implementation plan has been developed.
The plan will continue to develop as more national guidance confirms requirements.

A detailed plan for each transition workstream will manage and track requirements to enable a
safe transfer of people and services. The main work streams for the technical transition are:

Transition Theme (underpinned by detailed project plan) Lead Executive Director

Governance and decision making changes and transition Mike Gilbert, Corporate Affairs

ICS leadership, people processes and OD Becca Bradd, People and OD

Functional model
for the ICS body

Changes to commissioning

Wilf Williams, Accountable Officer

Changes to analytics operating model

Morfydd Williams, Digital

Creation of Medical Directorate

Wilf Williams/ Becca Brad

Digital and data transfer / transition Morfydd Williams, Digital

Procurement and contracting Ivor Duffy, Finance

Finance Ivor Duffy, Finance

Lisa Keslake, System Development and

Oversight/assurance — set up Assurance

Becca Bradd / Tom Stevenson,
People, OD / Communications

Engaging with staff and stakeholders on the transition

Notwithstanding the need to confirm system functional responsibilities by the end of September,
our planning assumption for April 2022 is for minimal reorganisation/restructuring. Within this
we will make sure the model we put in place is dynamic and able to respond to the
developmental approach being taken by ICPs and provider collaboratives; which may at some
point in the future result in greater formal delegation of responsibilities and ICS NHS Body
resources (including staffing).

Having merged eight CCGs in April 2020 and undertaken a major restructure we are not
envisaging any major structural changes within the transition period. We are working through
the recently published guidelines on the ‘employment commitment’ for appropriate staff. We
will be joining the South East HR partnership group to work with other organisations to affect
the change to an ICS structure. We continue to work in partnership with our staff side
colleagues and our HR Directors are due to meet again in early July.

Page 62 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 O



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

8 Communications and Engagement

The Kent and Medway system has an established network across its NHS communications and
engagement teams which has been strengthened by close joint working through the pandemic.
We will use this network, together with a wider network covering all Local Resilience Forum
partners, to make sure ICS transition communications and engagement activities reach all
audiences.

A dedicated ICS transition bulletin is being established to share key progress and gather
feedback from stakeholders through the next stages of transition. Our objectives for
communications and engagement on the transition were agreed by the CCG Governing Body in
May 2021:

1. Deliver timely and effective communications on the transition of K&M CCG to a new ICS
NHS Body to all audiences.

2. Develop, agree and implement a patient and public engagement framework for the
Integrated Care System that incorporates principles of co-design and co-production,
community development and on-going dialogue with patients and the public.

3. Develop, agree and implement the approach to shared responsibility across ICS
partners for resourcing communications and engagement requirement at all ICS levels.

4. Develop, agree and implement an overarching communications and engagement
strategy for the ICS, focussed on supporting delivery of the nine ICS priorities.

5. Ensure smooth transition of statutory duties to engage and consult from the CCG to the
new ICS NHS Body with no interruption to live engagement projects.

6. Establish communications and engagement tools and channels for new ICS NHS Body
and ICS Partnership.

A list of core deliverables, timelines and measures of success has been developed. A further
detailed action plan is being developed in July.

Internal Communications on CCG to ICS Body Transition

We have good internal communications and engagement channels in the CCG and through the
communications teams of all ICS partners. Specifically for CCG colleagues facing the transition
to a new organisation we will continue our:

e Monthly executive led webinars (regularly attended by 300 people)

e A leadership forum of 70+ service and team leaders with regular meetings and online
discussion channel; with key messages shared for cascade across all teams

e Weekly news bulletin and fortnightly Accountable Officer blog

e Staff networks and a newly established People Partnership Board

e A staff portal (intranet)

e Executive video updates

Page 63 m
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

9 Risks and the risk management approach

Risks directly relating to the CCG transition to the ICS NHS Body are managed through the
CCG risk management framework, risk registers and board assurance process. Wider risks
relating to ICS development and transition are managed through respective programme SROs
and their teams up to the current System Executive Group.

A draft assurance framework for the transitional work is currently being developed and will be
presented to the executive group in July and Partnership Board in early August. Alongside this,
work is about to commence with an external partner to develop a long term system risk
management and Partnership assurance framework. This is not a simple transfer of
organisational risks and assurance challenges, but will require a shift in culture in terms of
agreeing those material issues that will impact on system and place based priorities, and
agreement of where risk ‘sits’ and who ‘owns’ this. This type of system-wide risk management
and assurance framework has not yet been developed across any of the south east ICS’: once
developed, we expect to share the outcome with partnering systems.

With regard to transition and preparations for April 2022, the following headline risks and
mitigations have been identified (risk scores are impact if risk materialises x likelihood):

1. Delays in approval of the Parliamentary Bill and/or national guidance particularly relating
to ICS Constitution, HR Framework and wider ICS mandated guidance leading to
insufficient time to agree and implement final governance models and architecture.

(4 x 3) Current structures and programme arrangements are such that local
decisions and implementation should not be adversely affected, unless material changes or
a lack of fundamental guidance is extremely delayed

2. Alack of clarity in national guidance could impact on local partners reaching agreement
on key governance and constitutional matters, leading to material delays in ICS
implementation and/or a lack of clarity/consensus that will materially impact on future
relationship and delivery arrangements

(4 x 3) Whilst there will inevitably be local discussions and some ‘negotiation’
on roles, responsibilities and associated governance arrangements, there is a growing level
of maturity and partnership working in the system, that should highlight any key
differencesl/issues and effectively work through these. The risk becomes greater if national
guidance is delayed.

3. Key leadership appointments to the ICS NHS Body are delayed leading to growing
unrest amongst existing system leaders and an inability to make important decisions on
future working arrangements.

Red / 16 (4 x 4) National guidance on the HR framework and appointment to the key
leadership roles, such as ICS NHS Body Chair and CEO, are awaited. Whilst local
discussion on potential mitigating actions is taking place and we are involved in the national
engagement, the likelihood of this risk materialising is dependent on the national timetable
and process.

=

Page 64 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

4. There is arisk that critical operational and tactical priorities across the system —
including a third wave of the pandemic and extended vaccination programme - will take
priority and impact on the capacity of system leaders to effectively engage in the
development of the ICS across all layers (system, place, collaborative, neighbourhood),
leading to a lack of consensus and/or clarity on authority, remit and governance. This
includes clinical and professional and wider system leadership capacity.

Red / 15 (5 x 3) Staff recuperation remains an issue, with all organisations focusing on
balancing operational delivery with staff recovery. Effective arrangements are in place to
manage this risk within each organisation. However it remains an issue that needs close
attention. Organisational development plans for system, ICPs and PCNs are in place and
will be enhanced over the summer months. Targeted development and discussion on
‘knotty issues’ will be prioritised as these materialise.

5. There is concern about the timing, scale and available resourcing of those functions
likely to be delegated to systems by NHSEI, leading to systems being delegated
responsibilities with sufficient time, capability or resource to effectively manage these,
resulting in an inability to effectively manage new services.

(4 x 3) Close discussions with regional NHS England colleagues will continue
over the summer months to understand the timing and phasing of any delegation. Learning
the lessons from GMS contract delegation, effective resourcing of these functions,
particularly the availability of experienced subject matter experts is the primary risk,
alongside management capacity and capability to manage issues and challenges as they
are subsequently identified.

6. Loss of key staff and clinical membership during transition, leading to organisational
instability, deterioration of assurance and a loss of corporate memory, resulting in the ICS
NHS Body not being able to meet its statutory duties and corporate responsibilities.

(4 x 3) CCG transition programme in place with lead executives and functional
leads; CCG and system development programme defined and played in to forward
planners; People and OD plan and staff engagement plans developed; regular staff
briefings; Regional approach on critical staff messaging and national workforce guarantee.
Functional design (ICS/ICP/collaborative) yet to be completed — this will give staff further
assurances once complete alongside senior leadership appointments. Continuous
programme of staff involvement, engagement and communication, including GP
membership; Pace of development programme for ICS, ICPs and PCNSs to be increased,
programming and completion of functional design during the summer.

7. There is arisk that the system partners do not engage in meaningful discussions about
forming and developing effective and innovative provider collaboratives. This will
impact on the governance development for the ICS as well as hindering the ability of the
system to deliver parts of the operational strategy.

Red / 16 (4 x 4) A National work stream focussing on provider collaboratives has been
created and the CCG and its partners will receive guidance and direction from this.

Pageg 65 m‘
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



%~ Transforming
') health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

10 Conclusion and next steps

The Kent and Medway system is progressing well in developing the new model of Integrated
Care Systems. We are building on the excellent partnership working across the NHS and with
wider health and care partners which has been so critical in responding to the pandemic.

As a sustainability and transformation partnership we made good progress with service
transformations to improve health and healthcare for local people. As an ICS we are now
taking this to the next level and as our shared vision states: we will work together to make
health and wellbeing better than any partner can do alone.

Following the recent publication of the ICS Design Framework, local design and governance
decisions will now be made to continue developing the system operating model. We are
continuing our extensive engagement exercise with all ICS partners over the summer to ensure
that we co-design a governance and operating model that supports all partners to work together
to tackle our shared challenges and deliver on our agreed priorities.

At the end of September 2021, we expect to have completed the Kent and Medway governance
review and have our approach to system architecture and governance signed off by the current
ICS Executive Group and ICS Partnership Board.

As noted in earlier sections, critical programmes of work taking place in coming months include:

¢ Reconfirming the level of ambition at system, place and collaborative level and
completion of the first phase of the functional design work in order to inform April
2022 architecture — to be completed by 30 September 2021.

e Comprehensive review of the system governance framework to be timetabled by
the end of June and completed by 30 September 2021. This will include discussions
with Kent County Council and Medway Councils on future working relationship and
potential areas for greater joint working.

e  Develop our HR framework and transition plan detailing a step by step approach to
transition affected staff to the ICS NHS Body. This will also detail our plans for
recruitment to the ICS NHS Body Chair, Chief Executive and other Executive Board
roles. First draft by end July 2021.

e Re-establish a Clinical and Professional Forum with a clear articulation of remit,
authority and the clinical and professional governance framework that will sit around it
at place and service delivery level, by 30 August 2021.

e Establish a patient and public engagement framework by December 2021.

e  Further development and prioritisation of the Organisational Development
programme for all layers of the system from June 2021.

We will regularly review our transition and development plans to ensure key milestones are
being met and decisions are made at the identified decision points.

==,

Page 66 %
Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021 e



) Transforming
\..J health and social care
J

in Kent and Medway

Further detail on our progress so far and next steps for ICS
transition in Kent and Medway are set out in the supporting
documents:

e Appendix 1 - Stakeholder engagement initial discussions
Summary of key issues relating to the establishment of an ICS gathered through extensive
engagement with ICS partners through April and May 2021.

e Appendix 2 - The K&M System and ICS Body Transition and Development Plan
High level overview of the transition work programme. Highlights key milestones for
delivery and decision points between June 2021 and the end of March 2022. Detailed
plans for each of the programme areas are available on request.

e Appendix 3 - Our draft ICS NHS Body functional model
Initial views on functions that will be the responsibility of the ICS NHS Body, subject to any
future decisions on delegation to ICPs or provider collaboratives.

e Appendix 4 - ICS development excerpt from our nine system priorities
Plans on a Page covering the four system priorities that directly link to our ICS transition
programme.

e Appendix 5 - Additional documents and products development plan
Details of the Kent and Medway ICS key documents and products list that will be
developed as part of our transition journey.

L

Pagg 67

Kent and Medway ICS development plan — 30 June 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

From: Clair Bell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health

To: Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board — 16 September
2021

Subject: The appointment of a representative to attend meetings of the Kent

and Medway Primary Care Commissioning Group
Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of report: None
Future Pathway of report: None

Electoral Division: All

Summary: This report asks the Joint Board to note the agreement of the Medway
Health Wellbeing Board and the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board following a
request from the Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) that a
representative of the KAMJHWB attend meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary
Care Commissioning Group (PCCG)

Recommendation

The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the
decisions of the Medway Health and Wellbeing Board and the Kent Health and
Wellbeing Board:

1) that a member of the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board be
nominated to attend meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary Care
Commissioning Group’s Primary Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC) in
accordance with paragraph 4 of the terms of reference of the PCCC;

2) that James Williams, Director of Public Health at Medway attends the PCCC'’s
meetings as the representative of the KAMJHWB; and

3) that this appointment is reviewed in 12 months’ time in line with the
development of the Integrated Care Systems boards.

1. Introduction

1.1 Arequest has been received from the Kent and Medway Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) asking that a representative of the Kent and
Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board (KAMJHWB) be nominated to attend
meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary Care Commissioning Committee
(PCCCQC), in accordance with the PCCC'’s terms of reference (attached at
appendix 1 to this report). Paragraph 4.1 of the terms of reference requires the
PCCC to invite a representative of the health and wellbeing board to attend its
meetings. Paragraph 4.5.5 indicates that the representative of the health and

Page 69



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

3.1

4.1

wellbeing board can comment but not vote on matters considered at meetings
of the PCCC.

The CCG is seeking one representative from the KAMJHWB to attend meetings
in a non-voting capacity. They are particularly keen for the representative to be
involved in discussions relating to strategy and population health.

It has been suggested that having one representative would enable

engagement without creating a greater burden by asking a representative from

each local authority to attend monthly three-hour meetings of the PCCC.

James Williams, Director of Public Health at Medway has indicated his

willingness to attend these meetings subject to the agreement of Kent County

Council.

The KAMJHWB has no delegated authority to make this appointment. The

Medway Health and Wellbeing Board considered this matter at its meeting on 2

September and agreed

1) that a member of the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board

be nominated to attend meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary Care
Commissioning Group’s Primary Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC) in
accordance with paragraph 4 of the terms of reference of the PCCC,;

2) that James Williams, Director of Public Health at Medway attends the
PCCC’s meetings as the representative of the KAMJHWB; and

3) that this appointment is reviewed in 12 months’ time in line with the
development of the Integrated Care Systems boards.

A report recommending a similar agreement will be considered by the Kent
Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 16 September 2021 and its
decision will be reported verbally at the meeting of the Kent and Medway Joint
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from the implementation of the
recommendation.

Legal implications

The legal and constitutional implications are set out in the paragraphs above.
Equalities implications

There are no equalities implications arising from this report.

Recommendations

Page 70



5.1 The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the
decisions of the Medway Health and Wellbeing Board and the Kent Health and
Wellbeing Board:

1) that a member of the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board
be nominated to attend meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary Care
Commissioning Group’s Primary Care Commissioning Committee) in
accordance with paragraph 4 of the terms of reference of the PCCC,;

2) that James Williams, Director of Public Health at Medway attends the
PCCC'’s meetings as the representative of the KAMJHWB and

3) that this appointment is reviewed in 12 months’ time in line with the
development of the Integrated Care Systems boards

6. Background Documents
None.
7. Contact details
Report Author: Relevant Director:
Ann Hunter, Principal Democratic Benjamin Watts, General Counsel
Services Officer
Telephone: 03000 416814

Telephone: 03000 416287
Email: Benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

Email: ann.hunter@kent.gov.uk

Page 71


mailto:ann.hunter@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group Constitution m
Primary Care Commissioning Committee Terms of Reference Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group
Primary Care Commissioning Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Introduction

1.1 In accordance with its statutory powers under section 13Z of the National Health Service
Act 2006 (as amended) (the NHS Act), NHS England delegated the exercise of the
functions specified in Clause 3 to NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCQG).

1.2 The CCG has established the Primary Care Commissioning Committee (the Committee).
The Committee is established as a Committee of the Governing Body in accordance with
Schedule 1A of the NHS Act. The Committee will function as a corporate decision-
making body for the management of the delegated functions and the exercise of the
delegated powers.

1.3 The Committee will consider local commissioning needs within its decision making. This
will ensure that Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) and Primary Care Networks are able
to co-ordinate through general practices, community services and hospitals to meet the
needs of local people requiring care.

1.4 These terms of reference set out the membership, the remit, responsibilities and reporting
arrangements of the Committee and shall have effect as if incorporated into the
Constitution.

2.  Statutory Framework

2.1 NHS England has delegated to the CCG the authority to exercise the primary care
commissioning functions set out in Annex A in accordance with section 13Z of the
National Health Service (NHS) Act. (for information, Annex B provides the definition and

interpretation of terms in the Delegation Agreement between the CCG and NHS England)

2.2 Arrangements made under section 13Z may be on such terms and conditions (including
terms as to payment) as may be agreed between NHS England and the CCG.

2.3 Arrangements made under section 13Z do not affect the liability of NHS England for the
exercise of any of its functions. However, the CCG acknowledges that in exercising its
functions (including those delegated to it) it must comply with the statutory duties set out in
Chapter A2 of the NHS Act and including:

2.3.1 Management of conflicts of interest (section 140)
2.3.2 Duty to promote the NHS Constitution (section 14P)

2.3.3 Duty to exercise its functions effectively, efficiently and economically (section 14Q)

Page 73



2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

2.3.4 Duty as to improvement in quality of services (section 14R)

2.3.5 Duty in relation to quality of primary medical services (section 14S)
2.3.6 Duties as to reducing inequalities (section 14T)

2.3.7 Duty to promote the involvement of each patient (section 14U)
2.3.8 Duty as to patient choice (section 14V)

2.3.9 Duty as to promoting integration (section 14Z1)

2.3.10 Public involvement and consultation (section 1422)

In respect of the delegated functions from NHS England the CCG will need to specifically
exercise those functions set out below in accordance with the relevant provisions of
section 13 of the NHS Act:

2.4.1 Duty to have regard to impact on services in certain areas (section 130)

2.4.2 Duty as respects variation in provision of health services (section 13P)

Members of the Committee acknowledge that the Committee is subject to any directions
made by NHS England or by the Secretary of State.

Role of the Committee

The Committee has been established in accordance with the above statutory provisions
to enable the members to make collective decisions on the review, planning and
procurement of primary care medical services in the CCG, under delegated authority from
NHS England.

In performing its role the Committee will exercise its management of the functions in
accordance with the agreement entered into between NHS England and the CCG, which
will sit alongside the delegation and terms of reference.

The functions of the Committee are undertaken in the context of a desire to improve the
sustainability of primary care and promote increased co-commissioning to increase

guality, efficiency, productivity and value for money and to remove administrative barriers.

The Committee will have due regard to any relevant quality and safety issues which may
arise as agreed by Committee members.

The role of the Committee shall be to carry out the functions relating to the commissioning

Page 74



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

of primary medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act. This includes the following:

351

3.5.2

3.5.3

354

3.55

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8

3.5.9

3.5.10

3.5.11

3.5.12

3.5.13

3.5.14

3.5.15

GMS, PMS and APMS contracts (including procurement of PMS and APMS
contracts, monitoring of contracts, taking contractual action such as issuing
branch/remedial notices, and removing a contract)

Decisions in relation to Enhanced Services

Decisions in relation to Local Incentive Schemes

Decisions in relation to the establishment of new GP practices (including
branch surgeries) and closure of GP practices

Decisions about ‘discretionary’ payments

Decisions about commissioning urgent care (including home visits as
required) for out of area registered patients

The approval of practice mergers

Planning primary medical care services in the area, including carrying out
needs assessments

Undertaking reviews of primary medical care services in the area

Decisions in relation to the management of poorly performing GP practices
and including, without limitation, decisions and liaison with the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) where the CQC has reported non-compliance with
standards. For clarity, this excludes any decisions in relation to the
performers list

Management of delegated funds in the area

Premises costs directions functions

Oversee the implementation of the Kent and Medway primary care strategy
as it relates to the remit of the Committee

Coordinating a common approach to the commissioning of primary care
services with other commissioners in the area where appropriate

Such other ancillary activities that are necessary in order to exercise the
Delegated Functions

3.6 The Committee will also carry out the following activities:

3.6.1

Plan, including needs assessment, primary medical care services in the CCG's
geographical area

Pagg 75



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

3.6.2 Undertake reviews of primary medical care services in the CCG’s geographical
area

3.6.3 Co-ordinate a common approach to the commissioning of primary care
services generally

3.64 Approve the policies and operating procedures that the Primary Care
Operational Groups will adhere to when considering routine business items, for
example requests for a boundary change to a GP practice; and

3.6.5 Manage the budget for commissioning of primary medical care services in the
CCG's geographical area.

Membership

This Committee is constituted with a lay and executive majority, and includes a
requirement to invite a Health and Well-Being Board and Healthwatch representative to
attend (as per paragraph 97 onwards of the Managing Conflict of Interest: Revised
Statutory Guidance for CCGs 2017).

The voting membership of the Committee is as follows:

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

Independent Lay Member for Primary Care

Lay Member for Patient and Public Engagement

The Accountable Officer or their nominated deputy

The Executive Director for Health Improvement or their nominated deputy
The Chief Finance Officer or their nominated deputy

The Chief Nurse or their nominated deputy

The Governing Body independent secondary care specialist

The Governing Body independent registered nurse

The Chair of the Committee shall be the Governing Body Lay Member for Primary Care

The Vice-Chair of the Committee shall be the Governing Body Lay Member for Patient
and Public Engagement.

The Committee shall have the following standing attendees who may be invited to
comment but shall not vote:

Pagp 76



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
451 One GP member from each of the Primary Care Co-Commissioning Operational
Groups

4.5.2 The Chairs of Primary Care Commissioning Operational Groups (PCOGS)
4.5.3 An NHS England Primary Care representative

454 A Local Medical Committee Representative

455 A Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board representative

4.5.6 A Representative on behalf of Kent Healthwatch and a representative on behalf of
Medway Healthwatch

45.7 Head of Primary Care commissioning (one per each PCOG)

4.6 Officers of the CCG may nominate deputies to represent them in their absence and make
decisions on their behalf. Non-voting members may nominate deputies to attend in their
absence.

4.7 As Chair of the Audit Committee, the Independent Lay Member for Governance shall
receive all papers for the Primary Care Commissioning Committee meetings and shall
have the right to attend any meeting of the Committee, but shall not be a voting member.

4.8 Whilst not part of the quorum, Committee members should have access to appropriate
clinical and operational expertise in order to inform their deliberations, subject to the
CCG's policies on business standards and conflicts of interest requirements.

4.9 GP members shall not vote on any matter considered by the Committee. However, GP
members shall participate in Committee discussions, subject to the CCG’s policies on
business standards and conflicts of interest requirements.

4.10 The Committee may call additional individuals to attend meetings on a case by case
basis to inform discussion. The Committee may also invite or allow additional individuals
to attend meetings on a regular basis. Attendees and additional members may present at
Committee meetings and contribute to discussions, but are not allowed to participate in
any vote.

4.11 The Committee may invite or allow people to attend meetings as observers. Observers
may nhot present or contribute to any Committee discussion unless invited by the Chair of
the Committee, and may not vote.

5. Meetings and Voting
5.1 Meetings of the Committee will be open to the public unless the Chair resolves that the
public be excluded from the meeting, whether for the whole or part of the proceedings on

the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest or the interests of the
CCG by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted or for other

Page 77



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
special reasons stated in the resolution and arising from the nature of the business to be
transacted or the proceedings.

Meetings held in public will be referred to as Part 1 meetings. Meetings or parts of
meetings held in private will be referred to as Part 2 meetings.

Non-voting members, observers and the public may be excluded from all or part of a
meeting at the Chair’s absolute discretion whenever the business to be considered would
be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of:

5.3.1 The confidential nature of the business to be transacted
5.3.2 The matter being commercially sensitive or confidential
5.3.3 The matter being discussed is part of an on-going investigation

5.3.4 The matter to be discussed contains information about individual patients or other
individuals which includes sensitive personal data

5.3.5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings is to be discussed

5.3.6 Other special reasons stated in the resolution and arising from the nature of that
business or of the proceedings

5.3.7 Any other reason permitted by the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960
as amended or succeeded from time to time

5.3.8 To allow the meeting to proceed without interruption, disruption and/or general
disturbance

The Committee will operate in accordance with the CCG’s Standing Orders. When the
Chair of the Committee deems it necessary in light of the urgent circumstances to call a
meeting at short notice, the notice period shall be such as they shall specify.

The aim of the Committee will be to achieve consensus decision-making wherever
possible with the show of hands. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote.
The Committee shall reach decisions by a majority of members’ present, subject always
to the meeting being quorate. The Chair shall have a second and deciding vote, where
the vote is tied.

If an urgent decision is needed prior to the next scheduled meeting and or it is not
considered possible to call a full meeting, the Committee Chair may decide to convene a
virtual meeting. The arrangements for such meeting will be determined by the Chair in
discussion with the Executive Director of Corporate Affairs, but will normally include the
invitation of all voting and non-voting members. Where possible the details of the
meeting will be publicised in advance of the meeting unless the meeting is confidential or
of such an urgent nature that it would not reasonably be possible to do so. In all other

Pag)e 78



5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
respects the meeting will be managed in accordance with these Terms of Reference, as if
it were a planned meeting of the Committee, including the minute taking and decision
making. Any decision made virtually will be noted at the next available and appropriate
meeting of the Committee.

All members (voting and non-voting) and any other participant in the discussions are
required to declare any interest relating to any matter to be considered at each meeting,
in accordance with the CCG’s Constitution and the CCG's policies on business standards
and managing conflicts of interest. At the sole discretion of the Chair, individuals who
have declared an interest may be allowed to participate in the discussion but will not
participate in any vote and may be requested to leave the meeting for any or all of the
items in question.

Quorum

A quorum shall be four voting members, two of whom shall be independent or lay
members, one shall be a CCG officer and one shall be a clinician. The clinician members
of the committee are the Independent Nurse member of Governing Body, the
Independent Secondary Care Doctor member of Governing Body and the Chief Nurse.
For the avoidance of doubt, any other voting member of the committee who may also be
clinically qualified, will not count as a clinician for the purposes of this committee or its
qguorum. Deputies are invited to attend in the place of the regular members as required.

Deputies approved by the Chair count toward quorum requirements

Whilst not part of the quorum, the Committee shall endeavour to always have a GP
representative or a representative from the LMC in attendance, unless conflicts of interest
precludes this.

At the discretion of the Chair, members who are not physically present at a Committee
meeting but are present through tele-conference or other acceptable media, shall be
deemed to be present and count towards the quorum as appropriate. In this, the Chair
will consider an appropriate balance between demands on committee members (for
instance during any period of major incident management) and the sizeable geography of
the CCG, whilst ensuring ease of access to the meetings proceedings for members of the
press and public.

If any representative is conflicted on a particular item of business they will not count
towards the quorum for that item of business. If this renders a meeting or part of a
meeting non quorate, a non-conflicted person may be temporarily appointed or co-opted
to satisfy the quorum requirements, subject to the agreement of the Chair.

If a group of members are temporarily excluded due to a conflict of interest, and this
results in a failure to meet the requirements of paragraph 6.1, with the agreement of the
chair the requirement for that category of member to be present may be relaxed.

Members of the Committee have a collective responsibility for the operation of the

Page 79



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
Committee. They will participate in discussion, review evidence and provide objective
expert input to the best of their knowledge and ability, and endeavour to reach a
collective view.

7. Frequency and Notice of Meetings

7.1 The Committee shall meet monthly unless circumstances necessitate the need to meet
more frequently as agreed by the Committee. Meeting venues will where possible rotate
across Kent and Medway in accordance with the local agenda items.

7.2 Notice of any Committee meeting must indicate:

7.2.1 Its proposed date and time, which must be at least seven (7) days after the date of
the notice, except where a meeting to discuss an urgent issue is required (in which
case as much notice as reasonably practicable in the circumstances should be
given)

7.2.2 Where it is to take place

7.2.3 An agenda of the items to be discussed at the meeting and any supporting papers

7.2.4 If it is anticipated that members of the Committee participating in the meeting will

not be in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with
each other during the meeting

7.3 Notice of a Committee meeting must be given to each member of the Committee in
writing.

7.4 Failure to effectively serve notice on all members of the Committee does not affect the
validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

7.5 Where Committee meetings are to be held in public the date, times and location of the
meetings will be published in advance on the CCG’s website.

Where appropriate meetings held in public will be divided into two sessions:

7.6.1 Part 1a — first session to discuss Kent and Medway system agenda items

7.6.2 Part 1b — second session with a local focus on specific geographical area

7.6.3 The Chair will ensure that critical items of business from any part of the county are not

delayed should the item apply to an area that is not the specific local focus for any given
meeting.

Paq)e 80



8.1

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

111

11.2

11.3

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

Secretary

The Executive Director of Corporate Affairs or their nominated representative shall be the
Secretary to the Committee and will ensure the provision of administrative support and
advice. The duties of the Secretary include but are not limited to:

8.1.1 agreement of the agenda with the chair of the Committee and attendees
together with the collation of connected papers;

8.1.2 taking the minutes and keeping a record of matters arising and issues to be
carried forward.

Agendas and Circulation of Papers

Before each Committee meeting an agenda and papers will be sent to every Committee
member and where appropriate published on the CCG website no less than five (5)
Business Days in advance of the meeting.

If a Committee member wishes to include an item on the agenda they must notify the
Chair via the Committee’s Secretary no later than ten (10) Business Days prior to the
meeting. In exceptional circumstances for urgent items this will be reduced to five (5)
Business Days prior to the meeting. The decision as to whether to include the agenda
item is at the absolute discretion of the Chair.

Minutes and Reporting

Minutes of the Committee shall be prepared by the Committee’'s Secretariat and
submitted for agreement at the following Committee meeting.

A copy of the minutes and or a summary of Committee meetings will be presented the
CCG Governing Body as appropriate. The approved minutes will also be made available
to NHS England on request.

Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of Interest shall be dealt with in accordance with the CCG policy on business
standards and managing conflicts of interest.

The Committee shall have a Register of Business Interests that will be presented as a
standing item on the Committee’s agenda.

In accordance with 5.3, at the absolute discretion of the Chair, non-voting members may
be excluded from all or any part of a meeting where the business to be considered would
be prejudicial to the public interest. This includes issues of confidentiality and
commercial sensitivity that may require GP members to be excluded as a result of any
potential or actual conflict of interest.

Pagg 81



12.

121

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

14.1

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

Confidentiality
Members of the Committee shall respect the confidentiality requirements set out in the
CCG's Standing Orders, relevant corporate policies and these Terms of Reference unless

separate confidentiality requirements are set out for the Committee in which event these
shall be observed.

Committee meetings may in whole or in part be held in private. Any papers relating to
these agenda items will be excluded from the public domain. For any meeting or any part
of a meeting held in private all attendees must treat the contents of the meeting, any
discussion and decisions, and any relevant papers as confidential.

Decisions of the Committee will be published by the Committee except where matters
under consideration or when decisions have been made in private and so excluded from
the public domain in accordance with Clause 5 above.

Conduct of the Committee

The Committee shall undertake a self-assessment of its effectiveness on at least an
annual basis. This may be facilitated by independent advisors if the Committee considers

this appropriate or necessary.

Members of the Committee should aim to attend all scheduled meetings, but must attend
at least 75% of scheduled meetings in any financial year.

Having due regard to clause 14.1, the Chair will reserve the right to refer a matter to the
Governing Body should an item or issue arise where it is judged that the view of the
Governing Body would secure essential good corporate governance and decision
making.

Committee members, members and/or invited observers must maintain the highest
standards of personal conduct and in this regard must comply with:

13.1.1 The laws of England and Wales

13.1.2 The spirit and requirements of the NHS Constitution

13.1.3 The Nolan Principles

13.1.4 The standards of behaviour set out in the CCG’s Constitution and supporting
documents and policies, as they would be reasonably expected to know

13.1.5 Any additional regulations or codes of practice relevant to the Committee

Sub-Committees

The Committee may not delegate to a Committee or Sub-committee any functions or

Pagg 82



14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

15.

15.1

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
statutory responsibilities delegated to it by NHS England. The Committee may, however,
appoint Sub-committees and/or working groups to advise and assist it in carrying out its
functions.

The Committee may appoint tasks to such Sub-committees, working groups or individual
members as it shall see fit, provided that any such appointment is consistent with NHS
England regulations and the CCG’s Constitution and associated documents and policies,
including but not limited to Standing Orders, the Overarching Scheme of Reservation and
Delegation and the Scheme of Delegated Financial Limits. Any such appointment shall
be appropriately recorded by the Committee.

One or more Primary Care Operational Groups (PCOGs) may be established as a Sub-
Committee of the Committee. The PCOG(s) will:

14.4.1 Provide a strategic forum to develop commissioning plans and commissioning
opportunities for the development and delivery of high quality local primary care
services

14.4.2 Oversee and co-ordinate the operational delegated arrangements, supporting the
delivery of the delegated responsibilities relating to the commissioning of primary
care medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act, and

14.4.3 Assure the day to day business associated with the commissioning and
contracting of primary care medical services in line with delegated arrangements,
and delivery of the delegated functions in line with the statutory framework.

Separate terms of reference will be compiled to cover the scope of the PCOG(s) and will
be approved by the PCCC.

Officers of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee, who have the appropriate level
of delegated authority, may be able to approve PCOG recommendations outside of the
Committee meeting so long as they comply at the time with any requirements of the
Committee and any relevant operational policies in place. These decisions will
subsequently be acknowledged at the next available Committee meeting.

Review of Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Committee will be approved by Governing Body and shall be
reviewed by the Governing Body at least annually.

Approved: August 2020

Version Control:

Pagq 83



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

Version Amendment Amendment Date of
No Owner Amendment
1.0 Original Draft Company Dec 2019

Secretary
1.01 Final Draft — Post GP Members and NHSE Company Feb 20
Secretary
2.0 Approved Governing Body 02 April 2020
2.1 Content updated; 6.0, 7.6 Company 30 April 2020
Approved by Governing Body on 30 April Secretary
2020
2.3 Change in director titles Exec Director | August 2020
of Corporate
Affairs

Pagg 84



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

Annex A to Appendix 8 to
NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group Constitution

Delegated Functions

The following narrative forms Schedule 2 to the Delegation Agreement between NHS England
and the Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group pertaining to the delegation of
primary care medical services to the CCG.

“Schedule 2

Delegated Functions

Part 1: Delegated Functions: Specific Obligations

1. Introduction

1.1. This Part 1 of Schedule 2 (Delegated Functions) sets out further provision
regarding the carrying out of each of the Delegated Functions.

2. Primary Medical Services Contract Management

2.1. The CCG must:

2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

2.1.4.

manage the Primary Medical Services Contracts on behalf of NHS
England and perform all of NHS England’s obligations under each of the
Primary Medical Services Contracts in accordance with the terms of the
Primary Medical Services Contracts as if it were named in the contract
in place of NHS England,;

actively manage the performance of the counter-party to the Primary
Medical Services Contracts in order to secure the needs of people who
use the services, improve the quality of services and improve efficiency
in the provision of the services including by taking timely action to
enforce contractual breaches and serve notice;

ensure that it obtains value for money under the Primary Medical
Services Contracts on behalf of NHS England and avoids making any
double payments under any Primary Medical Services Contracts;
comply with all current and future relevant national Guidance regarding
PMS reviews and the management of practices receiving Minimum
Practice Income  Guarantee (MPIG) (including without limitation
the Framework for Personal Medical Services (PMS) Contracts Review
guidance published by NHS England in September 2014
(http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/pms- __ review-
guidance-sept14.pdf));

13
Page 85


http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/pms-review-guidance-sept14.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/pms-review-guidance-sept14.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/pms-review-guidance-sept14.pdf

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.15.

2.1.6.

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

notify NHS England immediately (or in any event within two (2)
Operational Days) of any breach by the CCG of its obligations to
perform any of NHS England’'s obligations under the Primary Medical
Services Contracts;

keep a record of all of the Primary Medical Services Contracts that the
CCG manages on behalf of NHS England setting out the following
details in relation to each Primary Medical Services Contract:

2.1.6.1. name of counter-party;

2.1.6.2. location of provision of services; and

2.1.6.3. amounts payable under the contract (if a contract sum is
payable) or amount payable in respect of each patient (if
there is no contract sum).

For the avoidance of doubt, all Primary Medical Services Contracts will be in the
name of NHS England.

The CCG must comply with any Guidance in relation to the issuing and signing of
Primary Medical Services Contracts in the name of NHS England.

Without prejudice to clause 13 (Financial Provisions and Liability) or paragraph
2.1 above, the CCG must actively manage each of the relevant Primary Medical
Services Contracts including by:

24.1.

2.4.2.

2.4.3.

244,

2.45.

2.4.6.

24.7.

managing the relevant Primary Medical Services Contract, including in
respect of quality standards, incentives and the QOF, observance of
service specifications, and monitoring of activity and finance;

assessing quality and outcomes (including clinical effectiveness, patient
experience and patient safety);

managing variations to the relevant Primary Medical Services Contract
or services in accordance with national policy, service user needs and
clinical developments;

agreeing information and reporting requirements and managing
information breaches (which will include use of the HSCIC IG Toolkit
SIRI system);

agreeing local prices, managing agreements or proposals for local
variations and local modifications;

conducting review meetings and undertaking contract management
including the issuing of contract queries and agreeing any remedial
action plan or related contract management processes; and

complying with and implementing any relevant Guidance issued from
time to time.

Enhanced Services

2.5.

The CCG must manage the design and commissioning of Enhanced Services,

14
Page 86



2.6.

2.7.

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

including re-commissioning these services annually where appropriate.

The CCG must ensure that it complies with any Guidance in relation to the
design and commissioning of Enhanced Services.

When commissioning newly designed Enhanced Services, the CCG must:

2.7.1. consider the needs of the local population in the Area;

2.7.2. support Data Controllers in providing ‘fair processing’ information as
required by the DPA,;

2.7.3. develop the necessary specifications and templates for the Enhanced
Services, as required to meet the needs of the local population in the
Area;

2.7.4. when developing the necessary specifications and templates for the
Enhanced Services, ensure that value for money will be obtained;

2.7.5. consult with Local Medical Committees, each relevant Health and
Wellbeing Board and other stakeholders in accordance with the duty of
public involvement and consultation under section 1472 of the NHS Act;

2.7.6. obtain the appropriate read codes, to be maintained by the HSCIC;

2.7.7. liaise with system providers and representative bodies to ensure that the
system in relation to the Enhanced Services will be functional and
secure; and

2.7.8. support GPs in entering into data processing agreements with data
processors in the terms required by the DPA.

Design of Local Incentive Schemes

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

The CCG may design and offer Local Incentive Schemes for GP practices,
sensitive to the needs of their particular communities, in addition to or as an
alternative to the national framework (including as an alternative to QOF or
directed Enhanced Services), provided that such schemes are voluntary and the
CCG continues to offer the national schemes.

There is no formal approvals process that the CCG must follow to develop a
Local Incentive Scheme, although any proposed new Local Incentive Scheme:

2.9.1. s subject to consultation with the Local Medical Committee;

2.9.2. must be able to demonstrate improved outcomes, reduced inequalities
and value for money; and

2.9.3. must reflect the changes agreed as part of the national PMS reviews.

The ongoing assurance of any new Local Incentive Schemes will form part of the
CCG's assurance process under the CCG Assurance Framework.

Any new Local Incentive Scheme must be implemented without prejudice to the
right of GP practices operating under a GMS Contract to obtain their
entitlements which are negotiated and set nationally.

NHS England will continue to set national standing rules, to be reviewed

15
Page 87



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

annually, and the CCG must comply with these rules which shall for the purposes
of this Agreement be Guidance.

Making Decisions on Discretionary Payments

2.13. The CCG must manage and make decisions in relation to the discretionary
payments to be made to GP practices in a consistent, open and transparent way.

2.14. The CCG must exercise its discretion to determine the level of payment to GP
practices of discretionary payments, in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Entitlements Directions.

Making Decisions about Commissioning Urgent Care for Out of Area Registered
Patients

2.15. The CCG must manage the design and commissioning of urgent care services
(including home Vvisits as required) for its patients registered out of area
(including re-commissioning these services annually where appropriate).

2.16. The CCG must ensure that it complies with any Guidance in relation to the
design and commissioning of these services.

Planning the Provider Landscape

3.1. The CCG must plan the primary medical services provider landscape in the Area,
including considering and taking decisions in relation to:

3.1.1. establishing new GP practices in the Area;

3.1.2. managing GP practices providing inadequate standards of patient care;

3.1.3. the procurement of new Primary Medical Services Contracts (in
accordance with any procurement protocol issued by NHS England from
time to time);

3.1.4. closure of practices and branch surgeries;

3.1.5. dispersing the lists of GP practices;

3.1.6. agreeing variations to the boundaries of GP practices; and

3.1.7. coordinating and carrying out the process of list cleansing in relation to
GP practices, according to any policy or Guidance issued by NHS
England from time to time.

3.2. Inrelation to any new Primary Medical Services Contract to be entered into, the
CCG must, without prejudice to any obligation in Schedule 2, Part 2, paragraph 3
(Procurement and New Contracts) and Schedule 2, Part 1, paragraph 2.3:

3.2.1. consider and use the form of Primary Medical Services Contract that
will ensure compliance with NHS England’s obligations under Law
including the Public Contracts Regulations 2015/102 and the National
Health Service (Procurement, Patient Choice and Competition) (No. 2)
Regulations 2013/500 taking into account the persons to whom such
Primary Medical Services Contracts may be awarded,;

16
Page 88



NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
3.2.2. provide to NHS England confirmation as required from time to time that
it has considered and complied with its obligations under this Agreement
and the Law; and
3.2.3. for the avoidance of doubt, Schedule 5 (Financial Provisions and
Decision Making Limits) deals with the sign off requirements for Primary
Medical Services Contracts.

Approving GP Practice Mergers and Closures

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

The CCG is responsible for approving GP practice mergers and GP practice
closures in the Area.

The CCG must undertake all necessary consultation when taking any decision in
relation to GP practice mergers or GP practice closures in the Area, including
those set out under section 14Z2 of the NHS Act (duty for public involvement and
consultation). The consultation undertaken must be appropriate and
proportionate in the circumstances and should include consulting with the Local
Medical Committee.

Prior to making any decision in accordance with this paragraph 4 (Approving GP
Practice Mergers and Closures), the CCG must be able to clearly demonstrate
the grounds for such a decision and must have fully considered any impact on
the GP practice’s registered population and that of surrounding practices. The
CCG must be able to clearly demonstrate that it has considered other options
and has entered into dialogue with the GP contractor as to how any closure or
merger will be managed.

In making any decisions pursuant to paragraph 4 (Approving GP Practice
Mergers and Closures), the CCG shall also take account of its obligations as set
out in Schedule 2, part 2, paragraph 3 (Procurement and New Contracts), where
applicable.

Information Sharing with NHS England in relation to the Delegated Functions

5.1.

This paragraph 5 (Information Sharing with NHS England) is without prejudice to
clause 9.4 or any other provision in this Agreement. The CCG must provide NHS
England with:

5.1.1. such information relating to individual GP practices in the Area as NHS
England may reasonably request, to ensure that NHS England is able to
continue to gather national data regarding the performances of GP
practices;

5.1.2. such data/data sets as required by NHS England to ensure population of
the primary medical services dashboard;

5.1.3. any other data/data sets as required by NHS England; and

5.1.4. the CCG shall procure that providers accurately record and report
information so as to allow NHS England and other agencies to
discharge their functions.

17
Page 89



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

The CCG must use the NHS England approved primary medical services

dashboard, as updated from time to time, for the collection and dissemination of
information relating to GP practices.

The CCG must (where appropriate) use the NHS England approved GP
exception reporting service (as notified to the CCGs by NHS England from time
totime).

The CCG must provide any other information, and in any such form, as NHS
England considers necessary and relevant.

NHS England reserves the right to set national standing rules (which may be
considered Guidance for the purpose of this Agreement), as needed, to be
reviewed annually. NHS England will work with CCGs to agree rules for, without
limitation, areas such as the collection of data for national data sets and IT intra-
operability. Such national standing rules set from time to time shall be deemed to
be part of this Agreement.

6. Making Decisions in relation to Management of Poorly Performing GP Practices

6.1.

6.2.

The CCG must make decisions in relation to the management of poorly
performing GP practices and including, without limitation, decisions and liaison
with the CQC where the CQC has reported non-compliance with standards (but
excluding any decisions in relation to the performers list).

In accordance with paragraph 6.1 above, the CCG must:

6.2.1. ensure regular and effective collaboration with the CQC to ensure that
information on general practice is shared and discussed in an
appropriate and timely manner;

6.2.2. ensure that any risks identified are managed and escalated where
necessary;

6.2.3. respond to CQC assessments of GP practices where improvement is
required;

6.2.4. where a GP practice is placed into special measures, lead a quality
summit to ensure the development and monitoring of an appropriate
improvement plan (including a communications plan and actions to
manage primary care resilience in the locality); and

6.2.5. take appropriate contractual action in response to CQC findings.

7. Premises Costs Directions Functions

7.1.

7.2.

The CCG must comply with the Premises Costs Directions and will be
responsible for making decisions in relation to the Premises Costs Directions
Functions.

In particular, but without limiting the generality of paragraph 7.1, the CCG shall
make decisions concerning:

18
Page 90



7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

NHS

Kent and Medway
Clinical Commissioning Group
7.2.1. applications for new payments under the Premises Costs Directions
(whether such payments are to be made by way of grants or in respect
of recurring premises costs); and
7.2.2. revisions to existing payments being made under the Premises Costs
Directions.

The CCG must comply with any decision-making limits set out in Schedule 5
(Financial Provisions and Decision Making Limits) when taking decisions in
relation to the Premises Costs Directions Functions.

The CCG will comply with any guidance issued by the Secretary of State or NHS
England in relation to the Premises Costs Directions, including the Principles of
Best Practice, and any other Guidance in relation to the Premises Costs
Directions.

The CCG must work cooperatively with other CCGs to manage premises and
strategic estates planning.

The CCG must liaise where appropriate with NHS Property Services Limited and
Community Health Partnerships Limited in relation to the Premises Costs
Directions Functions.

Part 2 — Delegated Functions: General Obligations

1. Introduction

1.1

This Part 2 of Schedule 2 (Delegated Functions) sets out general provisions
regarding the carrying out of the Delegated Functions.

2. Planning and reviews

2.1.

2.2.

The CCG is responsible for planning the commissioning of primary medical
services.

The role of the CCG includes:

2.2.1. carrying out primary medical health needs assessments (to be developed
by the CCG) to help determine the needs of the local population in the
Area;

2.2.2. recommending and implementing changes to meet any unmet primary
medical services needs; and

2.2.3. undertaking regular reviews of the primary medical health needs of the
local population in the Area.

3. Procurement and New Contracts

3.1

The CCG will make procurement decisions relevant to the exercise of the
Delegated Functions and in accordance with the detailed arrangements regarding
procurement set out in the procurement protocol issued and updated by NHS

19
Page 91



3.2.

3.3.

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

England from time to time.

In discharging its responsibilities set out in clause 6 (Performance of the
Delegated Functions) of this Agreement and paragraph 1 of this Schedule 2
(Delegated Functions), the CCG must comply at all times with Law including its
obligations set out in the National Health Service (Procurement, Patient Choice
and Competition) (No. 2) Regulations 2013/500 and any other relevant statutory
provisions. The CCG must have regard to any relevant guidance, particularly
Monitor’s guidance Substantive guidance on the Procurement, Patient Choice and
Competition Regulations

(https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment dat
alfile/283505/SubstantiveGuidanceDec2013 0.pdf).

Where the CCG wishes to develop and offer a locally designed contract, it must
ensure that it has consulted with its Local Medical Committee in relation to the
proposal and that it can demonstrate that the scheme will:

3.3.1. improve outcomes;
3.3.2.  reduce inequalities; and
3.3.3.  provide value for money.

Integrated working

4.1. The CCG must take an integrated approach to working and co-ordinating with
stakeholders including NHS England, Local Professional Networks, local
authorities, Healthwatch, acute and community providers, the Local Medical
Committee, Public Health England and other stakeholders.

4.2. The CCG must work with NHS England and other CCGs to co-ordinate a common
approach to the commissioning of primary medical services generally.

4.3. The CCG and NHS England will work together to coordinate the exercise of their
respective performance management functions.

Resourcing

5.1. NHS England may, at its discretion provide support or staff to the CCG. NHS

England may, when exercising such discretion, take into account, any relevant
factors (including without limitation the size of the CCG, the number of Primary
Medical Services Contracts held and the need for the Local NHS England Team to
continue to deliver the Reserved Functions).”

20
Page 92


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/283505/SubstantiveGuidanceDec2013_0.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/283505/SubstantiveGuidanceDec2013_0.pdf

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group Constitution
Definitions and Interpretation

The following narrative forms Schedule 1 to the Delegation Agreement between NHS England
and the Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group pertaining to the delegation of
primary care medical services to the CCG. This provides the definitions used in Schedule 2 to
the Delegation Agreement.

“Schedule 1

Definitions and Interpretation

In this Agreement, the following words and phrases will bear the following meanings:

Agreement means this agreement between NHS England and
the CCG comprising the Particulars, the Terms and
Conditions and the Schedules;

Agreement Representatives means the CCG Representative and the NHS
England Representative as set out in the
Particulars;

APMS Contract means an agreement made in accordance with

section 92 of the NHS Act;

Assigned Staff means those NHS England staff as agreed between
NHS England and the CCG from time to time;

Caldicott Principles means the patient confidentiality principles set out in
the report of the Caldicott Committee (December
1997 as amended by the 2013 Report, The
Information Governance Review — “To Share or Not
to Share?”) and now included in the NHS
Confidentiality Code of Practice, as may be
amended from time to time;

Capital shall have the meaning set out in the Capital
Investment Guidance or such other replacement
Guidance as issued by NHS England from time to
time;

Capital Expenditure Functions means those functions of NHS England in relation

to the use and expenditure of Capital funds (but
excluding the Premises Costs Directions Functions);

Pa@q 93



Capital Investment Guidance

CCG Assurance Framework

Claims

Claim Losses

Complaints Regulations

Contractual Notice

cQC

Data Controller

Data Processor

Data Subject

Delegated Functions

Delegated Funds

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

means any Guidance issued by NHS England from
time to time in relation to the development,
assurance and approvals process for proposals in
relation to:

- the expenditure of Capital, or investment in
property, infrastructure or information and
technology; or

- the revenue consequences for
commissioners or third parties making such
investment;

means the assurance framework that applies to
CCGs pursuant to the NHS Act;

means, for or in relation to the Primary Medical
Services Contracts (a) any litigation or
administrative, mediation, arbitration or other
proceedings, or any claims, actions or hearings
before any court, tribunal or any governmental,
regulatory or similar body, or any department, board
or agency or (b) any dispute with, or any
investigation, inquiry or enforcement proceedings
by, any governmental, regulatory or similar body or
agency;

means all Losses arising in relation to any Claim;

means the Local Authority Social Services and
National Health Service Complaints (England)
Regulations 2009/309;

means a contractual notice issued by NHS England
to the CCG or all CCGs (as the case may be) from
time to time and relating to the manner in which the
Delegated Functions should be exercised by the
CCG, in accordance with clause 24.3;

means the Care Quality Commission;

shall have the same meaning as set out in the
GDPR,;

shall have the same meaning as set out in the
GDPR,;

shall have the same meaning as set out in the
GDPR,;

means the functions delegated by NHS England to
the CCG under the Delegation and as set out in
detail in this Agreement;

shall have the meaning in clause 13.1;

22
Page 94



Enhanced Services

Escalation Rights

Financial Year

GDPR

GMS Contract

Good Practice

Guidance

HSCA

HSCIC

Information Law

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

means the nationally defined enhanced services, as
set out in the Primary Medical Services (Directed
Enhanced Services) Directions 2014 or as amended
from time to time, and any other enhanced services
schemes locally developed by the CCG in the
exercise of its Delegated Functions (and excluding,
for the avoidance of doubt, any enhanced services
arranged or provided pursuant to the Section 7A
Functions);

means the escalation rights as defined in clause 16
(Escalation Rights);

shall bear the same meaning as in section 275 of
the NHS Act;

means the General Data Protection Regulation

means a general medical services contract made
under section 84(1) of the NHS Act;

means using standards, practices, methods and
procedures conforming to the law, reflecting up-to-
date published evidence and exercising that degree
of skill and care, diligence, prudence and foresight
which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected
from a skilled, efficient and experienced
commissioner;

means any protocol, policy, guidance or manual
(issued by NHS England whether under this
Agreement or otherwise) and/or any policy or
guidance relating to the exercise of the Delegated
Functions issued by NHS England from time to
time, in accordance with clause 24.4;

means the Health and Social Care Act 2012;

means the Health and Social Care Information
Centre;

the GDPR, the Data Protection Act 2018,
regulations and guidance made under section 13S
and section 251 of the NHS Act; guidance made or
given under sections 263 and 265 of the HSCA, the
Freedom of Information Act 2000; the common law
duty of confidentiality; the Human Rights Act 1998
and all other applicable laws and regulations
relating to processing of Personal Data and privacy;

23
Page 95



Law

Local Incentive Schemes

Local Terms

Losses

National Variation

National Variation Proposal

Need to Know

NHS Act

NHS England

Non-Personal Data

Operational Days

Particulars

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

means any applicable law, statute, bye-law,
regulation, direction, order, regulatory policy,
guidance or code, rule of court or directives or
requirements of any regulatory body, delegated or
subordinate legislation or notice of any regulatory
body (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the
Premises Costs Directions, the Statement of
Financial Entitlements Directions and the Primary
Medical Services (Directed Enhanced Services)
Directions 2014 as amended from time to time);

means an incentive scheme developed by the CCG
in the exercise of its Delegated Functions including
(without limitation) as an alternative to QOF;

means the terms set out in Schedule 7 (Local
Terms);

means all damages, loss, liabilities, claims, actions,
costs, expenses (including the cost of legal and/or
professional services) proceedings, demands and
charges;

an addition, deletion or amendment to the
provisions of this Agreement mandated by NHS
England (whether in respect of the CCG or all or
some of other Clinical Commissioning Groups)
including any addition, deletion or amendment to
reflect changes to the Delegation, changes in Law,
changes in policy and notified to the CCG in
accordance with clause 22 (Variations);

a written proposal for a National Variation, which
complies with the requirements of clause 22.7;

has the meaning set out in paragraph 6.2 of
Schedule 4 (Further Information Sharing
Provisions);

means the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 or
other legislation from time to time);

means the National Health Service Commissioning
Board established by section 1H of the NHS Act,
also known as NHS England;

means data which is not Personal Data;

a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or bank
holiday in England;

means the Particulars of this Agreement as set out
in clause 1 (Particulars);

24
Page 96



Party/Parties

Personal Data

Personal Data Agreement

Personnel

PMS Contract

Premises Agreements

Premises Costs Directions

Premises Costs Directions Functions

Primary Medical Care Infrastructure
Guidance

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
means a party or both parties to this Agreement;

shall have the same meaning as set out in the
General Data Protection Regulation and shall
include references to Special Category Personal
Data where appropriate;

means the agreement governing Information Law
issues completed further to Schedule 4 (Further
Information Sharing Provisions);

means the Parties’ employees, officers, elected
members, directors, voluntary staff, consultants,
and other contractors and sub-contractors acting on
behalf of either Party (whether or not the
arrangements with such contractors and sub-
contractors are subject to legally binding contracts)
and such contractors’ and their sub-contractors’
personnel;

means an arrangement or contract for the provision
of primary medical services made under section
83(2) of the NHS Act (including any arrangements
which are made in reliance on a combination of that
section and other powers to arrange for primary
medical services);

means tenancies, leases and other arrangements in
relation to the occupation of land for the delivery of
services under the Primary Medical Services
Contracts;

means the National Health Service (General
Medical Services Premises Costs) Directions 2013,
as amended;

means NHS England’s functions in relation to the
Premises Costs Directions;

means any Guidance issued by NHS England from
time to time in relation to the procurement,
development and management of primary medical
care infrastructure and which may include principles
of best practice;

25
Page 97



Primary Medical Services Contracts

Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund

Principles of Best Practice

QOF

Relevant Information

Reserved Functions

Secretary of State

Section 7A Functions

Section 7A Funds

Special Category Personal Data

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group
means:
- PMS Contracts;
- GMS Contracts; and
- APMS Contracts,

in each case as amended or replaced from time to
time and including all ancillary or related
agreements directly relating to the subject matter of
such agreements, contracts or arrangements but
excluding any Premises Agreements;

means the Prime Minister’s challenge fund
announced in October 2013 to help improve access
to general practice and stimulate innovative ways of
providing primary care services;

means the Guidance in relation to property and
investment which is to be published either before or
after the date of this Agreement;

means the quality and outcomes framework;

means the Personal Data and Non-Personal Data
processed under the Delegation and this
Agreement, and includes, where appropriate,
“confidential patient information” (as defined under
section 251 of the NHS Act), and “patient
confidential information” as defined in the 2013
Report, The Information Governance Review — “To
Share or Not to Share?”);

means the functions relating to the commissioning
of primary medical services which are reserved to
NHS England (and are therefore not delegated to
the CCG under the Delegation) and as set out in
detail in clause 8.2 and Schedule 3 (Reserved
Functions) of this Agreement;

means the Secretary of State for Health from time to
time;

means those functions of NHS England exercised
pursuant to section 7A of the NHS Act relating to
primary medical services;

shall have the meaning in clause 13.18.1;

shall have the same meaning as in GDPR;

26
Page 98



Specified Purpose

Statement of Financial Entitlements
Directions

Statutory Guidance

Survival Clauses

Transfer Regulations

NHS

Kent and Medway

Clinical Commissioning Group

means the purpose for which the Relevant
Information is shared and processed, being to
facilitate the exercise of the CCG’s Delegated
Functions and NHS England’s Reserved Functions
as specified in paragraph 2.1 of Schedule 4 (Further
Information Sharing Provisions) to this Agreement;

means the General Medical Services Statement of
Financial Entitlements Directions 2013, as amended
or updated from time to time;

means any applicable health and social care
guidance, guidelines, direction or determination,
framework, standard or requirement to which the
CCG and/or NHS England have a duty to have
regard, to the extent that the same are published
and publicly available or the existence or contents
of them have been notified to the CCG by NHS
England from time to time;

means clauses 10 (Information Sharing and
Information Governance), 13 (Financial Provisions
and Liability), 14 (Claims and Litigation) 17
(Termination), 18 (Staffing), 19 (Disputes) and 20
(Freedom of Information), together with such other
provisions as are required to interpret these clauses
(including the Schedules to this Agreement); and

means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of
Employment) Regulations 2006, as amended.”

27
Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

From: Clair Bell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health

To: Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board — 16 September
2021

Subject: Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board — Co-option
of Members

Classification: Unrestricted
Past Pathway of report: None

Future Pathway of report: None

Electoral Division: All

Summary: This report asks the Joint Board to consider re-appointing Dr Bob Bowes
as a non-voting member for a further year to July 2022.

Recommendation(s):

The Joint Board is asked to consider and agree the re-appointment of Dr Bob Bowes
as a non-voting member for a further year to July 2022.

1. Introduction

1.1 The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board was established as a
joint advisory committee of the health and wellbeing boards of Kent County
Council and Medway Council under Section 198(c) of the Health and Social
Care Act 2012 for a time limited period of two years commencing on 1 April
2018. On 18 February and 26 February 2020, the Health and Wellbeing Boards
of Medway Council and Kent County Council respectively agreed to the
continuation of the Joint Board together with the terms of reference and
procedure rules set out in Appendix 1 of this report.

1.2 Paragraph 5(e) of the terms of reference of the Joint Board provide that it may
appoint other persons to be non-voting members as it considers appropriate. In
addition, paragraph 5(f) of the terms of reference provides that with the
agreement of the Joint Board, voting or non-voting members from the new
structures that are emerging in Health may also be included.

1.3 In accordance with this provision the Joint Board at its meeting on 28 July 2020
agreed that Dr Bowes be appointed in a non-voting capacity for a year to July
2021 to support to the clinical chair of the Kent and Medway CCG and in
recognition of the work he had done on system transformation and with the
Joint Board. (minute number 133 refers) This followed an earlier decision of the
Joint Board on 14 December 2018 to appoint Dr Bowes as a voting member of

Page 101



the Joint Board in his capacity as Chairman of the Strategic Commissioner
Steering Group. (minute number 645 refers)

1.4 This report asks the Joint Board to consider re-appointing Dr Bob Bowes as a
non-voting member of the Board for a further year to July 2022.

2. Financial Implications

2.1 There are no financial implications arising from the implementation of the

recommendation.

3. Legal implications

3.1 The legal and constitutional implications are set out in the paragraphs above.

4. Equalities implications

4.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report.

5.  Recommendation(s):

5.1 The Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider
and agree the re-appointment of Dr Bob Bowes as a non-voting member of the
board for a further year to July 2022.

6. Background Documents

6.1 Minutes of the meeting of the Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing
Board held on 14 December 2018 and 28 July 2020.

6.2  Minutes of the Medway Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 18 February
2020 and minutes of the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 26
February 2020.

7. Contact details

Report Author: Relevant Director:

Ann Hunter, Principal Democratic Benjamin Watts, General Counsel

Services Officer

Telephone: 03000 416814

Telephone: 03000 416287

Email: Benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

Email: ann.hunter@kent.gov.uk

Page 102



https://democracy.medway.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=4248&T=1
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.medway.gov.uk%2FmgConvert2PDF.aspx%3FID%3D4810%26T%3D1&amp;data=04%7C01%7Cann.hunter%40kent.gov.uk%7C680fa477bd1f478de1ee08d924ef4b3e%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637581432441138674%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=iT2EzfFPPLrIOYmw7G%2B65n2qa2NetWo1Adk6vetKxJM%3D&amp;reserved=0
Apologies%20for%20absence%20were%20received%20from%20Mr%20Carter,%20Mrs%20Chandler,%20Dr%20Chaudhuri,%20Mr%20Dunkley,%20Mr%20Goatham,%20Mr%20Gough%20and%20Mr%20Williams.%20Mr%20Walker%20attended%20as%20https:/eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.medway.gov.uk%2FmgConvert2PDF.aspx%3FID%3D4501%26T%3D1&amp;data=04%7C01%7Cann.hunter%40kent.gov.uk%7Cd0cc8b8b6cc34026c07d08d924ef9cfb%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637581433816498417%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=2TyHKfSkaflbCoDsDx2gOjIXHvsVPFtnev%2Bfv%2BeZnHU%3D&amp;reserved=0
Apologies%20for%20absence%20were%20received%20from%20Mr%20Carter,%20Mrs%20Chandler,%20Dr%20Chaudhuri,%20Mr%20Dunkley,%20Mr%20Goatham,%20Mr%20Gough%20and%20Mr%20Williams.%20Mr%20Walker%20attended%20as%20https:/eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.medway.gov.uk%2FmgConvert2PDF.aspx%3FID%3D4501%26T%3D1&amp;data=04%7C01%7Cann.hunter%40kent.gov.uk%7Cd0cc8b8b6cc34026c07d08d924ef9cfb%7C3253a20dc7354bfea8b73e6ab37f5f90%7C0%7C0%7C637581433816498417%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&amp;sdata=2TyHKfSkaflbCoDsDx2gOjIXHvsVPFtnev%2Bfv%2BeZnHU%3D&amp;reserved=0
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/g8297/Public%20minutes%2026th-Feb-2020%2014.00%20Kent%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=11
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/g8297/Public%20minutes%2026th-Feb-2020%2014.00%20Kent%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=11
mailto:ann.hunter@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk

Agenda Item 11

AV
Medway

Serving You

KENT AND MEDWAY JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING
BOARD

THURSDAY 16 SEPTEMBER 2021
KENT AND MEDWAY PREHABILITATION PROGRAMME

Report from: Dr Tarannum Rampal, Clinical Lead, Kent and
Medway Prehab

Author: Scott Elliott, Head of Health and Wellbeing, Medway
Council

Summary

The following paper details the progress to date of the innovative Kent and Medway
Prehabilitation service that is available for residents with a new cancer diagnosis.
The service supports individuals improve their health and wellbeing in advance of
starting their cancer treatment, which results in positive short and long term
outcomes for the patient and savings to the system.

The board are asked to formally endorse the Kent and Medway Prehabilitation
Service.

1. Budget and Policy Framework

1.1  The prehabilitation programme supports the Kent and Medway Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategy priority of “quality of life for people with long term
conditions is enhanced and they have access to good quality care and
support”.

1.2  The programme also supports the Kent and Medway Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership priorities of “investing in population health,
ensuring prevention is part of every single health and care pathway” and
“taking positive action on underlying issues, such as smoking, obesity and
alcohol consumption, reducing deaths and disability caused by cardiovascular
disease, stroke, diabetes, respiratory disease and some cancers such as lung
and colon”.

2. Background

2.1  The focus on early cancer diagnosis, increasing prevalence and genetic
profiling provides a greater focus for prehabilitation in cancer care.
Prehabilitation closely aligns with many elements of the NHS England Long-

Page 103



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Term Plan (LTP) including personalised care, screening and early diagnosis,
tackling health inequalities and maximising value.

Prehab interventions which empower patients to take control of their care are
very much aligned with the personalised care agenda. Kent and Medway
Prehab team have adopted the national priorities for increased service
delivery in the community, upstream prevention of avoidable illness and its
exacerbations (e.g. alcohol reduction, reducing obesity and smoking
cessation) and better support for patients, carers and volunteers to enhance
‘supported self-management’ particularly of long-term health conditions. With
over 70% of patients affected by cancer having other long term health
conditions (LTC) prehab encourages service users to adopt longer term
healthy lifestyle behaviours which can impact on long term health.

The need for prehabilitation, as part of the rehabilitation pathway, starts at the
point of diagnosis (and in some cases before a confirmed diagnosis) helping
patients prepare for treatment and discharge home. It can help patients get
well and stay well and addresses the practical problems caused by the
disease and treatment, helping patients become as independent as possible
and minimising the impact on carers and support services.

Prehabilitation interventions, used with population health data can help to
tackle health inequalities by offering targeted support for patients’ physical
and mental health needs. Prehab adds value through reducing short-term
harm and resource as well as potentially improving long term behaviour and
health. This maps onto the Getting it Right First Time (GIRFT) initiative across
surgery and perioperative care.

Smoking, alcohol consumption, and obesity increase the risk of the
development of cancer and other long-term conditions and are closely related
to the social determinants of health which in turn are in part geographically
determined. Kent and Medway have wards with some of the highest levels of
smoking and obesity across the South East. Barriers to high quality,
personalised care for socioeconomically deprived people include poorer
conversations with health and care professionals, less involvement in
decisions about care and treatment and less support after treatment from
community and social providers. The Prehab team can further embed
personalised care at the point of diagnosis, enhance engagement through the
cancer pathway as well as links to community support post treatment.

If prehabilitation was a desirable step in patients’ cancer journey prior to the
Covid-19 pandemic, it is indispensable in the post pandemic world. Crucial to
understanding why prehabilitation may be valuable during the recovery from a
pandemic is to recognise that the strategies that help slow the spread of
disease and perhaps reduce its overall incidence—such as social distancing
and sheltering in place—could have the unintentional effect of decreasing
physical activity and contributing to cardiopulmonary deconditioning. The
emotional turmoil from social isolation and delays in treatment have negative
consequences far beyond the immediate period. In particular, the elderly,
who are most vulnerable to pulmonary complications from coronavirus, may
show a decrease in their baseline cardiac and pulmonary fitness that could
increase morbidity and mortality.

Page 104



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

History of Kent and Medway Prehabilitation service

Following a successful pilot period within Medway Foundation Trust, the Kent
and Medway Prehabilitation service moved to a community based service in
January 2020 hosted and delivered by the Medway Public Health team, in
collaboration with Phase B C.I.C. This community based service was funded
by Kent and Medway Cancer Alliance for an initial two year period, which
ends on 31st December 2021. The service is far exceeding its annual target
of supporting 100 pre cancer treatment patients.

The service is provided by a highly experienced and knowledgeable team.
The team have established and experienced service personnel with a track
record of delivering high quality, award winning services. The service has
been cited in a number of publications. The team has also established a
trusted relationship with secondary and primary care colleagues throughout
Kent and Medway. In addition, the service has an active patient participation
steering committee, ensuring that the service continues to be influenced by
the views and experience of patients.

The multi-disciplinary team is clinically lead and due to social distancing has
been delivered virtually, with a restoration of face to face services likely to
resume at some stage in 2021, with the service maintaining a strong virtual
support offer as it is well received by patients. Newly diagnosed cancer clients
who are referred by a range of clinicians and self-referrals are supported and
supervised to become fitter, physically and emotionally in the weeks before
their treatment, also receiving nutritional, emotional and other healthy lifestyle
specialist advice. This significantly improves treatment outcomes for patients,
and leads to reductions in hospital length of stay, excess bed days and
emergency re-admissions. Crucially, the programme seeks to embed positive
lifestyle changes, meaning that the benefits to patients’ health and wellbeing
are seen beyond the period of cancer treatment in terms of techniques for a
healthier lifestyle.

Key Benefits of Prehabilitation

Prehabilitation supports people awaiting cancer treatment to prepare for
treatment.

It promotes healthy behaviours, prescribes and supervises exercise, nutrition
and psychological interventions based on a person’s needs, to help them find
their best way through.

It has a strong evidence base in its effectiveness and helps to tackle health
inequalities. Cancer Prehabilitation is aligned with the personalized care
agenda in the NHS Long Term Plan and NICE guidance
https://www.bmj.com/content/bmj/369/bmj.m1386.full.pdf

A Danish study has shown a £430 per patient saving on a prehabilitation
integrated programme compared to the standard care programme with the
reductions showing in length of stay, postoperative Primary Care and
Emergency contacts (Faithfull S, Turner L, Poole K, et al. (2019).

Prehab offers opportunities to reduce patient length of stay, reduce
complications, manage risk factors such as anaemia and malnutrition, and
allow more aggressive surgical interventions thereby reducing need to return
to surgery.

Prehabilitation encourages service users to adopt longer term healthy lifestyle
behaviours, helping to address g]éag%oi)é%ation health problems of obesity,



3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

physical inactivity and smoking, which are the largest preventable causes of
cancer. The adoption of lifestyle modification by the services’ users offers the
benefit of secondary prevention of cancer. (The service has an acceptance
and adherence rate of 84%).

The service also supports mental wellbeing often providing the only regular
social contact for patients, particularly during the pandemic restrictions. In July
2020 Public Health England estimated that having a BMI of 35 to 40 could
increase a person’s chances of dying from covid-19 by 40%, while a BMI
greater than 40 could increase the risk by 90%.

Kent and Medway Prehabilitation has delivered on its feasibility and adoption
targets and responded to the challenge of restricted face to face delivery of
interventions by becoming one of the first services globally to transit
seamlessly to a digital platform. Innovative as always, the service now offers a
complete Prehab to Rehab package for patients tailored to their baseline
capacity and tumour group.

Service delivery and outcomes

Eligible patients were referred from multiple centres to the regional
prehabilitation unit providing home-based “virtual” prehabilitation. Enrolled
patients performed prehabilitation prior to commencing cancer treatment. The
home-based programme consisted of 1) training exercises, 2) nutritional
advice, 3) medical-optimising measures (including referrals to stop smoking
and alcohol reduction services) and 4) counselling. The primary outcome was
to investigate the feasibility and acceptance of the programme.

Within the first year of the community based service 300 patients were
referred or self referred. Of those patients that were referred, 84% patients
agreed to partake. The most common reasons for non-participation included
self-perceived lack of benefit, cancer treatment beginning within weeks and
did not want to enrol unless it was face-to-face. The mean age was 67 years
old (60-73). The mean duration of the programme was 4 weeks (3-9). Paretian
classification of health change found 38% of the patients “improved” their
health status after prehabilitation (p=0.092). Patients significantly improved
self-perceived health (p=0.001), and fatigue (p=0.000).

Client feedback on the programme has been extremely positive, in terms of
the difference that having access to the programme has made to those that
have used it. A clear theme of the many positive testimonials received is that
clients are treated as individuals, and their needs fully reflected in how the
programme works for them individually. Experience and feedback from those
that have used the service is also an integral part of developing the
programme, and the provider has established a dedicated patient steering
committee, which ensures that the programme remains responsive to patient
feedback.

One testimony includes this comment from a lady who accessed the service in
2020 “My GP asked if I would like to be referred to prehabilitation as | cried
down the telephone at him. He explained a little, | said yes. It was the best
thing | could have done. | have met a wonderful team of people who have my
best interests at heatrt. It is regular ie. Every week. Same person, Roberto,

caring, thoughtful and funny. | have seen student physios, been given
Page 106



exercises, diet plans. | also talk with a counsellor, Lyndsey a lovely lady. | feel
listened to, cared about and comforted. Excellent service.”

5. Future service plans

5.1 The Kent and Medway Cancer Alliance have formally committed to funding a
one year extension to the Kent and Medway Prehabilitation Programme. The
total funding will be £315k which will enable a further 400 patients to be
treated through the programme. The extension will commence on 1 January
2022 and will end on 31 December 2022. For the duration of this extension,
the service will transfer to be exclusively delivered by Phase B C.I1.C, with
Medway Council Public Health team providing support with local delivery in
Medway and any transition assistance needed by the lead provider.

5.2 On 5 August 2021, Kent and Medway CCG Clinical Cabinet discussed the
prehabilitation service and formally endorsed it. The CCG will continue to
discuss longer term funding options to ensure this important and innovative
front line service is present for Kent and Medway residents beyond 2022.

6. Risk management

Risk Description Action to avoid or Risk
mitigate risk rating
Long term The Cancer Alliance has | Approval of a long term D2
sustainable committed to funding a funding from Kent and
funding for the scaled up service in 2022, | Medway CCG/ Integrated
service however long term and Care System
sustainable funding
needs to be secured from
the NHS system locally

7. Financial implications

6.1 There are no immediate financial implications resulting from this report. T

8. Legal implications

7.1  There are no legal implications arising from this report.

8. Recommendations

8.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to endorse and support the Kent

and Medway Prehabilitation Service

Lead officer contact

Scott Elliott

Head of Health and Wellbeing Services
01634 333012
scott.elliott@medway.gov.uk

Page 107




Appendices

www.gov.scot/news/investment-for-cancer-services/ - Prehab part of Covid 19
Cancer services Recovery Plan
https://gov.wales/rehabilitation-framework-continuity-and-recovery-2020-2021-
appendix-2-html- Prehabilitation for cancer patient part of the plans

NIHR recognises the need - https://www.nihr.ac.uk/funding/20142-
prehabilitation-living-with-and-beyond-cancer/26350
www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/local-cancer-
stats/faversham_and_mid_kent_20200210.pdf
www.macmillan.org.uk/assets/forgotten-c-impact-of-covid-19-on-cancer-
care.pdf

www.bmj.com/content/bmj/369/bmj.m1386.full.pdf
www.bmj.com/content/371/bmj.m4130
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/abs/10.1177/0310057X20947731

The feasibility of prehabilitation as part of the breast cancer treatment
pathway. Original research, F.Wu, M.El Gammal, and T. Rampal, , 2020.
PM&R, 25 Dec 2020, https://doi.org/10.1002/pmrj.12543

Getting fit for Surgery: A protocol for implementing a breast Prehabilitation
service in a district hospital. Fiona Wu, Tara Rampal et al.,2020. European
Journal of Surgical Oncology, 2020.03.099. PO60 (Abstract only)

Effects and feasibility of a prehabilitation programme incorporating a low-
carbohydrate, high-fat dietary approach in patients with type 2 diabetes: A
retrospective study. Laza-Cagigas, R., Chan, S., Sumner, D., & Rampal, T.
(2020). Diabetes & Metabolic Syndrome: Clinical Research & Reviews, 14(3),
257-263

Page 108



Agenda Item 12

From: Clair Bell, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public
Health, Kent County Council

Allison Duggal, Interim Director of Public Health, Kent County

Councll
To: Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: 16" September 2021
Subject: Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25 Strategy
Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway: KCC Health Reform and Public Health Committee, Medway
Council Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Future Pathway: N/A

Introduction:

This paper provides an update on the suicide prevention programme and includes
information on;

. The impact of Covid-19 on suicide rates and the Suicide Prevention
Programme

. The Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25 Strategy (amended
following recent public consultation)

. Kent and Medway Better Mental Health Pledge / Prevention Concordat for
Better Mental Health
. New Support Service for People Bereaved by Suicide

Recommendation(s):
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to;

1) Consider and endorse the Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25
Strategy
2) Comment on the suicide prevention programme

1. Introduction and context

1.1 The Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Programme is hosted by Kent
County Council’'s (KCC’s) Public Health department and sits within the
Public Mental Health portfolio. The majority of the funding for the
programme (approx. £480k annually) comes from the Kent and Medway
CCG, while KCC PH contribute the costs relating to hosting the programme
and the Programme Manager.

Page 109



1.2 Effective suicide prevention relies on a multi-agency approach and
partnerships. Therefore, KCC PH co-ordinates the Kent and Medway
Suicide Prevention Network of over 150 organisations, agencies, charities
and individuals living with experience of suicidal thoughts, self-harm or
bereavement by suicide.

1.3 Suicide rates in Kent and Medway have fallen slightly over recent years, at a
time when the national average has stayed virtually unchanged (Table 1).

Table 1 Age-standardised suicide rates (per 100,000) rolling three year aggregates,
deaths registered 2011 to 2019. (By area of residency, 10+, male and female)

IR 3 2T R T

England 10.1 10.1
Kent 12.0 11.6 10.5 10.0 10.3
Medway 11.7 11.2 9.7 9.4 8.3
Source:

www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/dataset
s/suicidesbylocalauthority

1.4 There is however, wide variation across Kent as seen in Figure 1 below.
Canterbury and Thanet have the highest suicide rates in the county although
once confidence intervals are applied, only Canterbury has a statistically
worse suicide rate than the national average.

Figure 1: 2017-19 3 year rolling suicide rates by District per 100,000, male & female, 10+,
usual place of residence

Compared with benchmark: Better Similar

England 10.1 H

Kent 10.3 p—

Canterbury 14. 1_—|
Thanet 13.7 {
Gravesham 13.0 I {
Folkestone & Hythe 11.9 f {
Dover 1.4 p—_—
Dartford 10.6 | 1
Tunbridge Wells 10.2 p—
Maidstone 9.8 p——

Swale 9.4 p—
Tonbridge and Malling 8.4 P

Ashford 7.0 P

Sevenoaks 6.8 P

Source: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide

Page 110


http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthority
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthority
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

The impact of Covid-19 on suicide rates and the Suicide Prevention
Programme

It is too early to speculate about the long-term impact of covid-19 on suicide
rates. While there is currently no evidence® of an increase in overall suicide
numbers, we will continue to remain vigilant particularly as the financial
protections (eg furlough, mortgage repayment pauses, eviction bans etc) are
removed. However national research has indicated that there has been
considerable impact of COVID19 on the nation’s mental wellbeing and
resilience which is why mental wellbeing and listening to people’s
experience’s remains a priority for the suicide prevention strategy and public
mental health in general.

We will also continue to monitor groups in society who may have been at
increased risk because of Covid-19. This could include people impacted by
domestic abuse or substance misuse or who are part of particular ethnic
minority communities.

The Suicide Prevention Programme responded to Covid-19 in a number of
ways, some of which are outlined below;

* We developed Real Time Surveillance System with Kent Police which
now provides weekly intelligence on suspected suicides

* We launched a new 24-hour mental health support service via text
(which has held an estimated 25,000 text conversations already)

* We increased funding for the 24-hour helpline at the heart of the
Release the Pressure campaign (over 20,000 calls last year).

* We secured additional funding for Citizens Advice to support MH
initiatives reflecting concerns over the financial impact of Covid-19

*  We moved all suicide prevention training (delivered by Mind) onto Zoom
(nearly 1000 people completed the workshops last year)

For a more detailed view of the Suicide Prevention Programme in 2020/21
please see the infographic in Appendix A

The 2021-25 Suicide Prevention Strategy

Throughout 2020, the Suicide Prevention team worked with members of the
Suicide Prevention Network to develop a draft 2021-25 Strategy (which
covers both Kent and Medway).

Following early discussions with Network members, it was clear that the
majority of stakeholders felt that the previous 2015-2020 Strategy was
effective and therefore evolution was needed rather than revolution.

Therefore the same six Strategic Priorities were rolled forward from the
2015-2020 Strategy into the 2021-25 Strategy. A seventh priority was added
around System Leadership. (Please see Figure 1 below).

! Suicide in England in the Covid-19 Pandemic — University of Manchester

Page 111


https://www.research.manchester.ac.uk/portal/en/publications/suicide-in-england-in-the-covid19-pandemic-early-observational-data-from-real-time-surveillance(52b3f849-c3f2-417f-a566-967fac574252).html

3.4  There were some changes to the high-risk groups identified in the updated
strategy. Middle-aged men continue to be the demographic group which
sees the highest numbers of suicides, but our Real Time Suicide
Surveillance has also highlighted other high-risk groups such as people who
misuse substances or who have problematic debt.

3.5 We have also completed nationally unique research highlighting the links
between domestic abuse and suicide (of both victims and perpetrators).
Therefore people impacted by domestic abuse will also be considered a
high risk group going forward.

Figure 1 The seven strategic priorities of the 2021-25 Suicide
Prevention Strategy

Tajlor approaches to
Improve mental
health and
wellbeing across the
whole population

Demonstrate
syste.m
leadership and Reduce access

quality WORKING TO to means of

improvement

across the REDUCE SUICIDE suicide
system and AND SELF-HARM

within services AS MUCH AS
= POSSIBLE

_Provide better Support
information and research, data
support to those collection and
beregved by monitoring
Suicide Support the media
indelivering
sensitive
approaches to
suicide

3.5 The 2021-25 Strategy also features supporting positive mental wellbeing
more prominently (as opposed to just responding to people in crisis) when
compared to the previous strategy. A Kent and Medway Better Mental
Health Pledge is in development (see Section 4 below).

3.6  The final major difference from the 2015 approach is the fact that we have
also produced a separate (but aligned) 2021-25 Children and Young
People’s Suicide Prevention Strategy.

Analysis from the public consultation

3.7 The draft strategy went out to public consultation between early Feb and late
March 2021. A full analysis of the responses is included in the Appendix, but
a summary is included below.

Page 112



3.8 How many people responded to the consultation?

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

e 95 responses received through the online form
e 2 additional responses received by email

Who responded to the consultation?

e Most responses were from individual residents of Kent and Medway

e A small number of schools, colleges, parish councils and voluntary
sector organisations also responded.

What was the consensus view?

e The vast majority of responses (92%) supported the Strategic Priorities
that are set out in the draft strategy

e There was also strong support for the identified high-risk groups within
the strategy

Did anyone disagree with the contents of the strategy?

e While there was broad support for the strategy, some people felt that
other groups of individuals should be considered high risk, while other
people commented that identifying any particular groups was
inappropriate and everyone should be treated as an individual

e A lot of responses highlighted that the full impact of COVID-19 on the
population’s mental health isn’t known yet, and the full economic fall out
is still to be felt, so additional monitoring and flexibility in the response
may be needed

e Some people felt that increased level of priority should be given within
the strategy to people who self-harm and who have made a suicide
attempt

How will the final strategy reflect the comments received by the

consultation?

e Greater emphasis will be given to monitoring the long-term impact of
COVID-19 on the mental wellbeing of the population

e The draft strategy and associated action plan have been amended to
take account of the feedback received.

¢ Comments will shape the way specific elements of the action plan are
delivered, including the 2021 Innovation Fund and the 2021 research
programme.

Page 113



3.13 The updated Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway; 2021-25 Strategy

Preventing suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-2025 Strategy
Updated strategy following public consultation (with updates in red)

1. Reducing the risk in high priority groups

We will continue to promote the Release the
Pressure social marketing campaign, including the
24 hour helpline and the new text support service.
Where funding allows, we will support innovative
approaches to reduce suicide and self-harm
amongst high-risk groups.

We will ensure more integrated and effective
support for individuals with both mental health and
substance misuse conditions.

We will offer more effective and sustained support
for individuals who self-harm.

We will continue to offer a range of free to access
suicide prevention or mental health training.

We will also work with all relevant partners on
specific projects to reduce the risk of suicide and self
harm in high risk groups including:

Middle aged men.

¢ People with previous suicide attempts / self harm.

2. Tailor approaches to improve mental health and

People known to secondary mental health services.
People who misuse drugs and alcohol.

People who are impacted by domestic abuse.

New high risk groups as identified by real time
suicide surveillance.

wellbeing across the whole population

We will continue to monitor the impact of Covid-19
on the mental health and wellbeing of the
population.

We will develop and implement a Kent and
Medway Mental Health Prevention Concordat for
Better Mental Health.

We will continue our integrated and multi-level
approach to reducing suicides within the higher and
further education communities in Kent and
Medway.

We will develop increased support for individuals
with problematic debt.

We will also work with all relevant partners to
improve the mental health and wellbeing in high risk
groups including:

LGBTQI+.

e Military and veterans.

People with learning disabilities.

Ethnic and religious minorities.

Individuals impacted by family breakdown.
Prisoners and other people in contact with CJS.
Families of people who self-harm.

Health care staff (who have worked through the
pandemic)

Young women (particularly pre- and post-natal)
Children and adults with neuro-development

disorders.

Kent

County

Medweay
A Council

Serving You kent.govuk

3. Reduce access to the means of suicide

* We will strengthen our Real Time Surveillance
System, ensuring we can work with partners, such
as Kent Police, Network Rail, KCC and Medway
Council Highways,. Highways England and others
to identify, intervene and respond to high risk
locations or other means.

* We will review the latest available statistics and
evidence about suicide and self-harm.

* We will conduct regular analysis of our Real Time
Suicide Surveillance, which will give us the ability
to design targeted and evidence based
interventions.

+ We will conduct or commission bespoke research
into emerging or high risk topics.

5. Support the media in delivering sensitive
approaches to suicide

* We will work with local, national and social
media outlets to promote positive stories about
mental health and help-seeking behaviours.

+ We will monitor media coverage of incidents and
remind journalists of the Samaritans' guidelines
for reporting on suicide.

+ We will ask editors and reporters to amend
inappropriate reporting.

6. Provide better information and support for those
bereaved by suicide

+ We will commission a new Support Service for
People Bereaved by Suicide.

* We will also continue to work closely with the
charity Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide with
the objective of increasing the number of groups
there are available in Kent and Medway.

7. Demonstrate system leadership and quality
improvement across the system and within services

» We will continue to develop and strengthen the
multi-agency suicide prevention networks.

+ We will continue to adopt a whole systems
approach to suicide prevention.

* We will work with commissioners and service
providers to improve access to high quality
service (for examples, through the Community
Mental Health Transformation Programme).

+ We will design and implement a 'Learning from
Suicide’ system and structure.

* We will encourage all partners to play their part
in suicide prevention.

Page 114



3.14 The updated Preventing Suicide in Children and Young People in Kent

and Medway: 2021-25 Strategy on a page

Preventing Suicide in Children and Young People in Kent and

Medway: 2021-2025 Strategy
Updated strategy following public consultation (with updates in red)

Actions in purple will be funded or led by the Suicide Prevention Team

Actions in blue will be funded or led by other partners within the system

1. Reduce the risk of suicide and self-harm in key high-
risk groups of children and young people

We will promote the recommendations made by the
2020 Thematic Analysis into children and young
Eeople suicides undertaken by the University of
ent.
We will continue to provide suicide prevention
training for people working with children and young
people to increase the probability that high risk
individuals will be identified and supported.
Where funding allows, we will support innovative
approaches to reduce suicide and self-harm amongst
high risk groups

We will also work with relevant partners to reduce the
risk of suicide and self harm in high risk groups
including:

Children and young people known to mental health
services (including the 18-25 transition to adult MH
services).

Children and young people in care and care leavers.
Children and young people in custodial settings.
Children and young people with neuro disabilities.
Children and young people who identify as LGBTQ+.
CYP who self-harm or engage in other risky
behaviour.

Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking children and young
people.

Children and young people impacted by Adverse
Childhood Experiences (ACES).

2. Tailor approaches to improve mental health and
wellbeing of all children and young people in Kent and
Medway

¢ We will continue to monitor the impact of Covid-19

on the mental health and wellbeing of the
population.

We will work with partners to support
implementation of the Kent and the Medway
Children and Young People Mental Health Local
Transformation Plans. We will also support the
implementation of the Medway Self-Harm action
plan, and the KCC adolescent strategy.

We will work with partners to ensure that all
children and young people have access to a range of
easily accessible and evidence-based support
services.

We will support the HeadStart programme to
increase resilience amongst children and young
people in Kent.

We will encourage services and education settings
to adopt a trauma informed care approach.

Kent B
County Mg 4
Counall 84 2
kent.gov.uk 4

Medway

Serving You

3. Reduce access to the means of suicide

+ We will further strengthen the Real Time
Surveillance System, ensuring we can work with
partners, such as Kent Police, Network Rail, KCC
and Medway Highways, Highways England and
others to identify, intervene and respond to high
risk locations or other means.

4. Provide better information and support to those
children and young people bereaved by suicide

+ We will commission a new all-age Support
Service for People Bereaved by Suicide.

* We will work with partners to commission a
specialist bereavement support service for
children and young people.

5. Support the media in delivering sensitive
approaches to suicide

+ We will work with local media outlets to place
positive stories about how children and young
people can improve their wellbeing.

+ We will monitor media coverage of incidents and
remind journalists of the Samaritans' guidelines
for reporting on suicide.

+« We will ask editors and reporters to amend
inappropriate reporting.

6. Support research, data collection and monitoring

+ We will work with all partners (including the
Child Death Overview Panel, Kent Police,
NELFT and social care teams) to monitor local
data relating to suicide and self-harm. This
includes establishing a new real time suicide
surveillance system and undertaking Positive
Practice Audits where appropriate.

* We will review national research, and undertake
our own detailed research projects into relevant
topics (including, online harms, the impact of
domestic abuse and suicide risk amongst young
trans people).

7. Demonstrate system leadership and quality
improvement in relation to children and young
people suicide and self-harm prevention

¢ We will facilitate the Children and Young People
Suicide and Self-Harm Prevention Network
ensuring system wide engagement and learning.

+ We will invoke the Suicide Prevention Multiple
Incident Response Protocol when appropriate to
co-ordinate a system wide response.

Page 115



4. Kent and Medway Better Mental Health Pledge / Prevention Concordat

4.1 The second priority within the new strategy is a commitment to improve the
wellbeing of the whole population. One related action is to ensure Kent and
Medway sign up to the national Prevention Concordat for Better Mental
Health. The aim of which is to galvanise, structure and raise the profile of the
work currently underway to improve the mental wellbeing of the population.

4.2 This includes our planning for World Mental Health Day (10" October 2021)
where we aim to publicly launch a new Kent and Medway Better Mental
Health Pledge and announce a wide number of signatories (eg local
authorities, charities, agencies and businesses). Each signatory will be
required to develop their own mini action plan which could include initiatives to
the support the wellbeing of their own staff as well as the people they work on
behalf of (customers, residents, patients etc).

4.3 The wording of the Pledge is as follows;
“We pledge to take action to improve the mental health of our individuals and
communities in Kent. We are proud to work with others across Kent and
Medway to do the same. To ensure we get it right, we know that we must
listen to our local population and to take the time to understand what impacts
on their wellbeing.”

4.4 In addition we will also be shortly launching the “Kent and Medway Listens”
project. This will involve working with four community organisations across
Kent to have conversations with individuals across the county, particularly
those communities which are seldom heard, about their wellbeing after 18
months of living with COVID-19. We want to know what, and how, people are
feeling, and what needs to be done (at individual, community or system level)
to improve wellbeing.

5. New support service for people bereaved by suicide

5.1 Three years’ worth of external funding has been secured to provide a new
support service for people bereaved by suicide. This service provides
emotional and practical support to individuals and families in the days, weeks
and months after the death of a loved one in suspected suicide. They can also
provide support to people who have been bereaved by suicide in previous
years. The new service (provided by an independent charity Listening Ear)
started operating in July 21 and anyone can make referrals by visiting
www.amparo.org.uk/refer/

6. Recommendation(s):
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to;

1) Consider and endorse the Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25
Strategy
2) Comment on the suicide prevention programme

Page 116



http://www.amparo.org.uk/refer/

7. Appendix
Appendix A 2020/21 Suicide Prevention Programme

Appendix 1 Supporting context and detail for KM Suicide and self-harm prevention
strategies 2021-25

Appendix 2 The detailed report analysing the responses to the public consultation
to the Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Strategy

Appendix 3 The detailed report analysing the responses to the public consultation
to the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide Prevention Strategy

8. Paper prepared by
Jessica.Mookherjee@kent.gov.uk KCC Public Health Consultant
tim.woodhouse@kent.gov.uk KCC Suicide Prevention Programme Manager

Page 117


mailto:Jessica.Mookherjee@kent.gov.uk
mailto:tim.woodhouse@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 2020/21 Suicide Prevention Programme

Kent & Medway Suicide and
Self-Harm Prevention

Programme

Reducing the risk in high priority groups

20,000 people
I_Iﬂl[lﬁd b 21,000 visitors to
l:ﬂ“lllﬁl]llr 4/1 www.releasethepressure.uk
helpline

168 feuple completed our
adult suicide prevention
training

1,339 people completed our
suicide prevention e-learning

modules
19,000 people found 218 peove compltad oue

Sll|]|llll't tl'll'llllgll OUr  suicide prevention training
el 2‘”? text Suitide Preverdion and
message _$ll|l|)l.'ll'|'. Pruareness Trawwng

Tailored approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing across the
whole population

Funded 11 community level projects via the
Saving Lives Innovation Fund

STUDENT], oo ined e
* ‘ How are
@m* m you feeling?
SU'&')Q?“ i R e
LIVes TR e e
MADE WITH * Supported delivery of over 800,000 "How
AT € are you feeling?" booklets to every
NATURE £33 e weao sg e household in Kent & Medway
— www.kentandmedwayceg.nhs.uk/mental-
wellbeing-information-hub

Page 119



Reduced access to the means of suicide

&8 Developed a new Real Time Surveillance System
g Kent partnership with Kent Police, which provides

Police rggylar insights into the latest incidents.

Supported research, data collection and monitoring

Completed nationally unique research into the relationship between domestic
abuse and suicide which is already shaping national and local policy

"We don’t know a lot - but
we know enough to know
that we should be
concerned.”

Worked with Canterbury Christ Church University on a piece of research
'Factors I]eterrmlg and Frnmuth the Decision to Attempt Suicide at Costall
ocations: A Multi-Methodological Analysis'

Supported the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide

Placed a number of positive stories on mental health in local media and
corrected insensitive reporting

Provide better information and support for those bereaved by suicide

AMPARO  “Gr s bervsved oy sucde-

support following suicide https://amparo.org.uk/refer

Distributed over 200 copies of Help is at
Hand to funeral directors across Kent &

Medway

Secured an additional £450k funding for other suicide prevention projects

NHS

e

~You we are
— withyou  Kent and Medway

Porehi/ ' @ ETH

NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust

Page 120



Transforming
'} health and social care
iIn Kent and Medway

Supporting context and detall for,;

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Strategy
2021-25,
and the Preventing Suicide in Children and
Young People in Kent and Medway: Strategy
2021-25

12T abed

This strategy has been updated following consultation feedback. It is due to go for approval this
Autumn, after which the final version will be uploaded to the consultation webpage.

If you have any comments or questions about this document please email suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Kent .
County

Transforming health and social care in Kent and Medway is a partnership of all the NHS organisations in Kent and Medway, Kent County Council and Medway Council. We
are working together to develop and deliver the Sustainability and Transformation Plan for our area. Me dway

Serving You


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Philosophy:
The ultimate aspiration
and motivation is to have
zero suicides within our
community

2e1 abed

Our objective:

To reduce suicide and self-
harm as much as possiblein
Kent and Medway




i Contents

Consultation process

Kent policy context

Tlye impact of Covid-19

Suicide statistics

Children and Young People

Release the Pressure

Research impact




It is important to understand how this strategy

H I ntrOd U CtIOn <‘ is set oué(i)r;:l:ﬂzigzp;rrc;cceeesdswith the

Overview

These strategies have been °® ; ®

developed by the Kent and g
Medway Suicide and Self—harn’

These strategies are the continuation of
+ Prevention Network, which

work undertaken as a result of the 2015-
2020 Kent and Medway Suicide consists of over 130 partners

Prevention Strategy. working together to reduce the
oo eo-ooo-oooo-oooo-ooo- ' number of suicides.

While local suicide rates have

gone down slightly in recent
My, years, even one death is one

too many so there is still much to !

Every suicide is a tragic event which has a
devastating impact on the friends and family of
the victim, and can be felt across the whole
community.

This document provides the context and detail

for: A consultation (featuring

discussions with existing
partnerships and an online survey)
was undertaken to ensure that the
widest number of individuals and
organisations had their chance to
input into the strategies. Further
details can be found on the next
slides.

To ensure that these strategies do
not discriminate unfairly against any
particular group within Kent and
Medway, an equality impact
assessment (EqglA) has also been
undertaken, which is available on
request.

The Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-harm
Prevedfion Strategy 2021-25 &

® be done.
The Children and Young People Suicide and
Self-h&m Prevention Strategy 2021-25

Kent and Medway currently has a similar
rate of suicide compared to the national

The economic cost of every suicide in
England is estimated at...

£1.7mil |

suicide patterns in Kent & Medway with
national research and policy direction.

.. but that pales into insignificance when you
consider the pain and grief experienced by
families and friends.

Research has found that
up to

135

people are affected to
some degree, by every
person lost to suicide.

The Suicide Prevention Network will
co-ordinate the Strategie
action plan and monit
progress against the
strategic priorities at
regular meetings.

It is clear from both local and national
experience that it is not possible for one
agency working alone to prevent suicides;
most progress can be made when the public
sector, charities and companies work
together to deliver arange of measures.

are gone, | know |
will never be truly
happy again.”



H Consultation process

Consultation process timeline

As part of the consultation process, we invited responses from

as many organisations, agencies and individuals
with lived experience as possible.

During the consultation process we took people’s views on our
seven strategic priorities;

GeT abed

_Provide better
information and
support to those

bereaved by
suicide

Tajlor approaches to
Improve mental
health and
wellbeing across the
whole population

Reduce access
to means of
suicide

Support
research, data
collection and

monitoring

on 3 February 2021 and ran
until 18t March 2021.

Ensuring we had responses from a range of individuals has
allowed us to revise and adapt our plans accordingly and

guarantee the new 2021-2025 strategies are
shaped by the local people and organisations
who matter.

The following documents were available as part of
the consultation

The Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Strategy

The Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm
Prevention Strategy

Supporting context and detail for the Strategies (this
document)

Data and evidence updates for both the all-age Strategy
and the CYP Strategy

An Equality Impact Assessment

Taking this strategy out to consultation
ensures peoples views and experiences are
heard; this allows us to further inform our
strategy and make amendments where
appropriate

Q)
x>/




h d | Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-harm Prevention
Methodology

Consultations This consultation is now closed.
Open
Future This sirategy, together with \HF children and young people’s Don't suffer in silence
strategy, is the continuation of the work undertaken as a resuit of
Closed the 2015-2020 Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Strategy For support and information visit releasethepressure uk
° r n wer r v N r on | in rch \While local suicide rates have gon dow sighty in racen
years, even one death is one too many so there is still much to

This Consultation be done. Kent and Medway sill has a higher rate of suicide tha

consultation webpage. An additional 2 responses

These strategies combine evidence from suicide patterns in Kent
and Medway with national research and policy direction.
Your Account

were received by email.

- and Seft-narm Nefwork, which consists of over 130 partners
Login working together to reduce the number of suicides in Kent and

n this consultation, we are asking for your views on the
strategies which will enable us to revise and adapt our plans
accordingly and guarantee the new 2021-2025 strategies are
shaped by the local people and organisations who maiter

Please read both sirategies and give us your feedback by
Q7. To what extent do you agree or disagree that we should continue

Section 2 — Review of the 2015-2020 Strategy
Strongly agree 45
The review of the 2015-2020 strategy (contained within the sup
Strategy) highlighted a number of positive developments over t

Neither&ree nor disagree ’ Q3. Are you aware of other developments (not highlighted ¢ Q uantltatlve responses We re

Tend to %ree 16

;";ﬁ‘“’g N e generated through our
Dortt know 0| . consultation page.
No 69
Don't Know L

« Qualitative (free text) responses were analysed using a thematic analysis/coding (involving a
lot of reading and re-reading!)

A B C D
-—_— s
:Insen questions in columns A & B, Row 2
IAdd a new worksheet for each question Add codes / theme / category to row 2 - one per column - starting on column C {(add more columns as reqguired)
:QQ. Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that Code | Code |
Icould be taken to reduce the suicide risk in any of the priority Code 3 |Coded Code 5 Code 6 Code 7 Code 8 Code 9 4

Theme 1 |Theme 2
larou ps.
e e e e 0 0 0 0 0 0




S
H Demographics

Who responded to the consultation?

M

I .-

>
W

A

1 2 4 8
residents of representative ~ Onbehalfof  parish/town/ Onbehalfof  On behalf ofa  ‘other
K&M of a local a council (in borough/ an educational  charity or VCS
community anofficial - district/county ~ establishment  organisation
group capacity) councillor
- @ ®
c;%; 45% 53%
5 Respondents age range male female
\'
gg 2% preferred not to disclose gender
25 30% considered themselves to have a disability
20
15 87% identified as heterosexual, 8% identified as
10 bisexual, a gay man or a gay women.
5 I
0 84% were White English, 15% included
individuals who were White Irish
<V ﬁbb‘ @'@ & <o/\b‘ @g’b‘ &
NT o) © © A

White Other, White Asian, Mixed
Other, Asian or Asian British: Pakistani. , .)




Feedback from consultation

Free text responses were analysed and put into key
themes. Some examples of recurring themes are as
follows (and on the next slides)*

The impact of Covid-19

The responses were a mix of quantitative and
qualitative feedback. We saw overwhelming

support for our strategic priorities and
key areas of focus.

Q6 To what extent do you agree or
disagree that we should continue to

follow national priorities® job loss / relationship breakdowns, all

will have negative affects and people

will need more support.”

8¢T abed

How the final Strategy will address these

»  We will strengthen our actions in
monitoring the impact of Covid-19 on the
mental health of the population.

«  We will conduct an engagement/listening
event as part of signing up to the Mental
Health Concordat and will ensure
the impact of Covid-19 is
explored.

m Strongly agree/agree = Strongly disagree/disagree

*please note these are only some examples of responses. ‘



Feedback from consultation

Engaging and listening to local needs

62T abed

with the members of the public,
as they are the ones who know
their areas and communities

best.”

How the final Strateqy will address these

*  We will continue to follow national

strategic priorities, but will make sure
that our action plan is adapted to meet
the needs of our local population.

*  We will conduct an engagement event

with seldom heard communities to
ensure better understanding of our local
public needs.

Training and education

“Better training is needed,
especially those who are front
line. Everyone should know
practical steps and where to

signpost”

How the final Strateqy will address these

oints:
We will continue to invest in suicide

prevention training.

We will continue to promote our Release the
Pressure campaign to raise awareness of
our two 24-hour support services.

Promotion of ACE aware training




Feedback from consultation

Specific key groups that need more
focus

A

“Help for the
individual’s

“Health staff that
have worked
during the Covid
pandemic.”

How the final Strategy will address these

* Our Innovation Fund (of at least £250k) will
be launched in 2020/21 to support
community level projects to reduce suicide
and self-harm in any of the high-risk
groups identified.

* This feedback will also inform our
programme of bespoke research into
emerging or high-risk topics.

Improved support (access and
availability)

“There needs to be a simple
and clear message so Kent
residents know exactly where

to find support should they
need it.”

How the final Strategy will address these

points:

« ..continue to promote our Release the
Pressure campaign to raise awareness
of our two 24 hour support services

e ..continue to invest in suicide prevention

« ..continue promotion of Help is
at Hand resources

training
J
J



Taking a national policy context first, identifies

i N atlonal CO ntext <‘ the prevalence of suicides in England, before

taking alocal and more specific focus
Context M Prevalence

14 5316

Target to reduce suicide rates across
the country by March 2021

people take their own life
everyday in England

registered suicides in
2019 in England

The NHS Long-term

Plgp reaffirms the
Gdgernment’s commitment
to rg)aking suicide

In the year before a death |
by suicide and in relation to . determine whether a death was caused by

In 2018 the standard of proof used by coroners to

: . suicide was changed. It is likely that lowering the
contact with the NHS: standard of proof may result in an increased

| number of suicides.
Around 1/3 Around 1/3:

prewention a priority over have contact
the next decade. have contact ith ori ! | rates among the |/”
h dary With primary ., I males aged :
“““““““““““““““ . with secondary .5 0 oy i | . under 25s have
mental health ! 3/ . i 45-49years . :

The Long Term Plan services ! 4 of suicide ' had the highest ! increased, particularly

commits over i deaths in 2019 i age-specific suicide i 10-24 year old

| were male . females

rate

\

£20.5Dll

into the NHS over the next
five years...

...iIncluding

£2.50ll

for mental health

Around 1/3 have no
contact with the NHS




H Kent policy context

——

It is crucial to understand the Kent policy context,
structures and priorities in order to understand where
focus and activity is already happening or needed

The Network developed and owns our
2015-2020 multi-agency suicide
prevention strategy and action plan,

Kent County Council’s Public Health
team co-ordinates and leads the Kent
and Medway Suicide and Self-

harm Prevention Network, which
includes a collection of over..

reduce suicides:

Kent & Medway priorities

%140.mm

|nd|V|duaIs representing a
g \_/quety of agengles_
charities and organisations.

1. Reduce the risk of suicide in key
high-risk groups

2. Tailor approaches to improve
mental health and wellbeing in Kent
and Medway

3. Reduce access to the means of
suicide

We are led by data and
evidence, however we are
not afraid to try new

innovative ideas. 4. Provide better information and

support to those bereaved by
suicide

We also lead the
Children and
Young People

5. Support the media in delivering
sensitive approaches to suicide

Suicide and Self- | Monthly update
harm Prevention | calls and 6. Support research, data collection
Network . highlight reports and monitoring
" | ensure our
—— delivery stays The Strategy is overseen by KCC,
; on track Medway Council and the H&WB Board |

which follows the national six priorities to

Because Kent and Medway suicide
rates were higher than the national
average, we were selected to be amongst 8

STP areas to receive additional suicide
prevention funding in 2018/19 for three
years from NHS England...

und the Suicide

Prevention Programme
when national funding
stops

The 2021-2025 strategy aims to continue,
refine and build upon the successful
elements of the 2015/20 programme, but
also to become more influential in wider
parts of the system.

By shaping pathways and changing
practice, the long-term impacts of the
programme are going to

be much more than -

the sum of the

funded elements. - m . .}




Kent and Medway suicide prevention structures

* Meets monthly

Consists of Public Health, KMPT and CCG

Responsible for setting strategic direction and taking financial decisions

eeT abed

agencies, individuals,
academics etc
Meets quarterly
Responsible for drafting the 5
year strategy, best practice
sharing, facilitating lived
experience input, discussing

iIssues and opportunities

Prepares formal reports into KCC, Medway Council and CCG structures

Harm Prevention Networ

« Consists of charities,

statutory agencies,
individuals, etc
Meets quarterly
Responsible for drafting
CYP Chapter for 5 year
strategy, best practice

sharing, discussing issues

Consists of over PH, CCG,
KMPT, Live Well,
Healthwatch Kent

* Meets fortnightly
Currently time limited to
during coronavirus period




H The impact of Covid-19

The 2020 Covid-19 ! The various lockdowns in 2020
global pandemic ' resulted in school and work closures,
has changed + as well as a societal change and
everything; how we live, ! strict restrictions and measures

work and socialise. never seen before.

As of June 2021, there have
been approx. 4.52 million

confiomed cases of the virus,
of which has sadly resulted in

atle%a;t128Kdeaths. oo o 2 5o

Ers -
Unfortunately, many people’s jobs  Lives have been lost as
were been placed on furlough, i a result of the virus,
children remained home, and | causing bereavement,

stressors and insecurity have never anxiety, and uncertainty
been so prevalent. for the future.

Nationally, in England, modelling predicts that up to 10 million

people (almost 20% of the population)'will need either new or
additional mental health support as a direct consequence of
the crisis.

2020 will be remembered as the year the world changed; but

so much is still unknown..

* The mental health implications?

« The impact on suicide / self-harm rates?

+ The impact on other risk factors (i.e. domestic abuse /
job loss) that may subsequently impact mental health /
suicidality amongst the population.

As aresult of the current Covid-19 pandemic, the

world has changed, therefore, it is important to set this

context and look at how we have responded and
reacted to the needs of our local population

Local response

Kent County Council ';fﬂ

Kent County Council and Medway
Council have responded to the
Covid-19 pandemic by changing
the way some services are
delivered and enhancing others.

Coronavirus (COVID-19) —

In response to the mental
health impact, the Release
the Pressure campaign
was modified to reflect the
coronavirus circumstances. A

new 24hr text support
service was also introduced.
\

Suicide prevention training
continued to be provided
by MIND, this is now being
presented via zoom. The take
up rate of training remained
strong during lockdown and
there has been positive
feedback.

orvisit releasethep

P ——— -

We will continue to monitor the COVID
impact and remain flexible to react
according to the needs of the population
and high risk groups.




The impact of Covid-19

g louis appleby
Y roon aron e (TS OnoOw

4 Jan, 14 tweets, & min read

Research findings from NCISH

I [ Bookmark ] I [A save as PDF ] I + My Authors ]

A number of countries have
published national or state-

level suicide data. Most
have found no effect.

From the start of the
pandemic, there was
a concern that suicide
rates would rise.

In 2021 #suicideprevention will remain vital to the #Covid
response, so thisis a good time to sum up what we know re
the impact on suicide. Simple answer is that several
countries have now reported norise. But the pictureis
more complex, as always with suicide stats. /thread

NCISH set up a new data collection real time surveillance
(RTS) - as inquests can take months. The table below shows

no change pre —to post lockdown, at least in those
area%{Nith good quality RTS.

D
=
m Fig 1: RTS findings HQIP
120

Lockdown Restrictions eased

Within the overall finding, there
could be different effects between
populations sub-groups or

NCISH explained that
geographical areas — after all, the

their conclusions
were cautious.

impact of COVID-19 itself

These are very early
figures and may _

change. L ’ has not been uniform
across communities.

Total population: 9m

2020 monthly aVeroRE What does this mean for Kent and Medway?
Pre-lockdown: 84.0
Post-lockdown: 85.4

o We have established a new Real Time Suicide Surveillance
system with Kent Police and will use it to monitor deaths and
the factors influencing the individuals who die. We will respond

to any trends and high risk groups we identify.
[

April-August 2020
+7.3%

January February March  April  May  June July  August
2020 —2019

i
:
i



Suicide rates since 2011

Latest 3-year rolling average age-standardised suicide rates

2013-15 | 2014-16 |2015-17 |2016-18 [201/-19

13
England 9.8 10.0 10.1 9.9 9.6 9.6 10.1
T
L%ent 10.3 114 12.0 11.6 10.5 10.0 10.3
Medway 9.3 11.4 11.7 11.2 9.7 9.4 8.3

Age-standardised suicide rates (per 100,000) for local authorities, rolling three year aggregates, deaths
registered 2011 to 2019. (By area of residency, 10+, male and female)

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets (( )

/suicidesbylocalauthority



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/suicidesbylocalauthority

16

of people who died by suicide
in Kent & Medway were...

Kent and Medway suicide data 670/0 ...NOT known to

i secondary mental health
2016- 2017- | services..
479 5 17 18 i

HSuicide statistics

...but many of these people were in contact with
deaths from suicide across

primary care.
Kent & Medway in 2017-2019.

England 10.1
Kent 10.5 10.0 10.3  -mmmmmmmmmmmmmmoooooommmmmmooooooooooooooooooooooe

Middle aged men are at most risk, but deaths by
suicide occur in both genders, in every age group.

mMale mFemake

Medway 9.7 94 8.3

10.3 suicide deaths per 100,000 Kent
population in 2017-2019.

/€T abed

Rates per 100,000 population by Medway population in 2017-2019.
gender in 2016-2018

Kent and Medway have statistically
similar 3-year rolling suicide rates when
compared to the national average.

Males  Females 8.3 suicide deaths per 100,000

ittt ittt ' Some occupational ' Debt, domestic abuse
The m_ale suicide rate in Kent has | groups are at a particularly! and substance misuse
of deaths are fallen in recent years  high suicide risk. Kent ' were additional risk
male 16  specific research found an | factors relating to suicide

attempts.

Suicide rates in

/” Canterbury and
Thanet are the

highest in Kent.

14

Q)
x>/

2015 - 17 2016 - 18 O are unemployed

' increased suicide-risk for
| 15  individuals who work in the..

+ O manual industry
U agriculture |

——Kent ==England



H Self-harm statistics

50%

of people who die by suicide have a history of Self-harm

Types of self-harm
There are many different
ways people can
intentionally self-harm:
U cutting or burning skin
U punching or hitting
themselves
U poisoning themselves
with tablets or liquid

—@—Kent =®=England

.=_.,‘=—-o<o‘:-t::

2011/12 2017/18

admissions as a result of self-harm
in 15 to 19-year old was higher
than England in 2011/12, but is
now lower than England in
2017/18.

There are also less risky
“replacement” habits whict

the Kent crude rate of hospital

...bﬁt not everyone who ...and not everyone who ' i can be encouraged
diegby suicide will have a self-harms will go on to | Iti :

i is estimated that
history of self-harm... attempt suicide. : Research probably

--------------------------------------------------------------------- ! 1 . 1 2 under-estimates how
Between 2011/12 and 2015/16 1 1 6 5 18 common self-harm is.
more young women aged 10-19 ’ Data is usually based on
surveys of people who go
to hospital or their GP, but

we know a lot of people

were seen at A&E and admitted

_ : hospital admissions as a result
into hospital than young men.

of self-harm per 100,000 Kent

some point, and it can happen at
any age.
and Medway population aged | ------- oo
10-24 years in 2017/18.

A
=] B

young people will self-harm at

males females

S

aam'a am'a It should be noted that self- do not seek help
i harm is a major risk factor with after self-harming.
ALE - ' older adults and national
. research is focusing on this
L.-.‘ Ll-!‘ 1 6 7 3 3 . age group and the extent ﬂ
hospital ) of the problem of ® 14 q
admission § 620 hospital stays for self harm, peri seff harm. .. \

‘e d

100,000 in Kent and Medway.



iChiIdren and Young People

It is estimated that in Kent and Medway..

The research also
identified several themes:

25% of under 20s and 28%

of 20-24 year olds had

Although deaths by suicide at | We have produced a

e m e — e —

had been ‘looked after
children’.

> _ _ : _ accounted for 10% of all female
rhe Child Death Overview Panel investigates suicides in the UK, a similar proportion

each individual death of children and young compared to young men

people in Kent. Im=m s mmm— oo oo Sooooooo- R r
National research into children and

young people suicides has found:
Of 922 suicides by people aged under
25 in England and Wales during 2014-
2015...

any age are tragic, deaths | separate CYP 2021- 35,856 experienced bereavement.
a;noor:girghllg:ggu?;r? yoe?iﬂ?ul i 2025 Suicide and  children and young people have a mental | 2104 of under 20s and
PrOPEAER Y PR Self-Harm . health condition. | 14% of 20-24 year olds
Lives ended before they really Prevention dbd """""" Ji'were university or college
begin are extremely upsetting | Strategy. i Suicl des by women under 25 ° students.

for friends, parents, siblings ' This is available on have increased over recent 9°/fd20hdd
and the whole community. | request. . years nationally. These deaths ; 9Y0 orunder 20s who die

6% of under 20s and 3% of
20-24 year olds were
‘reported to be in the
LGBTQ+ community.

Self-harm was reported in
52% of under 20s and
41% of 20-24 year olds
who died.

e e

Any lessons that can be learnt are shared
with relevant partners.

60% in both age groups

2 23 !
25 !
80 :
) ' were known to secondary
. « on i mental health services.
. - 1. i Around 40%
.-,_-_ﬂﬂ i had been in
o 1
- ,
I
1
|
1
1
I

Number of suicides

The University of Kent have completed a
thematic analysis of recent suicides amongst
children and young people, to identify trends
and opportunities to do things differently. To

read the document in full, see link
https://itinyurl.com/y2wt3bo3

recent
contact. ‘

The number of suicides at each age
rose steadily in the late teens and
early 20s.




Review of 2015-2020 strategy——

Reviewing the 2015-2020 strategy allows us to look
back on what activity has and has not worked well,
and what focus is needed for the future strategy.

headline activity over the last 5 years. (The limited space available means it is far from a complete record but we go

into more details on some projects in the next few slides)

1. To reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups we...

* Launched the Release the Pressure social marketing
campaign to increase the chances of people seeking help

+ Worked with KMPT, primary care and other health partners to
increase safety and quality within services

* Funded 50 community level projects through the Saving Lives
Innovation Fund

* Addgd a specific Children and Young People’s Action Plan in

2018

2. To tRilor approaches to improve mental health & wellbeing

in Kerit we...

* Funded over 5,000 places over Mental Health First Aid and
Suicide Prevention Training

» Supported national campaigns such as Time to Change and
Every Mind Matters

» Delivered specific campaigns and programmes with other
high risk groups, areas or businesses

4. To support research, data collection and monitoring we...

Conducted an annual analysis of suicide data

Hosted a Darzi Fellowship to explore help-seeking
behaviour amongst men

Conducted bespoke research into the links between
domestic abuse and suicide, as well as the impact of debt
We commissioned a thematic analysis of suicides amongst
children and young people

. To reduce access to the means of suicide we...

* Adopted the Kent and Medway Suicide Cluster Protocol in
2016

» Developed an informal surveillance network which regularly
identifies unusual patterns or areas of concern

* Funded a major replacement programme of Samaritan’s
bridge signage in 2018/19

* Worked closely with Network Rail, Highways England and
major landowners regarding sites of concern

5. To support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to

suicide we...

* Worked with local media outlets to promote positive stories
about mental health and help-seeking behaviour

» Contacted editors and reporters when inappropriate reporting
is identified

* Promoted the Samaritans Media Guidelines

6. To provide better information and support to those bereaved

by suicide we...

Gave support to local Survivors of Bereavement
by Suicide groups (including a new group in
Canterbury)

Funded research into the needs of bereaved
families as part of 2019 Innovation Fund
Promoted Help is at Hand support toolkit to
bereaved families

Q)
x>/



H Release the Pressure

The social marketing campaign is
designed to..

O Increase awareness of a 24/7
support line

O Increase men’s willingness
to call the helpline

“| hope you reaIiSe
you have saved my

life”

“This Service
helped keep me
aIiVe and got me
the help | needeq’’

The campaign highlights real life
events, rather than mental illness as the

potentgl trigger
_____ Q).________________________________

pressure
24/7 ®xt service available by texting the Don’t suffer ol way in e resly
word [ent or Medway to 85258 in silence. rﬁﬁ}f;‘,ﬁé’; S «you have all
I’ el e anows duteg T g0 3&775('5 i saved my life nd
o weciry b Wlg o Jr o  oncae several times
’ ( %, 0800 107 0160 , thank you from
A o LK © releasethepressure.uk P e BE the pottom of my

hear L)

The campaign is promoted with advertising calls handled
in service stations, pubs, on radio, inancial year als hande

TV and online 2015/16 14,322 113.911
2016/17 19,724
=

./
2017/18 20,445 isits to the Rel
Adverts are used to ensure that when people VISILS 10 e Release

. . , o 2018/19 23,765 the Pressure
search for ‘how to kill myself’or similar
terms, Release the Pressure is the first 2019/20 25,979
link they see.

[ S —

webpage from 2016




H Other highlights from 2015-2020

Suicide Prevention & Awareness Training

Waids+one
? and YWhd-Kent

for better mental health

Supporting adults

’ West+ Kend

Supporting young people

2,828

people trained

T

Knovtgedge 6/10 9/10

Confidence 5/10 8/10

1,256

people trained

NI

Knowledge 3/10 8/10

Confidence 8/10

3/10

“This assisted me when | was talking to
someone who was suicidal and | helped
prevent them from completing their
plan”

“The training you provided came in useful on
Friday evening when | spent an hour persuading
a young man not to {end his own life}”

people have taken the Suicide Prevention & Awareness e-

learning module

Innovation Fund

projects funded via year 1 & 2 and
legacy fund

The Saving Lives Over
Innovation Fund
was launched in HE..EW p Tee— 2000
2018 @,MM ®asis &j | people were
@ o — ¥n... |reached through
The aim is to fund | ®UZRE o innovation fund

M sunhght s s

new projects with e, T LVes = @ © 0 . projects

innovative ideas |mmy ek - ——T 1000
designedto |, SUMhde o I

prevent suicide, MEE?’ e o &.,-:‘z;;u.;.@ of those were

save lives and = not already

known to the
organisation

reduce self-harm

“And | believe deep in
my heart it {the project}
will save lives. In fact, it
already has”

“To hear I'm not alone in
how | feltis a comfort.
This has been an

amazing experlence

‘I have learnt to let my
emotions out in a better
and safer way”

Kent and Medway recognised as best practice

Invited to join NSPA Steering Group
Many requests to speak at national events

Release the Pressure and Innovation Fund
replicated across the country

Two national awards

But we are not complacent — there is lots
more to be done




22

Research Impact

We have conducted several pieces of our own research between 2015 & 2020

S
What we
fognd

How we
used the
research
to shape
priorities

Domestic Abuse

Providers were asked to
provide data regarding DA
and suicidality.

depressed or

thoughts?’

National Domestic Homicide
Reviews were examined.

%&

93 DHRs 26%

the victim or
perpetrator

DA providers and staff be
trained in suicide prevention
training.

Mental health providers and
staff to be trained in DA
training.

We have funded Oasis
Domestic Abuse provider to
pilot an ‘understanding
trauma’ project.

answered YES to
‘are you feeling

having suicidal

were completed
suicides; either

Nationally...

T

people in problem debt
(13%) have thought about
suicide and 3% have
attempted suicide.

Kent specific research

Of 119 coroner cases

-

specifically noted debt as a

specific trigger.

Funded 2 innovation
projects exploring debt.
Borough level workshop
to develop a local suicide
prevention and self-harm
reduction plan

A Money and Mental
Heath project with
Citizens Advice

Deep dive study into 119
inquest verdicts.

The most common
characteristics were the
following:

Male —from 50 — 59 years.
Recent family
breakdown/bereavement
Unemployed

They were not known to
secondary mental health
services

Had a prior history of
mental health issues

Prisons

Nationally...

QLD

deaths in prison custody
from 2008 to 2016

History of alcohol/drug use.

How best to work with the
coroners office in the future

Focus on high-risk suicide
triggers

Supporting families and
friends bereaved by suicide
Consider a real time
surveillance to provide
impactful bereavement
support

Kent specific research
Particular groups of
prisoners are at high risk
of suicide (on remand;
history of MH, ‘lifers’)
Prisons with higher
proportion of the ‘most
vulnerable’ prisoners face
particular challenges.

Identify and respond to
suicide clusters and
contagion

Suicide Prevention
training for Kent prison
staff

Promotion of Release
the Pressure in Prisons



. . .. Proposin-g thg n.e.vv draft 2021-2025
Draft strategic priorities for 2021 -202&2 comments and amendments can be made

before finalising this strategy

annual workplan produced every year will respond in more detail into each of the below areas.

1. Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups 4. Support research, data collection and monitoring

« Middle aged men » People who misuse drugs ' * Annual analysis of suicide data
- People with a previous and alcohol . Bespoke research into new and emerging issues and trends
suicide attempt + People who are impacted | oo
) E::Jrﬁle with & history of self . E’ﬁg;?lr:ﬁ&c;%ubimatic 5. _Sgpport the media in delivering sensitive approaches to
* People known to secondary  debt suicide
megtal health services * Children and young people i « Working with local media outlets to promote positive stories
_____ & ...t aboutmentalhealth and help-seeking behaviour

+ Contact with editors and reporters when inappropriate

2. Taifor approaches to improve mental health & wellbeing b W o
reporting is identified

across the whole population and within the following

priority groups « Ethnic and religious minorities : * The promotion of the Samaritans Media Guidelines

- LGBTQI+ « Individuals impacted by family { e

. Military & veterans breakdown or separation g Pro_w%e better information and support to those bereaved

« Students * Prisoners and other people in y suiciae

 People with learning contact with the criminal justice < Commission a new Support Service for People Bereaved by
disabilities system ' Suicide

» Continue to support local Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide
groups (including encouraging new groups across the county)
+ Continued promotion of Help is at Hand

3. Reduce access to the means of suicide and self-harm

« Continue informal surveillance network regularly identifies
unusual patterns or areas of concern

* Further develop the new Real Time Suicide Surveillance
system with Kent Police

« Continue to work closely with Network Rail, Highways

i 7. Demonstrate system leadership and quality
England and major landowners regarding sites of concern

improvement across the system and within
services
* Work with commissioners and providers to

* Work closely with Port of London Authority, HM Coastguard, . .
improve safety and quality.

RNLI and other partners with an interest in water safety




References

https://www.suicideinfo.ca/how-many-people-are-affected-by-one-suicide/
2. https://hgs.uhb.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/Suicide-and-Suicide-

Prevention SandB Handout.pdf
3. https://www.samaritans.org/about-samaritans/research-policy/suicide-facts-and-

figures/
4. https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/

deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2019reqgistrations
5. [éttps://sites.manchester.ac.uk/ncish/

=

14}



https://www.suicideinfo.ca/how-many-people-are-affected-by-one-suicide/
https://hgs.uhb.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/Suicide-and-Suicide-Prevention_SandB_Handout.pdf
https://www.samaritans.org/about-samaritans/research-policy/suicide-facts-and-figures/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2019registrations
https://sites.manchester.ac.uk/ncish/

This page is intentionally left blank



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Please note, this strategy has been updated following consultation feedback. It is due to go for approval
this Autumn, after which the final version will be uploaded to the consultation webpage.

1. Executive summary

How was the draft Strategy developed?

o It was developed by the Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Network. A
partnership of over 150 organisations and individuals living with experience of
suicidal thoughts, self-harm or bereavement by suicide.

How many people responded to the consultation?
e 95 responses received through the online form
e 2 additional responses received by email

Who responded to the consultation?

e Most responses were from individual residents of Kent and Medway

¢ A small number of schools, colleges, parish councils and voluntary sector
organisations also responded.

What was the consensus view?

¢ The vast majority of responses supported the Strategic Priorities that are set out in
the draft Strategy

o There was also strong support for the identified high-risk groups within the Strategy

Did anyone disagree with the contents of the strategy?

e While there was broad support for the Strategy, some people felt that other groups
of individuals should be considered high risk, while other people commented that
identifying any particular groups was inappropriate and everyone should be treated
as an individual

e Aot of responses highlighted that the full impact of COVID-19 on the population’s
mental health isn’t known yet, and the full economic fall out is still to be felt, so
additional monitoring and flexibility in the response may be needed

e Some people felt that increased level of priority should be given within the Strategy
to people who self-harm and who have made a suicide attempt

What will change as a result of the Consultation?

e The draft Strategy and associated Action Plan will be amended to take account of
the feedback received.

¢ Comments will shape the way specific elements of the Action Plan are delivered,
including the 2021 Innovation Fund and the 2021 research programme.

Page 147



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Table of Contents

I o To 0T 1o o LT PP PP P PP P PPPPPPPR PPN 3
2. CONSUIALION PrOCESS: ...t a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaeens 3
2.1 Consultation and communication MEthOdS .............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5
3. RESPONUENES ... 6
G T ATV o To I {21 Lo [0 [=To 120 SRPPPPRRRPIN 6
3.2 DemographiCs Of reSPONAENTS ........coviiiiiiiiii it 6
4. CONSUIALION FESPONSES: ... i ieeeee ettt a et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aa s 8
T ST Tox 1o ] 1 PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPPTPPPN 8
4.2 SECLION 2 ..ottt 888888kt f et RR e 13
R ST Tox 1 o] IR S TP PP PPPPPPPPPRPPPON 13
5. EQUAITIEY ANBIYSIS ...t 22
(ST AN ] (= 01 22
Appendix 1: Respondents ‘ADOUL YOU' .......ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 23
Appendix 2: Strategy QUESTIONNEAIIE. ...........eiiiieeiiiiitiiii it e e e e e iir e e e e e e e e e s anbrrreeeees 27

Page 148



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

1. Introduction:

This document provides a summary of the comments received through the public
consultation on the draft Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-Harm Prevention Strategy
2021-2025 and provides recommendations on how these comments should be
addressed in the final strategy.

The public consultation also asked for feedback on the draft Children and Young
People’s (CYP) Suicide Prevention Strategy 2021-2025. A detailed report of the
responses received regarding the CYP Strategy can be found in a separate document.
(Please email suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk for a copy).

The draft Suicide Prevention Strategy 2021-25 was developed by the Kent and Medway
Suicide Prevention Network which is a well-established partnership made up of over
150 agencies, voluntary and community sector organisations and individuals living with
experience of suicidal thoughts, self harm or being bereaved by suicide.

The aim of the draft Suicide Prevention Strategy is to reduce suicide and self-harm as
much as possible, and the programme will work towards the ultimate philosophy and
aspiration of zero suicides within our county.

It should be acknowledged that the Strategy was drafted, and the Public Consultation
was held, during the global Covid-19 pandemic. The final impact of the pandemic on the
mental health and well-being on the population will not be known for many months if not
years, however the Suicide Prevention Programme will ensure the Strategy remains
flexible enough to respond appropriately.

2. Consultation process:
In order to develop the Draft Strategy which was the subject of the Public Consultation,

the Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-Harm Prevention Network discussed priorities
and options during meetings in February and September 2020.

In addition, Medway Council and the Local Government Association ran a Strategy
Development workshop in October 2020. This 3-hour workshop focused on reviewing
the previous five year strategy and discussing around future strategic priorities. Break
out rooms further enabled discussions and helped to shape the content of the draft
strategy.

The input of the Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Network during its regular
meetings and through the Medway / LGA workshop was crucial in the development of
the draft Strategy.

Page 149


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Kent

County

Council
- kent.gov.uk
Consultation Report S

The slide below illustrates the range of organisations and individuals involved in
developing the draft Strategy.

1

The Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Network benefits from a number of
people living with experience as well as a wide range of agencies, charities
and other organisations. Some of the organisations involved include;

wityjou  OHEYOU

s atMind and Body [ .

_.~. Kent ~@EE Porch | @
et Police m

shaw trust 3 ?Q é :
[~ DIRECTORS | %g D¢
m } t 'w'.»b y for better marzal hacith
Kent and Medway s

Clinical Commissioning Group

Serving You
s, LISTENING EAR Wil Kkent
VEL 2 ANHS
Chrsthiich  NHS Foundation Trust

NetworkRail m University oundation frus @
v— ?

‘4 Kent and Medway Porch

NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust Changing sttitudes - Changing ives
Tunbridge Wells
EL IR & District

mind  STUDENT| ife
% West Kent

Souvth KCv;\-l’ healthwatCh Engoging Kent

Kent

The public consultation period ran from 3 February - 18" March 2021

The draft strategy, equality impact assessment, consultation questionnaire and other
supporting documents were available online at www.kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention

Page 150


http://www.kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

2.1 Consultation and communication methods

Consultation and communication timeline:

3 February Consultation 18" March
2021 open 2021

Continuation of social media posts throughout consultation period

f

Promotion of Final day
Launch of strategy consultation  Final promotion of ~ ©f social
consultation; social _ through CYP strategy medlg
media platforms Promotion of Engaged with KCC staff  Suicide Prevention consultation at ~ Premotion
promotion strategy consultation ¢ eads to promote  Network 11" March  quarterly Suicide
through Sl_“c'de amongst different Prevention
Prevention communities, including: Network 18"

Newsletter, reaching

e Aspire; MH support March
over 300 individuals  Neqyork: Level Playing
and organisations Field: Black and
Minority Ethnic Forum

and Rainbow. Public consultation
Social media imagery example: Kent and Medway Suicide
| d th t. fth trat and Self-Harm Prevention
Alongside the promotion of the strategy, we Strategy 2021-2025

promoted the Release the Pressure campaign, to
ensure that those engaging with the consultation ;e your views
could seek help and support should they need it. ;.. . 018 march

kent.gov.uk/svicideprevention

Equality and accessibility considerations:

Don't suffer in silence: text the word 'Medway' to 85258, call 0800 107 0160

KCC undertook the following steps to ensure the or visit the website: releasethepressure.uk
consultation was accessible to all:

e All consultation documents and the questionnaire were available to view and
respond to online.

e Alternative formats were available on request and all promotional materials
included details on how these could be requested. Microsoft Word versions of the
strategy, EQIA and other supporting documents were available. There were no
requests for alternative formats.

Page 151



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

3. Respondents

3.1 Who responded?

The public consultation received 95 responses via the KCC consultation webpage. An
additional 2 responses via free text (sent through to the suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk
email address). From the 95 responses on the KCC consultation webpage, analysis
shows in what capacity individuals were completing the questionnaire:

Table 1: Are you responding on behalf of...?

Number

A resident of Kent or Medway 71
A representative of a local community group or residents’ association 1
On behalf of a Parish / Town / Borough / District Council in an official capacity 2
A Parish / Town / Borough / District / County Councillor 3
On behalf of an educational establishment, such as a school 4
or college

On behalf of a local business 0
On behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector organisation (VCS) 6
Other 8
TOTAL 95

3.2 Demographics of respondents

The consultation questionnaire included a series of optional ‘about you’ questions,
designed to capture anonymous information about the respondents’ protected
characteristics, such as gender, age, religion and disability. The information is used to
check whether there are any differences in the views of different groups and to ensure
that our strategic decisions are being made fairly.

The following analysis is based on those individuals that provided information (note that
this section was optional, and some individuals preferred not to provide such
information and individuals did not have to answer every question). A full profile of the
respondents can be found in Appendix 1.

Page 152


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Of the individual respondents who provided information, the gender split was not
substantial (45% of respondents were male and 53% were female and 2% preferred not
to disclose their gender).

A higher proportion of people aged 35-49 responded to the consultation than any other
age group (accounting for 29% of the respondents). This was closely followed by the
50-59 and 65-74 age range (both accounting for 24% of the respondents). The 16-34
age group made up only 5% of respondents. There were no respondents aged under
16, and only 1 respondent aged over 84.

Figure 1: Age of consultation respondents

Respondents age range

35
30

25

20
15
. B =

16-24 25-34 35-49 50-59 60-64 65-74 75-84

wv

Analysis of the results indicated that there is no significant variation in opinions or views
between age groups, with all age groups showing similar levels of agreement to the
guestions.

Of those who provided information, 53% regarded themselves as belonging to a religion
or belief, slightly lower than the overall population of Kent and Medway (65.5%).

Of the 95 respondents who provided information, 30% considered themselves to be
disabled under the Equality Act 2010, this is significantly higher than the overall
population of Kent and Medway (16.8%). Further analysis shows that 9 individuals had
a mental health condition, 9 individuals had a longstanding iliness or health condition, 6

Page 153



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

had a physical impairment, 4 had sensory impairment and 1 individual had learning
difficulties.

Of the those who provided information, 87% identified as heterosexual/straight. 8%
identified as either bisexual, a gay man, or a gay woman/lesbian. 3 individuals
‘preferred not to say’.

The final ‘about you’ section asked respondents about their ethnicity. 84% of
respondents that answered, were White English, the remaining 15% included
individuals who were White Irish, White Other, White and Asian, Mixed Other, Asian or
Asian British: Pakistani and 1% preferred not to say.

4. Consultation responses:
This section will report the responses received for each question in turn. At the end of

each Section of the Questionnaire, a highlighted box will outline how we will amend the
Strategy as a result of the responses to the questions in that section.

(Please got to Appendix 2 to see the full questionnaires used in the consultation).

4.1 Section 1 of the Questionnaire

Main Strategy - The review of the 2015-2020 strategy (contained within the supporting
context and detail document for the draft 2021-2025 Strategy) highlighted a number of
positive developments over the last five years.

Q1 Are you aware of other developments (not highlighted in the review of the
2015-2020 strategy) which should be recognized here?

Response Number
Yes 11
No 69
Don’t Know 14
TOTAL 94

Respondents who answered ‘Yes’ were asked to explain their answers. After
conducting an analysis of these responses, four main themes emerged, these included:

e The impact of Covid-19 — responses outlined the potential change Covid-19
brings, potential unknowns around impact on mental health and suicides
increasing, as well as isolation intensifying or worsening due to lockdowns.

Page 154



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

e The ‘user voice’ — individuals noted positive progress enabling people to be
honest and share their experiences.

e Drug use — discussion included the increase in young people taking legal and
illegal drugs as well as the relationship between prescribed drugs and suicide
(drugs used for hypertension, acne, depression)

e Specific groups that need more focus — these groups included: Supporting
autistic adults; Support for those with adverse experiences by those with
‘complex emotional difficulties’; Individuals impacted by family breakdown; with
focus on middle aged men, relationship breakdown, family separation, victims of
domestic abuse isolation, unemployment and debt.

National recommendations and discussions amongst the Kent and Medway Suicide and
Self-harm Prevention Network have highlighted the following areas for increased
support over the next five years:

Strengthening support for individuals who self-harm.

Strengthening support for individuals who have made a suicide attempt.
Support individuals and families who have been bereaved by suicide.
Supporting individuals impacted by domestic abuse.

Q2 To what extent do you agree or disagree that improvements can be made in
these areas?

Response Number
Strongly agree / tend to agree 88
Strongly disagree / tend to disagree 1
Neither agree nor disagree 4
Don’t Know 1
TOTAL 95

Most comments supported the four identified areas above and there were several
comments specifically encouraging additional support for individuals who self-harm.
Respondents who disagreed were asked to explain their answer. After conducting an
analysis of these responses, the following themes emerged:

Page 155



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

e Access to services - responses outlined the issue of waiting until people reach
a threshold to receive help as well as discussing access to CAMHS services
needs to improve significantly.

e Specific groups — individuals noted several other groups they would like to see
increase support, including: Females aged 15-24 years old; Exploring the social
effects of the pandemic on young people.

Q3 What specific actions can be taken in relation to any of the above areas?

Responses were free text and hence a lot of qualitative feedback was provided.
Respondents were asked to highlight which recommendation they were addressing,
and these are detailed below. There are also other free text responses that don’t
necessarily fit into the four recommendations however, these have also been included
to ensure we inform our strategy as closely to the views of the respondents.

Strengthening support for individuals who self-harm (8 responses)

Many responses included the need for mental health services to improve, noting that
access is key. On the other hand, individuals also noted how charities and services see
self-harm as too risky and therefore reject referrals, more training is needed around this
issue. Specific mention of Children and Young People was also highlighted, with the
need of schools to offer more support for the individual but also the families. Public
awareness was also highlighted, with attitudes towards self-harm being described as
more important than resources (ie not “blaming” people who self-harm).

Strengthening support for _individuals who have made a suicide attempt (5
responses)

Responses all pointed towards strengthening support for individuals who have made a
suicide attempt; individuals discussed the need for better support in the community,
regular check-ins, interventions, and immediate support after being hospitalized. Also
highlighted was the need for stronger partnerships between Community Mental Health
Teams (CMHT) and third sector. Overall, individuals agreed that there is not enough
capacity to support individual who need and want help, and a more understanding and
responsive environment for individuals who attempt suicide is needed.

Support individuals and families who have been bereaved by suicide (5
responses)

The most common response was ensuring there is a specialized service and/or 1:1
support for individuals who have been bereaved by suicide. Practical advice such as
understanding the inquest process/ coroner needs to improve, as well as
training/education for front line workers, specifically individuals highlighting social
workers and GPs.

Supporting individuals impacted by domestic abuse (6 responses)

Page 156



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Individuals discussed the need for support or funding for Refuges, and ensuring that
families know where to turn to for help, including practical steps regarding awareness
training for social workers so they appropriately support victims/abusers seeking
information. More family support with specialist services is needed, and early
intervention must be provided to reduce the long-term effects on family members. The
final point made by the respondents, was more recognition needed for male victims of
domestic abuse, and having a multi-agency approach to challenging how we currently
support these men.

Not specific to the four highlighted recommendations but still noteworthy responses are
listed below:

Reaching specific groups

Accessibility, inclusivity and equality for Deaf and Deaf-Blind people
Acknowledgement of hormonal/menopausal issues as a trigger of mental health
A special effort is needed to publicize / reach out to minorities/ethnic groups
Increased focus for Children and Young People

Support services and increases awareness of what support is available (12 responses)

Respondents discussed the importance of improving access to support and noted that
secondary mental health services need to be improved. Individuals also discussed how
talking therapies need to be more readily available and waiting times need to improve
significantly. Another re-occurring point was ensuing that increased awareness of free
resources needs to be made a priority so residents of Kent know exactly what help and
support is available to them, when and if they should need it.

Q4 Are there any other areas where you believe improvements can be made?

Response Number
Yes 59
No 12
Don’t Know 22

If respondents answered ‘yes’ they were asked to provide further detail. Responses
were very varied and focused on several areas, these are listed below:

e Access to services (2 responses) — Children and Adolescent Mental Health
Services (CAMHS) access needs to improve, and delivery of all services needs
to improve, especially regarding assessments and waiting lists.

e Dedicated helpline (2 responses) — Responses mentioned having a 24 hour
mental health crisis service, in order to take pressure off the 999 service.

Page 157



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

e Focus on schools (7 responses) — Focus was around engaging with young
people at secondary school, enabling earlier identification of potential concerns
and ensuring swifter support as well as more joined up thinking between schools
and all agencies CYP may come into contact with.

e Public engagement (4 responses) — Responses discussed how there must be
involvement with members of the public who know their areas and communities,
as well as having a greater understanding and public awareness about mental
health issues.

e Training (6 responses) — Individuals explained that better training is needed,
especially for professionals who are front line. The breadth of training should
also be widened, ensuring that individuals can offer the individual in need of
support coping strategies so that they can cope short term, whilst waiting for
professional help.

e Research (2 responses) — Responses discussed the need for research to be
conducted around reducing access and means of suicide in coastal locations,
and also opportunities of support groups for specific high-risk groups, with
emphasis placed on experiential learning for men.

e GPs and A&E staff (4 responses) — Individuals noted the need for these staff
groups to be trained and to have empathetic responses when dealing with
individuals in need. Furthermore, responses also showed that there was concern
for these staff groups too, and more support if needed for them, especially after
the impact of the pandemic.

Responses to questions in Section 1 of the Consultation Questionnaire will influence our
Strategy and associated Action Plan in the following ways:

We will strengthen our actions in monitoring the impact of Covid-19 on the mental wellbeing
of the population.

We will conduct an engagement/listening event as part of signing up to the Mental Health
Concordat and will ensure the impact of Covid-19 is explored

An Innovation Fund (of at least £250k) will be launched in 2021/22 to support community
level projects to reduce suicide and self-harm in any of the high-risk groups identified.

The Suicide Prevention Programme will work with the wider system to ensure improved
support for people who self-harm or attempt to take their own life. Including working closely
with the Community Mental Health Transformation Programme and the Crisis Care
Transformation Programme

This feedback will inform our programme of bespoke research into emerging or high-risk
topics.

Page 158



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:

2021 — 2025 Strategy Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

4.2 Section 2

Q5 You can provide feedback on both the strategies or just one if you prefer,
before moving on to Section 5

Figure 2: Response split to main strategy and CYP strategy

58 responses to
the CYP Kent and
Medway Suicide
and Self-harm
Prevention
Strategy 2021-
2025

Please note than individuals could response to either strategy or both, hence why we have more than 95
responses noted above.

4.3 Section 3
Priorities for the new Strategy

The Suicide Prevention Steering Group believes that it is appropriate to adopt the
national priorities below as the priorities for the Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-
harm Prevention Strategy.

Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups

Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

Reduce access to the means of suicide

Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide
Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal
behaviour

. Support research, data collection and monitoring

Demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in relation to children
and young people suicide and self-harm prevention

ahoOdbE

~N o

Page 159



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Q6 To what extent do you agree or disagree that we should continue to follow the
national priorities as stated above?

Response Number
Strongly agree / tend to agree 61
Strongly disagree / tend to disagree 5
Neither agree nor disagree 3
Don’t Know 1
TOTAL 69

If respondents answered ‘tend to disagree’ or ‘strongly disagree’ we asked them to
explain their reasoning in more detail. After conducting an analysis, responses were
separated into five main themes.

Covid-19 — individuals discussed the need to view everyone as ‘high risk’ post
pandemic, specifically with concern around unemployment and impact once furlough
schemes end.

Available information — 3 responses noted the importance of having simple and clear
messaging, so Kent residents know where to find support should they need it. Practical
steps and signposting were also highlighted.

Improvements needed locally — 6 individuals discussed the importance of local
intervention and locally-focused actions specific to the local Kent population.

Reducing means of suicide — 3 individuals noted how reducing the access to means
of suicide isn’t as meaningful or possible to mitigate given that it is impossible to control
all aspects of an individuals life; hence, more focus should be given to other areas.

Greater_understanding of local public needs — an interesting point that emerged
from the responses was ensuring KCC is listening to the needs of the people within our
local demographic and understanding high risk groups within our population (i.e debt,
housing issues, substance misuse).

Responses to Question 6 will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue to follow the national strategic priorities, but will make sure that our
associated action plan is adapted to meet the needs of our local populations.

We will continue to promote our Release the Pressure campaign to raise awareness of our two
24 hour support options.

We will conduct an engagement event WIth scig%m heard communities to ensure we better
understand our local public needs.




Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups

The National Strategy has identified the high-risk groups, shown below, as priorities for
suicide prevention interventions.

Q7 Are these the appropriate high-risk groups you would like to prioritise in the
Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strategy?

The table shows whether respondents agree or disagree with the high-risk groups.

Yes No Don’t know

Young and middle-aged men 60 3 4
People with a previous suicide attempt 60 3 4
People with a history of self-harm 59 2 4
People known to secondary mental health services 57 3 5
People who misuse drugs and alcohol 47 9 7
People in contact with the criminal justice system 48 9 8
Specific occupational groups such as doctors, nurses, 46 6 12
veterinary workers, farmers and agricultural workers

People with problematic debt 48 7 11
People who are impacted by domestic abuse 57 3 7
Children and young people 57 3 8

If respondents had answered ‘no’ to any of the suggested priority groups, they were
asked what changed they would like to see made/what groups should be focused on.
The responses are below:

Everyone should be viewed as equal risk (3 responses)

Health staff that have worked during the Covid pandemic (2 responses)
LGBTQ+

Other contributing factors; relationship and family breakdown, eating disorders.

Q7a Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that could be taken to
reduce the suicide risk in any of the priority groups.

People impacted by domestic abuse - Responses included making it easier for victims
to find safe accommodation and the means to support themselves. Individuals also

Page 161



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

discussed using schools as a safe place to request mental health support.

People with problematic debt Responses discussed linking up with banks or building
societies to flag those in high_levels of debt and to offer them support.

Children and young people — individuals discussed the need for targeted work with
children, ensuring that they say what would help them. Other responses included
creating youth and community groups to strengthen young people’s self-esteem and
increase their resilience. Discussion also focused on the wrap around approach needed
from schools and parents, ensuring that CYP are supported, especially those with family
issues which could be contributing factors to poor mental health.

Responses to Question 7 and 7a will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following
ways:

An Innovation Fund (of at least £250k) will be launched in 2021/22 to support community
level projects to reduce suicide and self-harm in any of the high-risk groups identified

This feedback will inform our programme of bespoke research into emerging or high-risk
topics.

Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

The previous strategy identified the groups, shown below, as those most in need of
measures to improve their mental health.

Q8. Are these the groups that you would like to see identified in the new

strategy?
Yes No Don’t know

LGBTQ+ 43 10 11
Military and veterans 54 4 8
Students 52 10 5
People with learning disabilities 46 6 11
Ethnic and religious minorities 38 13 12
Individuals impacted by family breakdown or 57 5 5
separation

Prisoners and other people in contact with the 43 11 11

Page 162



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

criminal justice system

Q8a. If you have answered 'no’' to any of the suggested groups, what changes
would you like to see made?

Responses were split into two main themes here; individuals wanting other specific
groups and other individuals believing there should not be specific groups. More
detailed analysis of responses, can be seen below:

Against having specific groups — 6 responses discussed that we need to ‘break up
the categories’ as being part of a specific group should not see individuals get better
support or determine what help they receive. Individuals discussed that everyone has
issues or challenges within their lives, and not just those with protected characteristics.

Other specific groups need focus -

Diagnosis of personality disorder

Individuals with neurodiversity

Asylum seekers

Help for the individual’s family seeking support, so they can best support them.

Responses to Question 8 and 8a will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following
ways:

While we understand that every individual has a suicide risk, there is evidence to suggest
that certain groups are at higher risk and by targeting campaigns, interventions and
research we hope to be able to reduce the risk.

An Innovation Fund (of at least £250k) will be launched in 2021/22 to support community
level projects to reduce suicide and self-harm in any of the high-risk groups identified

This feedback will inform our programme of bespoke research into emerging or high-risk
topics.

Reduce access to the means of suicide

Reducing a suicidal person’s access to lethal means is an important part of a
comprehensive approach to suicide prevention.

Q9. How can we reduce suicides in Kent and Medway by controlling access to the
means of suicide?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, which saw five key themes emerge,
these included:

Page 163



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Unable to control access to the means of suicide — 8 responses said that you simply
cannot look over someone’s shoulder at all times and therefore, it is very difficult to
control / achieve. Individuals noted that more focus needs to be on other preventions
rather than this recommendation.

Surveillance — 4 individuals discussed the need for actively monitored CCTV,
especially in known places. Responses explained that also closing specific places
(coastal car parks/shopping car parks) or adding cameras to flag vulnerable individuals
could be useful in reducing the access to the means of suicide.

Practical changes — 10 responses looked at changes that could happen within our
local area, with 6 of these individuals specifically noting the importance of increasing
the size of bridges and anti-climb proof, and therefore, making it harder for an individual
to access. Other responses explained that there needs to be an increased awareness
and intervention skills within the community so that those first on the scene are better
equipped to deal with the situation (specifically, staff working in high-risk locations).

Research is needed — 4 individuals highlighted the need for research, so we have the
intelligence that gives insight into how means of suicide are accessed. Suggestions
also included looking at Serious Incident Records as well as contacting fire brigades
and coast guards as these are often looked over individuals who may provide useful
information and insight to this area. Also discussed were geographically profiling
locations which are used more than once for either an attempted or completed suicide,
enabling us to remove access if appropriate.

Social media — 5 individuals discussed the importance social media plays in reducing
access to the means of suicide, as social media can play a role in promoting certain
methods of suicide or self-harm and individuals can access potentially dangerous
information and damaging messaging. All responses wanted to see tighter restrictions
on social media, removing posts or sites that are damaging and enforce the inclusion of
links to support organisations to encourage those who are suicidal to seek help.

Responses to Question 9 will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue regular analysis of Real Time Suicide Surveillance which will give us the
ability to design targeted and evidence-based interventions.

We will conduct or commission bespoke research into emerging or high-risk topics,
accounting for the responses given above.

We will consider piloting new technology to reduce the risk relating to high risk locations

We will continue to work closely with Kent Police, Highways England, the Port of London
Authority and other land owners

Page 164



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide

Q10. What is the best way of providing information and support to those
bereaved or affected by suicide?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, which saw 5 key themes emerge, these
included:

One to one support = 5 individuals explained that the support needed for those
bereaved or affected by suicide needs to be one to one support (either face to face or
over the phone) as this is thought to offer the most suitable and effective support.

Other forms of support — 10 responses discussed a varied range of support, these
included, online support groups (via Facebook), creating a support network of those
who have been bereaved by suicide and are willing to talk about their own experiences
and coping strategies they have shared and developed, continued promotion of
charities such as Survivors of Bereaved by Suicide (SOBS) and GP surgeries being
trained in bereavement counselling.

An additional 3 responses noted the need for support within the community (examples
that were given included; faith communities, sports clubs, schools, community
organisations).

Timely support = 5 individuals discussed the importance of offering support to the
families as soon as possible (preferably from the Police), this should be offered as early
after the event as possible. Responses also highlighted that a follow-up support service
needs to happen, as individuals may not initially accept the offer of support/ bereaved
individuals needs support available whenever they need, rather than a set period of
time.

An additional 3 responses highlighted the importance of the support being offer for as
long as required and to avoid putting a time limit on how long support can be accessed
for.

Information and education = 12 individuals highlighted the need for more information
resources, specially noting that leaflets should be available (either issued by the Police
or from Doctor surgeries). Bereaved individuals need basic information offering support
but also practical advice. Responses discussed that written information is useful as it
can be used as a tool to build conversations whilst also giving the bereaved person
choice when to read the information in their own time. 4 individuals specifically
highlighted the need for promotion of support through social media, ensuring individuals
know where to go for support and who to contact for advice.

Research into the topic — 5 responses discussed that work needs to be done with
individuals bereaved by suicide, to understand what helped or did not help when they
were impacted. Individuals suggested both quantitative and qualitative research, as well

Page 165



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

as looking at timescales regarding when the support is most needed, as immediate
needs are very different to 12+ months later. The responses suggested co-production
working with charities and organisations who support those affected by suicide, in order
for best practice to be taken forward into Kent and Medway.

Responses to Question 10 will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

These responses will be shared with the provider of our new Support Service of People
Bereaved by Suicide (to launch in the summer of 2021) and they will inform and shape the
mobilisation and delivery of the new service.

Continued promotion of Help is at Hand resources.

Demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement across the system and
within services

Q11. How can we demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement
across the system and within services?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with many varied opinions on how we
can demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement across the system and
within the service. 3 key themes emerged, which includes:

Promoting awareness and training — 8 individuals discussed the importance of
investing in front line, well trained staff, as well as promoting awareness and training to
staff and management. Responses focused on education and ensuring information is
available and accessible for all.

Accountability and transparency — 7 responses focused on how there needs to be
more transparency around lessons learnt from previous cases, ensuring everyone can
learn from mistake, as well as having accountability within the services. Individuals
highlighted that government needs to give timely direction to councils and engage with
senior leadership to develop a common audit tool or framework that can be utilised
across a range of settings.

Demonstrate positive practice and what’s worked well — 7 individuals believed in
sharing worked examples, without divulging any personal information, as an excellent
way of showing that the system is working and making a difference. Discussion was
around demonstrating success of projects and sharing good practice and what is
currently working well.

Responses to Question 11 will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue to invest in suicide prevention training, including the promotion of ACE
aware training.

We will continue to highlight and share best practice as well as learning from serious
incidents to reduce future risk Page 166




Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Question 12: Please tell us if you have any other comments about the draft Kent
and Medway Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strategy.

Overall agreement and positive feedback — 6 responses highlighted that the strategy
was focusing on the correct areas. Other feedback noted that the strategy was easy to
read and very well written. The consultation had also inspired a particular Parish
Council to publicise the Release the Pressure campaign around their village.

Highlighting specific groups — 8 responses wanted a final chance to highlight specific
groups they were concerned about, these included:

e The large numbers of people who have lost their jobs/livelihoods due to the
pandemic.

e The isolated/lonely
e Offering support to families that need help budgeting.
e Broadening the scope to include coastguards, ferry service, fisherman

e Exploring the intersections of groups; focusing on family separation, relationship
breakdown, parental conflict, unemployment and debt, isolation and loneliness
from a diverse range of ages, socio-economic backgrounds and minority
backgrounds

e The Deaf Community and ensuring final and approved strategy and other
resources are available in BSL.

e Ensuring support for anyone bereaved by suicide, specifically from the wider
network of family and friends as they can be deeply affected.

Responses to Question 12 will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and in particular the economic impact
which has yet to be fully felt.

We will continue to monitor the Real Time Suicide Surveillance for trends and emerging
high risk factors.

An Innovation Fund (of at least £250k) will be launched in 2021/22 to support community
level projects to reduce suicide and self-harm in any of the high-risk groups identified

Page 167



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

5. Equality Analysis

The Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) for the draft version of the Kent and Medway
Suicide Prevention and Self-harm Strategy 2021-25 was overall rated as low. After
conducting analysis of the consultation responses there is still no evidence to suggest
that the 2021-2025 Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention and Self-harm Strategy will
have an adverse or negative impact on any protected groups. Therefore the
recommended EQIA rating remains as low.

6. Next Steps

As a result of the Public Consultation, the draft 2021-25 Kent and Medway Suicide
Prevention Strategy and associated Action Plan will be amended in the ways outlined in
this report. The amended version of the Strategy will then be taken the following groups
for final sign off.

e Kent County Council Health Reform and Public Health Cabinet Committee

e Medway Council: Leaders Meeting, CYP OSC, HASC OSC, Medway Health and
Wellbeing Board, Cabinet Committee.

e Kent and Medway Health and Wellbeing Board
e STP MHLDA Board (SBAR report required)
e CCG Clinical Board

e KCC Corporate Management Team

Page 168



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:

2021 — 2025 Strategy Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Appendix 1: Respondents ‘About You’

Section 6 — More about you

We want to make sure that everyone is treated fairly and equally, and that no one gets
left out. That's why we are asking you these questions. We won't share the information
you give us with anyone else. We’'ll use it only to help us make decisions and improve
our services.

If you would rather not answer any of these questions, you don't have to.
It is not necessary to answer these questions if you are responding on behalf of

an organisation.

Q27.Are you....? Please select one option.

Male L 28
Female o 33
| prefer not to say | 1

Q28.1s your gender the same as your birth? Please select one option.

Yes G 62
No 0
| prefer not to say | 1

Q29. Which of these age groups applies to you? Please select one option.

0-15 0
16-24 | 2
25-34 ( 1
35-49 Gl 18
50-59 L 15
60-64 a 5
65-74 Gl 15
75-84 [ | 6
85 + over ( 1
| prefer not to say 0

Page 169



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Q30. Do you regard yourself as belonging to a particular religion or holding a
belief? Please select one option.

Yes [ 33
No G 29
| prefer not to say | 1

Q30a. If you answered ‘Yes’ to Q30, which of the following applies to you?
Please select one option.

Christian G ;-
Buddhist 0
Hindu 0
Jewish 0
Muslim 0
Sikh 0
Other |

.

| prefer not to say 0

If you selected Other, please specify:

The Equality Act 2010 describes a person as disabled if they have a long standing
physical or mental condition that has lasted, or is likely to last, at least 12 months; and
this condition has a substantial adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-
day activities. People with some conditions (cancer, multiple sclerosis and HIV/AIDS,
for example) are considered to be disabled from the point that they are diagnosed.

Q31.Do you consider yourself to be disabled as set out in the Equality Act 2010?
Please select one option.

Yes [ 18
No S 43
| prefer not to say q 2

Page 170



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:

2021 — 2025 Strategy

Consultation Report

Council

kent.gov.uk

Q31a. If you answered ‘Yes’ to Q31, please tell us the type of impairment that

applies to you.

You may have more than one type of impairment, so please select all that apply. If none
of these applies to you, please select ‘Other’ and give brief details of the impairment

you have.

Physical impairment G
Sensory impairment (hearing, sight or both) [

Longstanding illness or health condition, or G
epilepsy

Mental health condition G
Learning disability d

| prefer not to say

Other

(=]

o O =

Other, please specify:

A Carer is anyone who cares, unpaid, for a friend or family member who due to iliness,
disability, a mental health problem or an addiction cannot cope without their support.

Both children and adults can be carers.

Q32. Are you a Carer? Please select one option.

Yes L 13
No G 48
| prefer not to say | 1

Q33. Are you ...? Please select one option.

Heterosexual/Straight
Bi/Bisexual |

Gay man d

Gay woman/Lesbian {

Other

| prefer not to say qd

Page 171

55




Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:

2021 — 2025 Strategy Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Q34. To which of these ethnic groups do you feel you belong? Please select one
option. (Source 2011 Census)

White English ] 52
White Scottish 0
White Welsh 0
White Northern Irish 0
White: Irish ( 1
White: Gypsy/Roma 0
White: Irish Traveller 0
White: Other* a 5
Mixed: White and Black Caribbean 0
Mixed: White and Black African 0
Mixed: White and Asian ( 1
Mixed: Other* ( 1
Asian or Asian British: Indian 0
Asian or Asian British: Pakistani ( 1
Asian or Asian Bntish: Bangladeshi 0
Asian or Asian Brtish: Other” 0
Black or Black British: Caribbean 0
Black or Black British: African 0
Black or Black British: Cther™ 0
Arab 0
Chinese 0
| prefer not to say ( 1

*Other - If your ethnic group is not specified on the list, please describe it here:

Page 172



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Appendix 2: Strategy questionnaire (adults)

2021-2025 Kent and Medway Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strategy
Development

Consultation Questionnaire

We are keen to hear your thoughts as we further develop this draft strategy during
formal consultation. We have provided this feedback questionnaire for you to give your
comments.

What information do you need before completing this questionnaire?

We recommend that you view the consultation material online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention
before responding to this questionnaire.

If you have any questions regarding these proposals, please email
suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

This questionnaire can be completed online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention

Alternatively, fill in this paper form and return to: suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Please ensure your response reaches us by midnight on 18 March 2021.

Privacy: Kent County Council (KCC) collects and processes personal information in order to provide a range of public
services. KCC respects the privacy of individuals and endeavours to ensure personal information is collected fairly,
lawfully, and in compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018. Read the full
Privacy Notice at the end of this document.

This consultation document should be read in conjunction with the 2021-2025 Kent and
Medway Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Draft Strategy, and the associated Equality Impact
Assessment. If you need more space to respond, please continue on a separate piece of paper
and return with your responses.

1) Review of the 2015-2020 strategy

The review of the 2015-2020 strategy (contained within the draft 2021-2025 Strategy)
highlighted a number of positive developments over the last five years.

Qla) Are you aware of other developments (not highlighted in the review of the 2015-
2020 strategy) which should be recognised here?

O Yes
O No
O Don’t Know

If ‘yes’, what are they?

Page 173


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk
mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

National recommendations and discussions amongst the Kent and Medway Suicide and
Self-harm Prevention Network have highlighted the following areas for increased support
over the next five years:

Strengthening support for individuals who self-harm.

Strengthening support for individuals who have made a suicide attempt.
Support individuals and families who have been bereaved by suicide.
Supporting individuals impacted by domestic abuse.

Q1b) Do you agree that improvements can be made in these areas?

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

oooooo

If you selected ‘disagree’ or ‘strongly disagree’ please tell us why.

Q1c) What specific actions can be taken in relation to any of the above areas? (To help us
with analysing these results, please make it clear which area you are responding to)

O Yes
O No
O Don’t Know

If ‘yes’, please give details below

2) Priorities for the new strategy

The Suicide Prevention Steering Group believes that it is appropriate to adopt the national
priorities below as the priorities for the Kent and Medway Suicide Prevention Strategy.

i.  Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups
ii.  Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

Page 174



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

ii.  Reduce access to the means of suicide

iv.  Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide

v.  Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
vi.  Support research, data collection and monitoring

Q2a) Do you agree that we should continue to follow the national priorities as stated
above?

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

oooooo

If you selected ‘disagree’ or ‘strongly disagree’ please tell us why.

3) Reduce the risk of suicide in key high-risk groups
The National Strategy has identified the high-risk groups, shown below, as priorities for suicide
prevention interventions

Q3a) Are these the appropriate high-risk groups you would like to prioritise in the Kent
and Medway Suicide Prevention Strategy?

Yes No Don’t
Know

Young and middle-aged men

People in with a previous suicide attempt

People with a history of self-harm

People known to secondary mental health services

People who misuse drugs and alcohol

People in contact with the criminal justice system

Specific occupational groups such as doctors, nurses,
veterinary workers, farmers and agricultural workers

People with problematic debt

People who are impacted by domestic abuse

Children and young people

Q3b) If you have answered ‘no’ to any of the suggested priority groups, what changes
would you like to see made?

Q3c) Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that could be taken to
reduce the suicide risk in any of these particular groups? (To help us with analysing

Page 175



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

these results, please make it clear which priority group(s) you are referring to in your
response).

4) Tailor approaches to improve mental health in specific groups

The previous strategy identified the groups, shown below, as those most in need of measures
to improve their mental health:

Q4a) Are these the groups that you would like to see identified in the new strategy?

Yes No Don’t
Know
LGBTQ+
Military and veterans
Students

People with learning disabilities

Ethnic and religious minorities

Individuals impacted by family breakdown or separation

Prisoners and other people in contact with the criminal justice
system

If you have answered 'no' to any of the suggested groups, what changes would you like to see
made?

5) Reduce access to the means of suicide
(reducing a suicidal person’s access to lethal means) is an important part of a
comprehensive approach to suicide prevention.

Q5a) How can we reduce suicides in Kent and Medway by controlling access to the
means of suicide?

6) Provide better information and support to those bereaved or affected by suicide

Q6a) What is the best way of providing information and support to those bereaved or
affected by suicide?

Page 176



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:

2021 — 2025 Strategy Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

7) Demonstrate system leadership and guality improvement across the system and
within services.

We will use this Strategy to raise the importance of suicide and self-harm prevention with
partners and encourage every organisation, community and individual to play their part.

Q7) How can we demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement across the
system and within services?

8) Please tell us if you have any other comments about the draft Kent and Medway Self-
harm and Suicide Prevention Strateqgy.

Page 177



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Appendix 3: Strategy questionnaire (CYP)
Consultation Questionnaire

We are keen to hear your thoughts as we further develop this draft strategy during
formal consultation. We have provided this feedback questionnaire for you to give your
comments.

What information do you need before completing this questionnaire?

We recommend that you view the consultation material online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention
before responding to this questionnaire.

If you have any questions regarding these proposals, please email
suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

This questionnaire can be completed online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention

Alternatively, fill in this paper form and return to: suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Please ensure your response reaches us by midnight on 18 March 2021.

Privacy: Kent County Council (KCC) collects and processes personal information in order to provide a range of public
services. KCC respects the privacy of individuals and endeavours to ensure personal information is collected fairly,
lawfully, and in compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018. Read the full
Privacy Notice at the end of this document.

Alternative formats: If you require any of the consultation material in an alternative format or language, please email:
alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk or call: 03000 42 15 53 (text relay service number: 18001 03000 42 15 53). This
number goes to an answering machine, which is monitored during office hours.

1) Priorities for the new strategy.

The Suicide Prevention Steering Group believes that it is appropriate to adopt the national
priorities below as the priorities for the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide
and Self-harm Prevention Strategy.

vii.  Reduce the risk of suicide and self harm in key high-risk groups of children and young
people (CYP)

viii. ~ Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all CYP in Kent and
Medway

ix.  Reduce access to the means of suicide
X.  Provide better information and support to those CYP bereaved by suicide
xi.  Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
xii.  Support research, data collection and monitoring
xii.  Demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in relation to CYP suicide and
self-harm prevention

Q1a) Do you agree or disagree that we should continue to follow the national priorities
as stated above?

Page 178


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk
mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

Strongly agree

Tend to agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

oooooOod

If you selected ‘tend to disagree’ or ‘strongly disagree’ please tell us why below.

2) Reduce the risk of suicide and self-harm in key high-risk groups of children and young

people (CYP).

The National Strategy has identified the high-risk groups of CYP, shown below, as priorities for
suicide and self-harm prevention interventions.

Q2a) Are these the appropriate high-risk groups of CYP you think should be prioritised in
the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention
Strategy?

Yes No Don’t
Know

Children and young people known to mental health
services — including the 18-25 transition to adult
mental health services.

Children in care and care leavers

Children in custodial settings

Children and young people with neuro disabilities

Children and young people who identify as LGBTQ+

Children and young people who self harm or engage
in other risky behaviour

Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking children and young
people

Children and young people impacted by Adverse
Childhood Experiences (ACES)

Q2b) If you have answered ‘no’ to any of the suggested priority groups, what changes
would you like to see made?

Q2c) Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that could be taken to
reduce the suicide risk in any of these particular groups? (To help us with analysing

Page 179



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway:
2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council

kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

these results, please make it clear which priority group(s) you are referring to in your
response).

3) Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all children and young
people in Kent and Medway

As a reminder, the actions in the Strategy are:

o We will work with partners to support implementation of the Kent and the Medway CYP
Mental Health Local Transformation Plans.

¢ We will support the implementation of the Medway Self-Harm action plan and the KCC
adolescent strategy.

o We will work with partners to ensure that all CYP have access to a range of easily
accessible and evidence-based emotional wellbeing support services.

e We will support the HeadStart programme to increase resilience amongst CYP in Kent.
We will encourage services to adopt a trauma informed care approach.

e We will pilot innovative new ideas to improve wellbeing and reduce self-harm amongst
CYP.

Q3a) Do you agree or disagree with the actions above to improve the mental health and
wellbeing of all children and young people in Kent and Medway?

Strongly agree

Tend to agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

ooooono

Q3b) Are there any other actions you would suggest to improve the mental health and
wellbeing of children and young people in Kent and Medway?

4) Reduce access to the means of suicide in children and young people.
(Reducing a suicidal person’s access to lethal means) is an important part of a comprehensive
approach to suicide prevention.

Q4a) How can we reduce suicides in children and young people in Kent and Medway by
controlling access to the means of suicide?

Page 180



Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: Kent
2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
kent.gov.uk

Consultation Report

5) Provide better information and support to those children and young people bereaved
or affected by suicide.

Qb5a) What is the best way of providing information and support to those children and
young people bereaved or affected by suicide?

6) Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide.

Q6a) What is the best way of supporting the media in delivering sensitive approaches to
suicide?

7) Support research, data collection and monitoring.

Q7a) Are there additional pieces of research that you believe we should be doing
regarding suicide and self-harm prevention amongst children and young people?

8) Demonstrate system leadership and guality improvement in relation to children and
young people suicide and self-harm prevention.

We will use this Strategy to raise the importance of suicide and self-harm prevention with
partners and encourage every organisation, community and individual to play their part.

Q8a) What is the best way to demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in
relation to children and young people suicide and self-harm prevention?

Q9) Please tell us if you have any other comments about the draft Kent and Medway
Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strateqgy.

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Please note, this strategy has been updated following consultation feedback. It is due to go for approval
this Autumn, after which the final version will be uploaded to the consultation webpage.

1. Executive summary

How was the draft Strategy developed?

¢ It was developed by the Kent and Medway Children and Young People (CYP)
Suicide Prevention Network. A partnership of nearly 100 organisations and
individuals with experience in reducing self-harm and suicide risk amongst CYP.

A public consultation was held regarding both the CYP Suicide Prevention

Strategy and the Adult Suicide Prevention Strategy. How many people responded

to the consultation?

¢ Intotal 95 responses were received through the online consultation portal (2
additional responses received by email)

o Of these, 58 responses were specifically commenting on the CYP Strategy

¢ However, many of the remaining responses also made points referring to CYP
therefore this report includes analysis on all the responses

Who responded to the consultation?

e Most responses were from individual residents of Kent and Medway

¢ A small number of schools, colleges, parish councils and voluntary sector
organisations also responded.

What was the consensus view?

e The vast majority of responses supported the Strategic Priorities and approach that
was set out in the draft Strategy.

e There was also strong support for the identified high-risk groups within the Strategy.

Did anyone disagree with the contents of the strategy?

e While there was broad support for the Strategy, some people felt that other groups
of individuals should be considered high risk, while others commented that
identifying any particular groups was inappropriate and everyone should be treated
as an individual

e Aot of responses highlighted that the full impact of COVID-19 on the population’s
mental health isn’t known yet, so additional monitoring is needed

e Some people felt that the importance of schools and education settings should be
highlighted and that more support should be given to families of CYP who self-harm

What will change as a result of the Consultation?

e The draft Strategy and associated Action Plan will be amended to take account of
the feedback received.

Page 183



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

o Comments will shape the way specific elements of the Action Plan are delivered,
including the 2021 Innovation Fund and the 2021 research programme.

Table of Contents

I o To 0T 1o o LT PP PP P PP P PPPPPPPR PPN 3
2. CONSUIALION PrOCESS: ...t a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaens 3
2.1 Consultation and communication MEthOdS ............couiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5
3. RESPONUEINES ... e 6
BT ATV o To T £ =1 Lo [0 [=To 120 SRPPPPRRRRIN 6
3.2 DemographiCs Of reSPONUENTS ........cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 6
4. CONSUIALION FESPONSES: ... i eeee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ens 8
T ST Tox 1o ] I TP TP PP O PP PP PPPPPPP PPN 8
4.2 SECLION 2 ..otttk t ettt f £t ffffff £ 12
LT o U= U YA A T 1V TSR 21
Lo AN (= 01 ST 21
Appendix 1: Respondents ‘ADOUL YOU' ........oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 22
Appendix 2: Strategy qUESHIONNAINE (CYP) .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 26

Page 184



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

1. Introduction:
This document provides a summary of the comments received through the public consultation

on the draft Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young People (CYP) in Kent and
Medway: 2021-2025 Strategy, and provides recommendations on how these comments
should be addressed in the final strategy.

The draft Strategy was developed by the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide
Prevention Network partnership (established in 2020) and made up of nearly 100 organisations
and individuals with an interest and experience in reducing self-harm and suicide amongst CYP.

The aim of the draft Suicide Prevention Strategy is to reduce suicide and self-harm in CYP as
much as possible, and the programme will work towards the ultimate philosophy and aspiration
of zero suicides within our county.

It should be acknowledged that the Strategy was drafted, and the Public Consultation was held,
during the global Covid-19 pandemic. The final impact of the pandemic on the mental health
and well-being of children and young people will not be known for many months if not years,
however the Suicide Prevention Programme will ensure the Strategy remains flexible enough to
respond appropriately.

2. Consultation process:
Early engagement about the Strategy took place with stakeholders at the Kent and Medway

CYP Suicide and Self-Harm Prevention Network meeting in August 2020.

This was then followed up with a half-day workshop specifically to develop the draft Strategy in
November 2020. The conference included table workshops with key stakeholders identifying
priorities for CYP in the new strategy.

The slide below illustrates the range of organisations and individuals involved in developing the
draft strategy.

Page 185



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

5

The K&M CYP Suicide Prevention Network benefits from over 90 members
from agencies, charities, individuals and community organisations

including...
STUDENT| <f ~ Weare
withyou You
at Mind and Body |
@ “EE Porch 1 @
. Kent
Police a
il T EE  madied,
m NHS Foundation Trust
Kent and Medway Servmg You
Clinical Commissioning Group ‘*v L|STEN|NG EAR
THE EDUCATION Kent
PEGILE D ®
Kent and Medway f.?.‘;?fu'l 2
NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust ' Porch
Lugig;ig(g'eWells Changing sttitudes - Changing lives

SAMARITANS
& : West+ Kent
(\.

pEryed healthwatch "[
Kent ‘

The March meeting of the CYP Suicide Prevention Network also discussed the Strategy and the
public consultation period ran from 3" February - 18" March 2021.

The draft strategy, equality impact assessment, consultation questionnaire and other supporting
documents were available online at
https://kccconsultations.inconsult.uk/suicideprevention/consultationHome

Page 186


https://kccconsultations.inconsult.uk/suicideprevention/consultationHome

Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

2.1 Consultation and communication methods
Consultation and communication timeline:

3" February Consultation 18" March
2021 open 2021

A »
< L

Continuation of social media posts throughout consultation period (approx. 11 posts in total)

Promotion of Final d.ay
Launch of strategy consultation  Final promotion of of soqal
consultation; social _ through CYP strategy medlg
media platforms Promotion of Engaged with KCC staff  Suicide Prevention consultation at promotion
promotion (see strategy consultation group leads to promote Network 11™ March quarterly Suicide
below for more through Suicide amongst different Prevention
information and Prevention groups, including: Network 18"
appendix for Newsletter, reaching Aspire; MH support March
detailed over 300 individuals  Network: Level Playing
spreadsheet of Field; Black and
Minority Ethnic Forum

and Rainbow. Public consultation

. . . Kent and Medway Svicide
Social mediaim agery exam ple and Self-Harm Prevention

Alongside the promotion of the strategy, we Strategy 2021-2025
promoted the Release the Pressure campaign, to
ensure that those engaging with the consultation
could seek help and support should they need it.

Give your views
3 February to 18 March

kent.gov.uk/svicideprevention

Equality and accessibility considerations: Don't suffer in silence: te
KCC undertook the following steps to ensure the RS
consultation was accessible to all:

e All consultation documents and the questionnaire were available to view and response to
online.

o All necessary alternative formats were available during the consultation period and
alternative formats were available on request and all promotional materials included
details on how these could be requested. Microsoft Word versions of the strategy, EQIA
and other supporting documents were available. There were no requests for alternative
formats.

Page 187



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

3. Respondents

3.1 Who responded?

The public consultation received 95 responses via the KCC consultation webpage. An
additional 2 responses via free text (sent through to the suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk email
address).

58 responses were specifically commenting only the CYP Suicide Prevention Strategy,
however, many of the remaining responses also made points referring to CYP, therefore this
report includes analysis of all the responses.

From the 95 responses on the KCC consultation webpage, analysis shows in what capacity
individuals were completing the questionnaire:

Table 1: Are you responding on behalf of...?

Number

A resident of Kent 71
A representative of a local community group or residents’ association 1
On behalf of a Parish / Town / Borough / District Council in an official capacity 2
A Parish / Town / Borough / District / County Councillor 3
On behalf of an educational establishment, such as a school 4
or college

On behalf of a local business 0
On behalf of a charity, voluntary or community sector organisation (VCS) 6
Other 8
TOTAL 95

3.2 Demographics of respondents

The consultation questionnaire included a series of optional ‘about you’ questions, designed to
capture anonymous information about the respondents’ protected characteristics, such as
gender, age, religion and disability. The information is used to check whether there are any
differences in the views of different groups and to ensure that our strategic decisions are being
made fairly.

Page 188


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

The following analysis is based on those individuals that provided information (note that this
section was optional, and some individuals preferred not to provide such information and
individuals did not have to answer every question). A full profile of the respondents can be
found in Appendix 1.

Of the individual respondents who provided information, the gender was split was not
substantial (45% of respondents were male and 53% were female and 2% preferred not to
disclose their gender).

A higher proportion of people aged 35-49 responded to the consultation (accounting for 29% of
the respondents). This was closely followed by the 50-59 and 65-74 age range (both accounting
for 24% of the respondents). The 16-34 age group seems under-represented, making up only
5% of respondents. There were no respondents aged under 16, and only 1 respondent aged
over 84.

Figure 1: Age of consultation respondents compared to population of Kent and Medway.

Respondents age range

35
30

25

20
15
, H =

16-24 25-34 35-49 50-59 60-64 65-74 75-84

(€]

Analysis of the results indicated that there is no significant variation in opinions or views
between age groups, with all age groups showing similar levels of agreement to the questions.

Of those who provided information, 53% regarded themselves as belonging to a religion or
belief, slightly lower than the overall population of Kent and Medway (65.5%).

Of the 95 respondents who provided information, 30% considered themselves to be disabled

under the Equality Act 2010, this is significantly higher than the overall population of Kent and
Medway (16.8%). Further analysis shows that 9 individuals had a mental health condition, 9

Page 189



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

individuals had a longstanding illness or health condition, 6 had a physical impairment, 4 had
sensory impairment and 1 individual had learning difficulties.

Of the those who provided information, 87% identified as heterosexual/straight. 8% identified as
either bisexual, a gay man, or a gay woman/lesbian. 3 individuals ‘preferred not to say’.

The final ‘about you’ section asked respondents about their ethnicity. 84% of respondents that
answered, were White English, the remaining 15% included individuals who were White Irish,
White Other, White and Asian, Mixed Other, Asian or Asian British: Pakistani and 1% ‘preferred
not to say’.

4. Consultation responses:
This section will report the responses received for each question in turn. At the end of

each Section of the Questionnaire, a highlighted box will outline how we will amend the
Strategy as a result of the responses to the questions in that section.

(Please got to Appendix 2 to see the full questionnaires used in the consultation).

4.1 Section 1
CYP Strategy - Priorities for the new Children and Young People strategy

The Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide Prevention Network believes that it
is appropriate to adopt the national priorities below as the priorities for the Kent and Medway
Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strategy.
1. Reduce the risk of suicide and self-harm in key high-risk groups of children and young
people
2. Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all children and young
people in Kent and Medway
3. Reduce access to the means of suicide
4. Provide better information and support to those children and young people bereaved by
suicide
Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
Support research, data collection and monitoring
Demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in relation to children and
young people suicide and self-harm prevention

No o

Q1 To what extent do you agree or disagree that we should continue to follow the
national priorities as stated above?

Response Number
Strongly agree / tend to agree 53
Strongly disagree / tend to disagree 3
Neither agree nor disagree 0

Page 190



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Don’t Know 0

TOTAL 56

Respondents who answered ‘disagree or strongly disagree’ were asked to explain their
answered. After conducting an analysis of these responses, three main themes emerged, these
included:

e Innovative ideas needed — responses here focused around the idea of innovative
projects, for example, paid gym memberships, swimming passes, or personal training in
small groups offer for those struggling. Another individual discussed the importance of
making them feel cared about and that they have options for education and training, as
well as free to access community resources.

e Parents and family are key— four responses looked at the critical role families play,
noting that parents should have access to key information, ensuring they can help
support their child if needed. Another response looked at facilitating early support for
parents noting and/or notifying potentially suicidal behaviour. Lastly, another individual
discussed the importance that parents should be able to disclose any fears and
dilemmas that they may experience as parents; subsequently, offering a system for
them to speak in confidence to someone about their concerns about their child, enabling
them to better support their child and also themselves.

e Education —A couple of responses acknowledged the need for education about mental
health, mental wellbeing and how to look after it, and this notion needs to happen earlier
on and should be discussed in schools as physical health is.

The final Strategy will take these responses into account in the following ways:

We will continue to follow the national strategic priorities, but will make sure that our
associated action plan is adapted to meet the needs of our local populations.

When funds allow, we will administer an Innovation Fund to support community level
projects to reduce suicide and self-harm

We will strengthen the focus on supporting friends and family of children and young
people at risk of suicide and self-harm within the strategy

Reduce the risk of suicide and self-harm in key high-risk groups of children and young
people

The National Strategy has identified the high-risk groups of children and young people, shown
below, as priorities for suicide and self-harm prevention interventions.

Page 191



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Q2 Are these the appropriate high-risk groups of children and young people you think
should be prioritised in the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide and
Self-harm Prevention Strategy?

Yes No Don’t know
Children and young people known to mental health 53 2 1
services — including the 18-25 transition to adult mental
health services
Children in care and care leavers 53 2 0
Children in custodial settings 48 3 1
Children and young people with neuro disabilities 42 3 7
Children and young people who identify as LGBTQ+ 44 3 5
Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking children and young 45 4 3
people
Children and young people impacted by Adverse 50 2 2

Childhood Experiences (ACES)

Individuals that answered ‘no’ to the suggested priority groups, were asked what changes they
would like to see made. The responses were as follows:

The Covid pandemic means a total review is needed

e School children particularly around examination age groups should be included.
Regarding young asylum-seekers, not sure whether this category needs to be separated
out, given that they will already be covered by other categories.

o The above categories fail to take into account the significant increase in suicide among
females 15-24 (increasing since 2012 to its highest ever in 2019). Only a few of those
will have come to the attention of the MH services.

e There should also be inclusion for anyone with a SEN plan. Those would usually be
covered by the above groups but there will be people missed if it were not broadened
out.

The final Strategy will take these responses into account in the following ways:

We will continue to follow the nationally identified high risk groups, and will also include
young women, anyone with a SEN plan and school children at exam time as groups to be
considered.

We will strengthen our actions in monitoring the impact of Covid-19 on the mental wellbeing
of children and young people.

Page 192



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Q3 Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that could be taken to reduce
the suicide risk in any of the priority groups.

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with many varied opinions on suggestions for
specific actions that could be taken to reduce the suicide risk in any of the above priority
groups. Five key themes emerged, which included:

Focus on education _and the educational system — FEight responses discussed the
importance of education regarding educating individuals around CYP and self-harm and
suicide. Examples included the need for teachers to be educated around this, so they are able
to look out for potential suicidal behaviours amongst their students, and also exploring the
option of having greater publicity within the education system, having classes within the
curriculum of secondary school students to focus on their mental health.

Another aspect of these responses discussed the need a mental health professional working in
or alongside schools, and also schools and educational settings highlighting the different
options of support and services available to CYP to ensure they are aware of the support to
them.

Improved access to support — three individuals highlighted the need for access into CAMHS
to improve, specifically discussing the need to reduce waiting times for those accessing help.
Another individual noted that CYP need to be shared with other services, for example crisis
teams can liaise with CYP so they have locally support, also highlighting that the support should
extend to families, friends and carers inclusive.

Self-harm = two individuals highlighted that more needs to be understood around the patterns
and prevalence of self-harm by CYP, and whilst many often think of self-harming as cutting,
other behaviours such as eating disorders need to be taken seriously also. Responses here,
highlighted the need for staff to have the knowledge and skills to intervene and offer counselling
or mental health support for children, specifically those experiencing life changing situations, eg.
Parents divorcing, a bereavement within the family etc.

Improved support structures — several responses discussed the importance of accessible
support in many different forms, these included:

e Offering CYP support groups / workshops / youth clubs (including access to wellbeing
activities that promote self-confidence, building friendship, support networks and
resilience).

e Ready to access phone and text support.

e More school staff and trained workers need to be available and trained to listen and
support CYP.

e Parents need to be supported, ensuring they are able to support their child.

e Using documents within this strategy to make resources to help schools teach about
self-harm and suicide.

Page 193



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

e Better careers guidance is needed as being unsure which direction you are heading in
life, or not having a clear plan for their future can lead CYP to feel stressed and
hopeless.

The final Strategy will take these responses into account in the following ways:

We will continue to work with partners across the system, including schools, colleges
and mental health providers to ensure young people in need of mental health support
are identified early and given access to high quality support

4.2 Section 2

Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all children and young
people in Kent and Medway

The actions stated in the Strategy are:

e We will work with partners to support implementation of the Kent and the Medway
Children and Young People Mental Health Local Transformation Plans.

o We will support the implementation of the Medway Self-Harm action plan and the KCC
adolescent strategy.

o We will work with partners to ensure that all children and young people have access to a
range of easily accessible and evidence-based emotional wellbeing support services.

e We will support the HeadStart programme to increase resilience amongst children and
young people in Kent.

o We will encourage services to adopt a trauma informed care approach.

e We will pilot innovative new ideas to improve wellbeing and reduce self-harm amongst
children and young people.

Q4 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the actions above to improve the
mental health and wellbeing of all children and young people in Kent and Medway?

Response Number
Strongly agree / tend to agree 56
Strongly disagree / tend to disagree 0
Neither agree nor disagree 1
Don’t Know 0
TOTAL 57

Q4a Are there any other actions you would suggest to improve the mental health and
wellbeing of children and young people in Kent and Medway?

Page 194



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with many varied opinions and suggestions to
improve the mental health and wellbeing of CYP in Kent and Medway. Six key themes
emerged, which included:

Improving access to services and support — six responses discussed the need for services
to be made more accessible and for waiting lists to be urgently reduced. Specifically, CAMHS
was highlighted, with the focus of providing more help and support for CYP with quicker
response times. 4 individuals acknowledged the need for better provision of services and
funding for mental health services, with the ultimate aim to fund more health professionals and
reduce the waiting times to zero.

Another individual offered the suggestion that whilst the CYP waits for support or access to
services, perhaps an intermediate solution could be a centralized information hub, to enable
those at risk, as well as the parents/carer to understand all the factors, support services and
educational information to bridge the gap, before professional support can be offer, rather that
CYP and families feeling left to their own devices.

A further five responses highlighted the need for support to be available and made well-known
within communities. Responses discussed the need for a point of call access 24/7 phone or text
service, and for that service to be common knowledge in Kent. In addition, other responses
discussed that they have found resources difficult to access and this can limit support;
therefore, available support needs to be promoted, also acknowledged was the need for this to
be viewed as a ‘whole family approach’ as children do not exist in a vacuum.

Education and training — 11 responses discussed the need for education around the subject
of self-harm and suicide to improve, as well as training those around CYP, to ensure they are
aware of how best to support the individual. Five individuals specifically acknowledged the role
schools play, and that teachers must be more informed of signs that children may need help
and importantly, know how to support the CYP. In addition, suggestions also highlighted the
need for educational systems to have a program of talks in schools on emotional wellbeing
and/or integration of such talks as part of the K&M schools PSHE curriculum in a more
meaningful way than is currently (if at all) happening. It was widely believed that greater
publicity was needed within the educational system.

Regarding training, several responses acknowledged that more training is required for those
who work with CYP in everyday settings, as they are the individuals who know the CYP best
and can look out for ‘signs’ and offer support.

Support for specific_groups — several groups were highlighted as needing more focus,
including:

e Support for those released from custodial settings or leaving a period of probation.

¢ University students need much more focus and support

e More support for transition for children in care, care leavers.

¢ Neurodevelopmental issues need to be focused on

Page 195



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

e The impact of Covid-19 and this last year will be huge on CYP anxiety, whether that be
going back to school, socializing or living through a global pandemic; they will need to
be supported.

Engaging with CYP =5 responses noted that to understand what CYP need, we must work
with them and offer a collaborative way of working. Individuals discussed reaching out to CYP
to gather their opinions and how they would like to feel supported in difficult times. A couple of
responses also acknowledged working with existing groups and communities where possible,
for example, involving youth workers as they are working with CYP daily and can offer a
different perspective of what may work to help support CYP.

The final Strategy will take these responses into account in the following ways:

We will continue to work with partners across the system, including schools, colleges
and mental health providers to ensure young people in need of mental health support
are identified early and given access to high quality support

Reduce access to the means of suicide in children and young people

Q5 How can we reduce suicides in children and young people in Kent and Medway by
controlling access to the means of suicide?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with several suggestions around how we can
reduce suicide in CYP in K&M by controlling access to the means of suicide. Seven key themes
emerged, which included:

Challenging / opposed to having this as a priority — Eleven responses shared similar views
that attempting to control the access to the means of suicide is very difficult as it is impossible to
remove all means. However, a few responses did touch on the suggestion of education around
this and ensuring open conversations are happening, especially at schools to enable
appropriate support, in turn hoping to reduce access to means.

Focusing on illegal substances — Five individuals discussed the importance of focusing on
illegal substances and preventing CYP engaging in illegal substances and drug supplies.
Responses also highlighted the need for amenities on weapons, encouraging confidential
reporting of parties selling / making illegal substances or devices. Tougher sentences to those
supplying drugs that may be used to overdose is also essential.

Social media — Seven responses acknowledged that social media needs to be improved as
damaging behaviour is too easy to access via social media sites. Individuals discussed how
social media is a prevalent factor in many CYP lives and therefore, some activities to help
neutralize the more destructive and malevolent influences could be useful. In addition, the idea
of targeting resources online or on social media was discussed, with the potential of using easy
to access links to support via social media.

Page 196



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Education — Nine individuals highlighted again the need for education around this subject.
Responses included more education and factual conversations around the topic of suicide, and
education around what CYP can access and use by way of a suicide attempt needs to be
understood by parents, teachers and other professionals working with CYP.

Other actions — Five other responses offered a variety of ways to reduce the access to the
means of suicide, these included:
e Security at railways, bridges, high structures
o Talk to police, fire bridges, A&E workers, child death panels, coroners, CHYPS, KMPT
and review the risk in levels 4 ad 5 attempts
e Anyone in charge of a child or in charge of a place where a child might gain access has
a legal duty to protect that child from danger and hazards
e Work with the individual for some intense therapy to help reduce their thoughts to
suicide. Working with the family too, supporting them and their ability to prevent suicide
and help at home will also help.
e More support with transition for children in care, care leavers and children in custodial
settings

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue regular analysis of Real Time Suicide Surveillance which will give us the
ability to design targeted and evidence-based interventions.

We will conduct or commission bespoke research into emerging or high-risk topics, for
instance the impact of social media on children and young people

We will consider piloting new technology to reduce the risk relating to high risk locations

We will continue to work closely with Kent Police, Highways England, the Port of London
Authority and other land owners

Q6 What is the best way of providing information and support to those children and
young people bereaved or affected by suicide?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with many varied suggestions around providing
information and support to those children and young people bereaved or affected by suicide.
Two key themes emerged, which included:

More education needed around this subject — five individuals highlighted the role schools
and the education system plays. Responses focused on ensuring schools had the appropriate
information to offer support to CYP bereaved by suicide. In addition, responses also highlighted
that conversations need to be taken into the school curriculum around CYP being bereaved,
and it was noted that life skills such as these stay with you and support needs to be available.

Varied forms of support — Sixteen responses discussed the need for CYP to be supported
through a variety of ways when bereaved by suicide. Several individuals highlighted the need
for peer support groups, so CYP can feel supported by other CYP who have experienced the
same.

Page 197



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Other responses focused on a varied support structure, from timely face to face support given
immediately after the event, to online chat forums or a text message service. Support could also
be offered in the form of TV adverts or via social media as it was highlighted in the responses,
this is probably the best way to reach CYP.

One individual acknowledged that schools must be trained up in how to support a CYP
bereaved by suicide and/or have a designated lead who can ensure meaningful conversations
are taking place and that CYP has someone they trust to speak with.

Another common response was talking to those CYP who have been bereaved and
understanding what support they received or what support they feel would have benefitted them
during that time. Also working with CYP to understand the best ways to provide such
information so it reaches them and they engage with the support.

In addition, another individual discussed that this needs to be addressed in varied way, as this
is not the sole responsibility of one person or department, therefore, all individuals involved with
the bereaved CYP, family, friends, schools, social workers, doctors etc need to understand how
they can support and are aware of what is available.

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

These responses will be shared with the providers of our two new bereavement support
services as they will inform and shape the mobilisation and delivery of the new service.

1) Specialist Bereavement Support for under 25s
2) Support for People Bereaved by Suicide (both to launch in the summer of 2021)

Continued promotion of Help is at Hand resources.

Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide

Q7. What is the best way of supporting the media in delivering sensitive approaches to
suicide?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with many varied suggestions supporting the
media in delivering sensitive approached to suicide. Four key themes emerged, which included:

Education and guidance is essential — Fourteen individuals discussed the importance of the
media having guidance on sharing appropriate information and ensuring they are educated on
specific elements around best reporting of suicides. Several responses highlighted the need for
information to be factual as often the media can put an incorrect ‘spin’ on stories as well as
educating the media on the correct language to use when reporting on suicides. A common
theme that emerged was stopping the sensational reporting that the media often do when
writing an article on a suicide.

Page 198



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

In addition, responses also acknowledged the need for the media to also provide a pathway to
support whenever stories are published to ensure individuals who are affected by the story can
seek support.

Practical changes that were discussed focused on having age restrictions on such stories and
also having a member of KCC comms team to develop an ongoing relationship to censor such
stories is it is required, as well holding closed seminar discussions with our local media to
discuss the impact these stories can have.

Training — similar to the education responses above, 7 responses discussed the importance of
specific training for those working within the local media. Individuals focused on free to access
training, whether that be mental health first aid or suicide prevention training. A couple of
individuals highlighted that this needs to be done through the employer, or whilst trainee
journalists are still at university (suicide awareness needs to be compulsory in their training /
work), so it is embedded within their learning; the responses also suggested that during the
training, video testimonials from people who have been hurt or negatively influenced by
insensitive reporting should be shown.

Promote positive stories — A few of the responses discussed the need for positive mental
wellbeing stories, engaging in different initiatives such as the ‘ask twice’; ensuring that the
media are promoting good mental health. In addition another response suggested having
regular discussions around mental health / suicide to break the stigma and taboo that still exists
within society, and having survivors share their story; these stories don’t have to be purely only
‘big hitters’ but also lower level real life scenarios that are commonly encountered by many, but
will ensure that individuals know they are not facing anything alone, and they can see first hand
that others have got through the situation.

Social media — a couple of individuals highlighted that social media platforms needs focus,
regarding the content available but also how it can be used to promote good mental health
stories and support should CYP need it.

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

Where possible we will continue to work with media companies and individual journalists to
educate them about existing guidelines and to ask them to change or remove insensitive
coverage.

We will continue to share and promote positive stories.

We will consider research into the impact (positive and negative of social media and apps)

Support research, data collection and monitoring

Q8. Are there additional pieces of research that you believe we should be doing
regarding suicide and self-harm prevention amongst children and young people?

Page 199



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

An analysis was conducted on the responses, with different subject areas and suggestions for
specific research pieces regarding suicide and self-harm. Four key themes emerged, which
included:

Social media — three responses suggested research focusing on social media and how CYP
are using it; specific questions that were suggested include:
e What % of social media posts which encourage and demonstrate self harm and suicide
are removed and are users banned from posting such things?
e Are bullies getting their social media access removed?

Engaging with CYP = seven individuals wanted research to focus more on CYP opinions and
ensuring we are asking them the right questions to support them. These responses focused on
conducting surveys online speaking to CYP or conducting qualitative work with affected CYP to
understand their firsthand experience and attitudes towards self-harm and suicide. More
engagement work is needed to ensure we understand how CYP feel, what has led them to
feeling a certain way, and how they were supported / how best they feel they could be
supported in the future.

Focusing on specific groups — several individuals suggested that more research needs to be
conducted into specific groups, these included:
e The impact of Covid needs to be explored, specifically regarding the mental health of
anxiety and isolation the last year has had on CYP
¢ Trauma and brain patterns — is there particular areas of the brain that suggests suicide
is becoming an intrusive though or fluctuations in brain activity?
CYP from broken homes are ay risk; this needs to be further explored.
The impact of drugs (including alcohol) on CYP mental health
e Any analysis looking at causes and/or responses to attempts to help, could be valuable
in determining what did not go well in helping the CYP
e Research needs to be conducted into coroner reports as well as the family background
to understand the full story of CYP who take their own life.
e Research focusing on leaving home / the transition to university
e Speaking to those who have attempted suicide and now in a mentally stable place, also
speaking to families who have been bereaved by suicide or schools who have lost
students; they may be able to explain the cycle and turn of events where interventions
could have supported the CYP.

Schools and education — nine individuals highlighted the need for research into education and
the school system. Responses focused on more research is needed to understand the stress
that exams, curriculum pressure puts on CYP and how schools need to support CYP better
through these stressful events. A handful on individuals also discussed that we need to
understand exactly what schools are doing, regarding talking about mental health and
improving mental wellbeing; CYP are at school more than anywhere else, therefore more
resources are needed within the school setting to ensure they are supported or know where to
turn to should they need help.
Some specific research questions that emerged were:

¢ How can parents and teachers better understand and identify the signs that a young

person is on the pathway to suicide or self-harm?
e How do schools support their CYP?

Page 200



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will conduct or commission bespoke research into emerging or high-risk topics,
accounting for the responses given above.

Q9. What is the best way to demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in
relation to the prevention work on suicide and self-harm in children and young people?

An analysis was conducted on the responses, discussing how best to demonstrate system
leadership and quality improvement in relation to the prevention work on suicide and self-harm
in CYP. Four key themes emerged, which included:

Funding — Four individuals highlighted that more money needs to be spend on mental health
as a whole. The responses discussed that more money needs to be allocated to mental health
services and suicide prevention.

Demonstrating success — Six responses focused on that success or ‘what is working well’
needs to be shared. Individuals discussed that successful cases or results with positive follow-
ups and outcomes need to be published, possibly on the KCC website or through schools and
colleges, so individuals, including CYP know that good work is being done and Kent residents
are aware of the work that is happening and making a difference.

Engaging with CYP — Seven individuals acknowledged the need for working with CYP,
ensuring they are involved form the start and they have a say in the support offered. In addition,
suggestions included engaging with CYP in schools or drop in centers, or engaging with those
directly affected and target those CYP who are vulnerable. A couple of responses were focused
on ensuring that CYP know that their mental health and wellbeing is being taken very seriously,
and that all agencies play a central part in prevention work; everyone can make a difference.

Joint up approach — Six responses highlighted the need for joint up working between
providers and for messages to be consistent. Some specific examples given here, were focused
on media attention to cover positive stories of work that is happening around the county, school
visits and conversations happening around mental wellbeing, having prominent councilors on
board and being publicly involved in events and newscasts as well as having a team of well
trained individuals, who can communicate with CYP generally, not just those who are high risk
and directly affected. In addition, responses discussed the importance of making it clear for
CYP who or where they go to for support.

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

We will continue to advocate for as much funding as possible to be put towards the mental
health and wellbeing of CYP, and to provide leadership (such as best practice examples,
and facilitating partnership working) to ensure maximum impact of the available resource

We will ensure that the voices of young people are heard as much as possible in
developing programmes and initiatives. Either directly or through providers and
professionals working with CYP

Page 20T



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Q10. Please tell us if you have any other comments about the draft Kent and Medway
Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strategy

There were a variety of responses, summarizing their final views and opinions for the draft CYP
strategy. These included:

Positive feedback — several responses highlighted the good work already being done and
wanted to provide positive feedback regarding the strategy and felt on the whole their views fit
with those outlines in the CYP strategy document.

A change of focus — several responses discussed specific changes they would like to see
included in the strategy, these included:
¢ The pandemic means a total re-boot is needed
e A greater focus on support with transition for children in care, care leavers and children
in custodial settings
e Cultural changes need to shift to ensuring everyone feels safe and support to talk about
their mental health
e Opposing specific at risk groups and believes that the scope needs to be widened so the
aim is for everyone to feel supported and earlier intervention can be given.

Education — a continued recurring theme has been a focus on education and school settings. A
few final responses again highlighted that greater publicity is needed within the education
system, whether this is a focused curriculum topic around mental health and wellbeing or
support/resources being ready to access for CYP. Ensuring CYP learn about mental health and
wellbeing from an early age is setting them up for understanding how to deal with it in later life.

Responses to this question will influence our Strategy & Action Plan in the following ways:

There was an overwhelmingly positive view of the draft strategy and the priorities contained
within it however there were a number of points that will be taken note of in the final
strategy and related action plan. These include ensuring a continued focus on the long-term
impact of Covid-19 on the mental wellbeing of CYP, the importance of schools and
education settings and supporting friends and family of CYP who self-harm.

Page 202



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

5. Equality Analysis

The Equality Impact Assessment for the Children and Young Peoples Kent and Medway
Suicide Prevention and Self-harm Strategy 2021-25 was overall rated as low. After conducting
analysis of the consultation responses, there is still no evidence to suggest that updating the
CYP Suicide Prevention and Self-harm Strategy will have an adverse or negative impact on any
protected groups. Therefore the recommended EQIA rating remains as low.

6. Next Steps

As a result of the Public Consultation, the draft 2021-25 Kent and Medway Suicide
Prevention Strategy and associated Action Plan will be amended in the ways outlined in
this report. The amended version of the Strategy will then be taken the following groups
for final sign off.

e Kent County Council Health Reform and Public Health Cabinet Committee

e Medway Council: Leaders Meeting, CYP OSC, HASC OSC, Medway Health and
Wellbeing Board, Cabinet Committee.

e Kent and Medway Health and Wellbeing Board
e STP MHLDA Board (SBAR report required)
e CCG Clinical Board

e KCC Corporate Management Team

Page 203



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Respondents ‘About You’

Section 6 — More about you

We want to make sure that everyone is treated fairly and equally, and that no one gets
left out. That's why we are asking you these questions. We won't share the information
you give us with anyone else. We'll use it only to help us make decisions and improve
our services.

If you would rather not answer any of these questions, you don't have to.

It is not necessary to answer these questions if you are responding on behalf of
an organisation.

Q27. Are you....? Please select one option.

Male G 28
Female G 33
| prefer not to say | 1

Q28.1s your gender the same as your birth? Please select one option.

Yes G 62
No 0
| prefer not to say | 1

Q29. Which of these age groups applies to you? Please select one option.

0-15 0
16-24 | 2
25-34 ( 1
35-49 G 18
50-59 | 15
60-64 a 5
65-74 Gl 15
75-84 [ | 6
85 + over ( 1
| prefer not to say 0

Page 204



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Q30. Do you regard yourself as belonging to a particular religion or holding a
belief? Please select one option.

Yes [ 33
No G 29
| prefer not to say | 1

Q30a. If you answered ‘Yes’ to Q30, which of the following applies to you?
Please select one option.

Christian G ;-
Buddhist 0
Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Other |

0
0
0
0

.

| prefer not to say 0

If you selected Other, please specify:

The Equality Act 2010 describes a person as disabled if they have a long standing
physical or mental condition that has lasted, or is likely to last, at least 12 months; and
this condition has a substantial adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-
day activities. People with some conditions (cancer, multiple sclerosis and HIV/AIDS,
for example) are considered to be disabled from the point that they are diagnosed.

Q31.Do you consider yourself to be disabled as set out in the Equality Act 2010?
Please select one option.

Yes [ 18
No S 43
| prefer not to say q 2

Page 205



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Consultation Report

Council

kent.gov.uk

Q31a. If you answered ‘Yes’ to Q31, please tell us the type of impairment that

applies to you.

You may have more than one type of impairment, so please select all that apply. If none
of these applies to you, please select ‘Other’ and give brief details of the impairment

you have.

Physical impairment G
Sensory impairment (hearing, sight or both) [
Longstanding illness or health condition, or G

epilepsy
Mental health condition G
Learning disability d

| prefer not to say
Other

(=]

o O =

Other, please specify:

A Carer is anyone who cares, unpaid, for a friend or family member who due to iliness,
disability, a mental health problem or an addiction cannot cope without their support.

Both children and adults can be carers.

Q32. Are you a Carer? Please select one option.

Yes L 13
No G 48
| prefer not to say | 1

Q33. Are you ...? Please select one option.

Heterosexual/Straight
Bi/Bisexual |

Gay man d

Gay woman/Lesbian {

Other

| prefer not to say qd

Page 206

55




Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Q34. To which of these ethnic groups do you feel you belong? Please select one
option. (Source 2011 Census)

White English ] 52
White Scottish

White Welsh

White Northern Irish

White: Irish (

White: Gypsy/Roma

White: Irish Traveller

White: Other* -
Mixed: White and Black Caribbean
Mixed: White and Black African
Mixed: White and Asian (
Mixed: Other* (
Asian or Asian British: Indian

Asian or Asian British: Pakistani (
Asian or Asian Bntish: Bangladeshi
Asian or Asian Brtish: Other”

Black or Black British: Caribbean
Black or Black British: African

Black or Black British: Cther™

Arab

Chinese

- o o o D O O O =2 O =2 24 O O o o o = O o o

| prefer not to say (

*Other - If your ethnic group is not specified on the list, please describe it here:

Page 207



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Appendix 2: Strategy questionnaire (CYP)
Consultation Questionnaire

We are keen to hear your thoughts as we further develop this draft strategy during
formal consultation. We have provided this feedback questionnaire for you to give your
comments.

What information do you need before completing this questionnaire?

We recommend that you view the consultation material online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention
before responding to this questionnaire.

If you have any questions regarding these proposals, please email
suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

This questionnaire can be completed online at kent.gov.uk/suicideprevention

Alternatively, fill in this paper form and return to: suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Please ensure your response reaches us by midnight on 18 March 2021.

Privacy: Kent County Council (KCC) collects and processes personal information in order to provide a range of public
services. KCC respects the privacy of individuals and endeavours to ensure personal information is collected fairly,
lawfully, and in compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018. Read the full
Privacy Notice at the end of this document.

Alternative formats: If you require any of the consultation material in an alternative format or language, please email:
alternativeformats@kent.gov.uk or call: 03000 42 15 53 (text relay service number: 18001 03000 42 15 53). This
number goes to an answering machine, which is monitored during office hours.

1) Priorities for the new strategy.

The Suicide Prevention Steering Group believes that it is appropriate to adopt the national
priorities below as the priorities for the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide
and Self-harm Prevention Strategy.

i.  Reduce the risk of suicide and self harm in key high-risk groups of children and young
people (CYP)
ii.  Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all CYP in Kent and
Medway
ii.  Reduce access to the means of suicide
iv.  Provide better information and support to those CYP bereaved by suicide
v.  Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide and suicidal behaviour
vi.  Support research, data collection and monitoring
vii.  Demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in relation to CYP suicide and
self-harm prevention

Q1a) Do you agree or disagree that we should continue to follow the national priorities
as stated above?

Page 208


mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk
mailto:suicideprevention@kent.gov.uk

Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

Strongly agree

Tend to agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

oooooOod

If you selected ‘tend to disagree’ or ‘strongly disagree’ please tell us why below.

2) Reduce the risk of suicide and self-harm in key high-risk groups of children and young

people (CYP).

The National Strategy has identified the high-risk groups of CYP, shown below, as priorities for
suicide and self-harm prevention interventions.

Q2a) Are these the appropriate high-risk groups of CYP you think should be prioritised in
the Kent and Medway Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention
Strategy?

Yes No Don’t
Know

Children and young people known to mental health
services — including the 18-25 transition to adult
mental health services.

Children in care and care leavers

Children in custodial settings

Children and young people with neuro disabilities
Children and young people who identify as LGBTQ+
Children and young people who self harm or engage
in other risky behaviour

Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking children and young
people

Children and young people impacted by Adverse
Childhood Experiences (ACES)

Q2b) If you have answered ‘no’ to any of the suggested priority groups, what changes
would you like to see made?

Q2c) Please let us have any suggestions for specific actions that could be taken to
reduce the suicide risk in any of these particular groups? (To help us with analysing

Page 209



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

these results, please make it clear which priority group(s) you are referring to in your
response).

3) Tailor approaches to improve mental health and wellbeing of all children and young
people in Kent and Medway

As a reminder, the actions in the Strategy are:

o We will work with partners to support implementation of the Kent and the Medway CYP
Mental Health Local Transformation Plans.

¢ We will support the implementation of the Medway Self-Harm action plan and the KCC
adolescent strategy.

o We will work with partners to ensure that all CYP have access to a range of easily
accessible and evidence-based emotional wellbeing support services.

e We will support the HeadStart programme to increase resilience amongst CYP in Kent.
We will encourage services to adopt a trauma informed care approach.

e We will pilot innovative new ideas to improve wellbeing and reduce self-harm amongst
CYP.

Q3a) Do you agree or disagree with the actions above to improve the mental health and
wellbeing of all children and young people in Kent and Medway?

Strongly agree

Tend to agree

Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree

Strongly disagree

Don’t Know

ooooono

Q3b) Are there any other actions you would suggest to improve the mental health and
wellbeing of children and young people in Kent and Medway?

4) Reduce access to the means of suicide in children and young people.
(Reducing a suicidal person’s access to lethal means) is an important part of a comprehensive
approach to suicide prevention.

Q4a) How can we reduce suicides in children and young people in Kent and Medway by
controlling access to the means of suicide?

Page 210



Preventing Suicide amongst Children and Young Kent
People in Kent and Medway: 2021 — 2025 Strategy County

Council
Consultation Report kent.gov.uk

5) Provide better information and support to those children and young people bereaved
or affected by suicide.

Qb5a) What is the best way of providing information and support to those children and
young people bereaved or affected by suicide?

6) Support the media in delivering sensitive approaches to suicide.

Q6a) What is the best way of supporting the media in delivering sensitive approaches to
suicide?

7) Support research, data collection and monitoring.

Q7a) Are there additional pieces of research that you believe we should be doing
regarding suicide and self-harm prevention amongst children and young people?

8) Demonstrate system leadership and guality improvement in relation to children and
young people suicide and self-harm prevention.

We will use this Strategy to raise the importance of suicide and self-harm prevention with
partners and encourage every organisation, community and individual to play their part.

Q8a) What is the best way to demonstrate system leadership and quality improvement in
relation to children and young people suicide and self-harm prevention?

Q9) Please tell us if you have any other comments about the draft Kent and Medway
Children and Young People Suicide and Self-harm Prevention Strateqgy.

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021
	6 COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan
	7 Feedback from Health Inequalities Workshop on 10 June 2021 and Next Steps
	item 7 APPENDIX 2021 09 06 JointHWB - Health Inequalities Workshop feedback final

	8 Update on the establishment of a Kent and Medway Integrated Care System - August 2021
	Item 8 K&M System Devt Plan and Operating Model - June  - v14_approved

	9 The Appointment of a representative to attend meetings of the Kent and Medway Primary Care Commissioning Group
	Item 9 Appendix PCCC_terms_of_reference (003) (003)
	Primary Care Commissioning Committee
	1. Introduction
	2. Statutory Framework
	3. Role of the Committee
	4. Membership
	5. Meetings and Voting
	6. Quorum
	7. Frequency and Notice of Meetings
	7.2.1 Its proposed date and time, which must be at least seven (7) days after the date of the notice, except where a meeting to discuss an urgent issue is required (in which case as much notice as reasonably practicable in the circumstances should be ...
	7.2.2 Where it is to take place
	7.2.3 An agenda of the items to be discussed at the meeting and any supporting papers
	7.2.4 If it is anticipated that members of the Committee participating in the meeting will not be in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the meeting

	8. Secretary
	9. Agendas and Circulation of Papers
	10. Minutes and Reporting
	11. Conflicts of Interest
	12. Confidentiality
	13. Conduct of the Committee
	14. Sub-Committees
	15. Review of Terms of Reference
	15.1 The terms of reference of the Committee will be approved by Governing Body and shall be reviewed by the Governing Body at least annually.
	Annex A to Appendix 8 to
	NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group Constitution
	Delegated Functions
	2. Primary Medical Services Contract Management
	Enhanced Services
	Design of Local Incentive Schemes
	Making Decisions on Discretionary Payments
	Making Decisions about Commissioning Urgent Care for Out of Area Registered Patients
	3. Planning the Provider Landscape
	4. Approving GP Practice Mergers and Closures
	5. Information Sharing with NHS England in relation to the Delegated Functions
	6. Making Decisions in relation to Management of Poorly Performing GP Practices
	7. Premises Costs Directions Functions
	2. Planning and reviews
	3. Procurement and New Contracts
	4. Integrated working
	5. Resourcing
	NHS Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group Constitution
	Definitions and Interpretation



	10 Kent and Medway Joint Health and Wellbeing Board - Co-option of Members
	11 Kent and Medway Prehabilitation Programme
	12 Preventing Suicide in Kent and Medway: 2021-25 Strategy
	Item 12 suicide Appendix A 2020
	item 12 - App 1 Suicide prevention transformation proposal 201819
	item 12 App 2 suicide prevention
	Item 12 suicide prev App 3


